
 

 

Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454  

e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

 

 

Committee - GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 

 

Date & Time - Thursday, 18 December 2014 at 5.30 pm 
 

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding 

 
 

Membership of the Governance and Audit: 
 
Councillors: G R Aley (Chairman), F Biggadike, C J T H Brewis, P E Coupland, 
A Harrison, A M Newton and R M Rudkin (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Revised quorum 3. 

 
 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn their mobile telephones 

to silent.  

 
 
 
 
 
Democratic Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:  10 December 2014 



AGENDA 
PLEASE NOTE TIMINGS 
ARE APPROXIMATE 
 
TIME 
5.30 pm 1.  Apologies for absence.  

 
 

5.31 pm 2.  Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 25 September 2014 (copy enclosed). 
 

(Pages 1 - 
8) 

5.35 pm 3.  Business Continuity Update Report - To provide 
members of the committee with an update on progress 
against the Business Continuity Audit of May 2014 
(report of the Community Development and Health 
Manager enclosed). 
 

(Pages 9 - 
16) 

5.50 pm 4.  Quarter 2 Risk Report - To update the committee on the 
state of risk management within the organisation (report 
of the Executive Director, Commissioning and 
Governance enclosed). 
 

(Pages 17 
- 26) 

6.00 pm 5.  Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Draft 2015-16 
estimates - To consider the draft estimates for 2015/16 
(report of the Shared Housing Manager enclosed) 
 

(Pages 27 
- 44) 

7.00 pm 6.  SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2013/14 - (report of KPMG 
enclosed) 
 

(Pages 45 
- 50) 

7.15 pm 7.  External Audit Progress Report and Technical Update - 
(report of KPMG enclosed) 
 

(Pages 51 
- 72) 

7.30 pm 8.  Internal Audit Update Report - To update the Committee 
on progress with the Audit Plan, September 2014 to 
November 2014 (report of the Head of Audit and Risk 
Management, Audit Lincolnshire, and the Finance 
Manager enclosed). 
 

(Pages 73 
- 112) 

7.45 pm 9.  Mid Term Treasury Report 2014/15 - To provide an 
update of the treasury management position of the 
Council as at 30 September 2014 (report of the Finance 
Manager, Treasury (CPBS) enclosed) 
 

(Pages 
113 - 126) 

8.00 pm 10.  Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum 
Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy 2015/16 - To provide pre-decision 
scrutiny to the strategy being proposed (report of the 
Finance Manager Treasury (CPBS) enclosed) 
 
 
 
 
 

(Pages 
127 - 168) 



8.15 pm 11.  Governance and Audit Committee Self-Assessment - 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) advocates that it is good practice 
for Audit Committees to undertake regular assessments, 
thus enabling members to gain an appreciation of what 
affords best practice, to confirm the level of compliance 
being achieved, and to identify any potential areas for 
enhancements to be made to arrangements (report of 
the Finance Manager enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
169 - 178) 

8.20 pm 12.  Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme - To 
set out the Work Programme of the Governance and 
Audit Committee (report of the Democratic Services and 
Legal Manager enclosed) 
 

(Pages 
179 - 184) 

8.25 pm 13.  Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent.  
 
NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by 

reason of special circumstances, which 
shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of 
urgency. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



- 9 - 
 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT held in Meeting Room 1, 
Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 25 September 2014 at 6.30 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
G R Aley (Chairman) 

R M Rudkin (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 

F Biggadike 
C J T H Brewis 
 

P E Coupland 
A Harrison 
 

A M Newton 
 

No apologies for absence were received.      
 
In Attendance: H Brookes (Audit Manager, KPMG), L Pledge (Head of Audit and Risk 
Management, Audit Lincolnshire), J Scott (Audit Manager, Audit Lincolnshire), the 
Executive Director (Place), the Finance Manager (Section 151) and the National 
Management Trainee. 
 
 Action By 

13. MINUTES   

  

 The minutes of the Governance and Audit Committee meeting 
held on 26 June 2014 were signed by the Chairman as a correct 
record. 
 
With regard to minute 11, the Chairman advised that he had 
liaised with the Portfolio Holder for Waste Management, Green 
Spaces and Operational Planning concerning the lack of green 
recycling bags and was advised that the situation had now been 
resolved.  

 

   

14. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Audit and 
Risk Management (Audit Lincolnshire) and the Finance Manager 
(S151), which updated the Committee on progress with the Audit 
Plan for the period May 2014 to August 2014.   
 
The purpose of the report was to: 
 

• Advise of progress being made with the 2014/15 Audit Plan; 

• Provide details of the audit work during the period; 

• Provide details of the current position with agreed 
management actions in respect of previously issued reports; 

• Update the committee on any changes to the 2014/15 Audit 
Plan and any other matters that may be relevant to the 
Governance and Audit Committee role. 

 
Actual progress to date was less than expected however, the 
majority of audits were planned towards the latter half of the year 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2.



- 10 - 
 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 25 September 

2014 

 

 

 

and more progress would be seen then. 
 
The assurance levels provided for 2014/15 had been amended in 
response to the introduction of other UK Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards and were based on the Institute of Internal 
Auditors professional practice.  The changes helped auditors 
focus on the significance and importance of the activity in their 
opinions and recognised that auditors could not given absolute 
(Full) assurance.  The new levels of assurance were: 
 

• Effective 

• Some improvement needed 

• Major improvement needed 

• Inadequate 
 
Three final reports had been issued since the last Committee: 
 

• Recruitment and Retention received ‘Some Improvement 
Needed’ Assurance 

• 2013/14 Business Continuity Audit received Limited 
Assurance (‘major improvement needed’ under the new 
criteria) 

• 2013/14 Accounts Payable received Substantial Assurance 
(‘some improvement needed’ under the new criteria) 

 
For the Business Continuity Audit, the key messages were: 
 

• Completion of all Business Continuity Plans required 

• Promotion and embedding of processes with greater emphasis 
placed on Business Continuity Management at senior 
management level 

• Regular exercising of the Business Continuity Plans 

• Training on Business Continuity for all staff   
 
Progress with the implementation of agreed management action 
on recommendations for previous audits resulting in ‘No’ or 
‘Limited’ assurance (and now ‘Major Improvement Needed’ or 
‘Inadequate’) was followed up and reported in Appendix 3 to the 
report.  A more robust follow up was undertaken for audits with 
Limited Assurance or Major Improvement Needed.  
 
In the audits given ‘Some improvement needed’ or ‘Effective’ 
Assurance, it had been confirmed that the Council had sound 
processes in place for the Recruitment and Retention Internal 
Audit, the Welfare Reform Follow up and the Accounts Payable 
Internal Audit.  More information on the outcomes of these audits 
were detailed within the report. 

Page 2



- 11 - 
 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 25 September 

2014 

 

 

 

 
It was confirmed that 2014/15 audits in progress were Housing 
Benefit Subsidy, CPBS Corporate Governance and ICT.  There 
was one remaining 2013/14 audit at draft report stage, Payroll, 
which was provisionally Substantial Assurance.   
 
Finally, a number of other matters were detailed: 
 

• CIPFA Better Governance Forum – Audit Committee Update 
Issue 14 – helping audit committees to be effective.  Members 
were provided with a copy of this latest update. 

• County-Wide bid for Government Counter Fraud funding – 
Audit Lincolnshire was working with the Finance Directors of 
all the Lincolnshire Districts to submit a joint bid to the 
Government for additional one-off counter fraud funding.  The 
bid deadline was early September and an update would be 
provided when the results were known.  Members were 
advised that a response should be received by the end of 
October. 

• Effective Audit Committee Workshop (7 November 2014). 
Members had received an invitation to this training, and five of 
the Committee confirmed that they would attend. 

 
Members considered the information and the following issues 
arose: 
 

• Recruitment and Retention – How could applicants be 
encouraged to the South Holland area to work for the 
Authority, when it was not perceived as attractive in 
comparison to other areas? 

o The Head of Audit and Risk Management 
responded that the audit was not looking into 
attracting talent into the area, it was an audit of the 
recruitment process in general.  The Executive 
Director (Place) added that audit’s role concerned 
the framework around recruitment and that Scrutiny 
would be the appropriate committee to look into the 
issues around attracting individuals into the area for 
employment. 

 

• Why was progress on the current year’s audit behind 
schedule? 

o The Head of Audit and Risk Management 
responded that it was not unusual for progress to be 
at this level at this point.  Progress at around 29% 
would be expected and she had therefore allocated 
more resources to this work.  She was in regular 
contact with the Finance Manager (S151). 

Page 3



- 12 - 
 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 25 September 

2014 

 

 

 

 

• What process was being used to address issues around 
Business Continuity? 

o The Executive Director (Place) advised that a test of 
the Emergency Plan was being undertaken in 
October, and activity was currently taking place.  
The revised completion date for recommendations, 
as agreed by Audit and the Community 
Development and Health Manager, was December.  
Business Continuity was high on the agenda for the 
Director and for other officers.   

 

• IT shutdown was an issue relating to Business Continuity. 
o The Council’s requirement for technology had to 

relate to resiliance, security of data and a 
contingency plan that enabled systems to be 
recovered in the event of an emergency. 

 
AGREED: 

 
That the report be noted.                                                                                                    
 

15. ISO260 REPORT 2013/14   

  

 Consideration was given to KPMG’s report to those charged with 
governance (ISA260) for 2013/14.  It summarised the key 
findings arising from their audit of South Holland District 
Council’s 2013/14 financial statements and their work to support 
their 2013/14 conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources (VFM conclusion). 
 
The headline messages detailed within the report were as 
follows: 
 

• Proposed audit opinion – KMPG anticipated issuing an 
unqualified audit opinion on the Authority’s financial 
statements by 30 September 2014.  They would also report 
that the wording of SHDC’s Annual Governance Statement 
accorded with their understanding. 

• Audit adjustments – KPMG reported that their audit of 
SHDC’s financial statements did not identify any material 
adjustments.  The Authority made a small number of non-
trivial adjustments, most of which were of a presentational 
nature.  There was no impact on the General Fund.  KPMG 
raised one recommendation arising from their work, that in 
the future, the Authority needed to ensure that 
componentisation of property, plant and equipment was 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 4



- 13 - 
 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 25 September 

2014 

 

 

 

undertaken. 

• Key financial statements and other audit risks – KPMG 
reviewed risks to the financial statements on an ongoing 
basis.  They had worked with Officers throughout the year to 
discuss the specific risk areas for this year’s audit.  The 
Authority addressed the issues appropriately. 

• Accounts production and audit process – The Authority had 
good processes in place for the production of the accounts 
and excellent quality supporting working papers.  Officers 
dealt efficiently with audit queries and the audit process had 
been completed within the planned timescales. 

• Control environment – The Authority’s organisational control 
environment was effective overall, and no significant 
weaknesses in controls over key financial systems had been 
identified. 

• Completion – At the date of the report, KPMG’s audit of the 
financial statements was complete.  Before they could issue 
their opinion, they required a signed management 
representation letter.  KPMG confirmed that they had 
complied with requirements on objectivity and independence 
in relation to this year’s audit of the Authority’s financial 
statements. 

• VFM conclusion and risk areas – KPMG had concluded that 
the Authority had made proper arrangements to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  
They therefore anticipated issuing an unqualified VFM 
conclusion by 30 September 2014.  

 
In KPMG’s External Audit Plan 2013/14, presented to the 
Committee in February 2014, key risks and other audit issues 
affecting the 2013/14 financial statements were identified.  
Subsequent to this, an additional risk had been identified around 
the accounting for the business rate retention scheme.  Testing 
in these areas was now complete and evaluation set following 
the substantive work: 
 

• LGPS Triennial Valuation – As part of the audit, it was 
confirmed: that the Authority had obtained an independent 
actuarial valuation; that the underlying data submitted to the 
actuary for this purpose was complete and accurate; that the 
assumptions underpinning the actuarial valuations had been 
reviewed by management and found to be reasonable; and 
that the IAS19 figures in the accounts agreed to the 
information provided by the actuary. 

• Business rate retention scheme – KPMG had reviewed the 
Authority’s accounting treatment for business rates and 
confirmed that it was in line with the CIPFA guidance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 5



- 14 - 
 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 25 September 

2014 

 

 

 

The Executive Director (Place) commented that the results of the 
auditors’ report were very good, and that great credit should be 
given to the Senior Finance Analyst and his team of officers, and 
to the Finance Manager (S151).   
 
AGREED: 

 
That the ISA260 report for 2013/14 be noted.  

MF 

CW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MF 

 

   

16. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013/14   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Shared Finance 
Manager which sought approval for the annual governance 
statement for inclusion within the Council’s published financial 
statements, and the approval of the audited 2013-14 financial 
statements for publication. 
 
The draft 2013-14 financial statements were presented to the 
Committee on 26 June 2014, prior to audit.  Since that time, 
KPMG had been working to establish the correctness of the 
accounts, checking them against the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2013-14, and the 
Council’s own accounting policies.   
 
The report updated the Committee on the progress of the audit, 
and asked members to formally approve the statements for 
publication, having considered the issues raised by the auditor 
under the previous agenda item. 
 
A small number of presentational adjustments were required to 
ensure compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2013-14.  No amendments 
were required to be made to the primary statements. 
 
The ISA 260 report included one recommendation relating to the 
componentisation of property, plant and equipment.  A 
management response had been provided and this issue would 
be addressed as part of the 2014/15 accounts process. 
 
At the same meeting, the Committee considered and commented 
on the draft Annual Governance Statement.  Appendix B reflected 
minor changes to the draft version, these arising from 
improvements to Governance arrangements outlined in the 
Internal Annual Audit Report, and deletion of the section 
regarding legal proceedings relating to a planning complaint. 
 
The Annual Governance Statement was required to be signed by 
the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive.  The 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MF 

 

Page 6



- 15 - 
 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 25 September 

2014 

 

 

 

committee was requested to approve the statement to allow it to 
be published with the financial statements. 
 
AGREED: 

 
a) That the 2013-14 Financial Statements be approved; 
 
b) That the 2013-14 Annual Governance Statement be approved; 

and 
 
c) That the Letter of Representation be approved.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

MF 

 

 

MF 

 

 

MF 

 

17. RISK MANAGEMENT   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
(Commissioning and Governance) which updated the 
Governance and Audit Committee on Risk Management. 
 
The updated strategic risk register included 9 strategic risks.  In 
the past, the report had been by exception, but as there were just 
9 in total, all low, medium and high risks were included and 
available within the report.  These covered the over-arching risks 
that may affect the strategic direction of the council, rather than 
risks linked to business continuity or those that affected discreet 
service areas. 
 
Risks were grouped into two categories: 
 

• Strategic – these were risks that affected the whole and long 
term plan of the council  These risks could fundamentally 
impact upon the Authority’s reputation, the organisation that it 
was, and the dependable, accountable delivery of public 
services. 

• Operational – These risks concerned the day to day activities 
in the delivery of functions and services. 

 
Risks were rated using a 3x3 matrix through a numerical number 
that combined the impact score of the risk occurring, with the 
likelihood score of it happening.  Risks were then classed as 
High, Medium or Low risks dependant on their rating. 
 
The risk summary covered two areas;  a) The risk summary table 
showed the total number of risks by category and the percentage 
of high, medium and low risks within each category; and b) The 
exceptions report, a detailed report to provide focus on high level 
risks.   
 
Two Risk Summary Tables was detailed within the report, 

 

Page 7



- 16 - 
 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 25 September 

2014 

 

 

 

showing the risk position at 31 March 2014 (Quarter 4, 2013/14) 
and 30 June 2014 (Quarter 1, 2014/15).  The tables detailed 9 
Strategic risks and 66 Operational risks, and 9 Strategic risks and 
64 Operational risks respectively. This information informed that: 
 

• Strategic risks were predominantly medium; 

• Operational risks were predominantly medium to low level; 

• 1 strategic risk had decreased from a high to a medium rating; 

• 2 operational risks had closed from Community Development; 
and 

• 2 operational risks had decreased from a medium to a low 
rating from within Communications, Community Development 
and Environmental Health. 

 
Therefore: 
 

• Strategic Risk Overview: Overall rating was Medium 

• Operational Risk Overview: Overall rating was Medium 
 
The Exceptions Report was attached at Appendix B to the report. 
 
Members considered the report and commented that levels of 
medium and high risks were still high.  The Executive Director 
(Place) acknowledged this but commented that progress was 
being made in the right direction. 
 

AGREED: 

 
That the report be noted. 
  

18. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK 

PROGRAMME  

 

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Democratic Services 
and Legal Manager which presented the work programme of the 
Governance and Audit Committee, as set out in Appendix A within 
the report.  
 
AGREED: 

 
That the report be noted.  

 

 
(The meeting ended at 7.45 p.m.) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
 

Page 8



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 
Report of: Riana Rudland – Community Development and Health Manager 
 
To:    Governance and Audit Committee – 18 December 2014 
 
(Author:  Riana Rudland – Community Development and Health Manager) 
 
Subject: Business Continuity Update Report 
 
Purpose: To provide members of the committee with an update on progress against the 

Business Continuity Audit of May 2014 
 

 
Recommendation:  
 
That Members note the contents of the report and progress made to date 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 Business Continuity is the process that ensures that the council’s critical services can 

continue to operate in the event of a disruption or incident. All authorities should have a 
procedure in place that is effective, has been thoroughly exercised, is regularly reviewed, 
and is operated by trained staff. This ensures the council can meet its responsibilities under 
the Civil Contingencies Act 2004. 
 

1.2 Audit Lincolnshire undertook an audit in May 2014 which focussed on the following: 
examination of the Business Continuity plans and procedures currently in place; an 
assessment of how this process is exercised and reviewed and; a check that key staff are 
aware of their roles and responsibilities. 
 

1.3 The audit findings provided limited assurance but with improving direction of travel. It was 
noted that the implementation of sharing and partnership arrangements (shared 
management and CPBS in particular) had resulted in some plans becoming outdated and 
in need of review. The audit also recognised that work was underway to ensure that robust 
plans are in place and that staff are aware of their responsibilities and suitably equipped to 
respond. 
 

1.4 The audit highlighted 4 high, 3 medium level recommendations. The key areas for 
improvement were highlighted as being; Completion of all Business Continuity Plans with 
regular reviews and updates scheduled; Promotion and embedding of processes with 
greater emphasis placed on business continuity management at senior management level; 
Regular exercising of the Business Continuity Plans; Training on Business Continuity for all 
staff. 
 

1.5 Since the audit in May a number of steps have been taken to address the issues 
highlighted by the audit report. As a result two audit recs have been fully completed and 
signed off.  
 

1.6 Below is a table detailing progress against all recommendations from the audit. 
 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3.



 

 
No Findings 

 
Recommendations 

 
Actions  

 
Priority 

 
Progress 
to date 

1 There is limited evidence of strong senior 
management promotion to embed 
Business Continuity arrangements in 
SHDC at this time:  
 

• It is not clear that the BC framework 
or updated Corporate BC plan have 
been approved by CMT 

• Whilst the framework states BC will 
be on the CMT agenda at least each 
quarter we have not been able to 
confirm that this is the case 

 
If the importance of Business Continuity 
is not communicated to staff and 
arrangements not embedded there is a 
risk that the response to a service 
disruption / business continuity incident 
will not be effective. 
 

Senior Management should 
liaise with the JEMS Senior 
Emergency Planning Officer 
to ensure that all 
outstanding work on 
business continuity 
arrangements is completed 
/ timetabled and that they 
are actively involved in its 
ongoing promotion. 

The Corporate BC Plan was 
presented to CMT on 8th 
December following a further 
refresh in October including 
amendments to contact details of 
staff as a result of changes in 
senior management. A few minor 
amendments are now due to be 
completed before it is signed off 
by CMT at their meeting 
scheduled for 22nd December. 
A cross council Resilience group 
has been formed and is led by a 
member of CMT. This group 
reviews BC and EP issues and 
progress and reports back to the 
Corporate Management Team. 
This helps ensure more senior 
management buy-in and 
awareness.  

High To be 
Completed 
22nd Dec 
2014 

2 Business Continuity plans are not 
complete for all service areas. We also 
found instances of completed versions 
that were still designated as "draft" 
versions, had missing information and 
answers that were not definite. 
 
In the absence of complete and up to 
date plans, there may be a lack of clarity 
on priorities and procedures should an 
incident occur.  
 

Service areas should 
complete their Business 
Continuity plans as soon as 
possible, within a deadline 
agreed by CMT. 
 
Managers should ensure 
they are then updated when 
required, fully reviewed 
annually and tested to 
ensure that they continue to 
be fit for purpose. 

All services have been tasked 
with reviewing their BC plans. 
Support is being provided by 
JEMS Resilience Officer. Service 
managers have been tasked with 
amending and testing plans at a 
team level and the Resilience 
Group will ensure that these plans 
are regularly reviewed by the 
Service. These plans are due for 
completion in the new year 
although many services have 
already reviewed their plans and 

High In progress. 
External 
providers 
also being 
reviewed 

P
age 10



 
No Findings 

 
Recommendations 

 
Actions  

 
Priority 

 
Progress 
to date 

are in the ‘exercising phase’.  
Teams with shared officers are 
ensuring that plans reflect these 
arrangements.  
 

3 The last BC exercise that took place at 
SHDC was in October 2008.  
 
Exercising of plans is needed to ensure 
that staff are prepared and understand 
the procedures to follow should a real life 
situation occur. This should also identify 
any "gaps" in procedures and 
information. 
 
We note that there is an exercise 
planned during 2014/15. 
 

Ensure that the planned 
exercise is completed and 
reviewed so that any issues 
are highlighted and 
improvements can be made 
to plans where necessary. 
 
It is good practice that 
exercises are completed 
every few years. These 
should be supplemented 
with departmental table top 
reviews. This will ensure 
that procedures are 
embedded. 
 

SHDC had planned to take part in 
a National Exercise in October 
2014, however this was cancelled 
by national colleagues. SHDC did 
however undertake a number of 
cross departmental meetings in 
the build up to the exercise and 
shared information and 
knowledge across services, 
discuss potential business 
impacts and began to put in place 
new mechanisms to test plans. 
This work was extremely 
beneficial despite the exercise 
being cancelled. In addition, 
Service Managers and CMT 
undertook a desk top exercise in 
November to raise awareness of 
the importance of the plans and to 
test their preparedness in the 
event of an issue arising. The 
lessons learnt from this exercise 
are being implemented by Service 
Managers as they review their 
plans. 
SHDC took part in a Lincolnshire 
Telecoms test during the summer 
which concluded that we are 
aware and able to implement the 

High SMT / CMT 
exercise 
complete. 
 
Service level 
exercises in 
progress 

P
age 11



 
No Findings 

 
Recommendations 

 
Actions  

 
Priority 

 
Progress 
to date 

County Telecoms strategy if 
required. 
A number of key staff have been 
signed up to Resilience Direct 
and have received training on 
how to use it. This will act as a 
remote place to store all BC plans 
in the event of not being able to 
access SHDC files. 
Service Managers have been 
provided with 13 scenarios to 
undertake desk top exercises with 
their teams. Teams have these 
scheduled in to their team 
meetings and will be supported by 
JEMS Resilience Officer when 
required. 
 

4 While detailed documentation has been 
produced on the training requirements for 
staff at different levels, the Business 
Continuity training content and delivery is 
still being planned. 
 
Business Continuity is not currently 
included in induction processes. 
 
Without adequate training, there is a risk 
that staff at all levels will not understand 
their roles and responsibilities. 

SHDC need to ensure that: 

• business continuity 
training material is 
produced as quickly as 
possible for the different 
audiences within SHDC  

• training sessions are 
established in 
conjunction with 
relevant risk 
management and BC 
managers/experts, and 
agreed by the senior 
management team 

• there are adequate 
procedures in place to 

Information regarding Business 
Continuity has been added to 
SHINE for all staff to raise 
awareness. All teams are 
participating in refresh of their 
plans which will also raises 
awareness.  
HR have been tasked with 
ensuring that it is included in an 
induction information for new 
staff. 
Key Officers have recently 
undertaken ‘Silver’ command 
level training which helps them 
understand what roles they will 
undertake in the event of an 

High Training of 
key staff 
complete 
 
Further 
training 
planned 
 
Team level 
awareness 
raising – 
complete 

P
age 12



 
No Findings 

 
Recommendations 

 
Actions  

 
Priority 

 
Progress 
to date 

ensure that any 
changes, amendments, 
updates to the BC 
policy, processes or 
procedures are promptly 
identified and assessed, 
and result in appropriate 
changes to the training 
programmes 

• awareness of BC is 
included in staff 
inductions 
 

incident that affects the 
functioning of the Council. Further 
training is to be rolled out in the 
new year. Gold refresher Training 
for CMT is being undertaken in 
Jan and Feb 2015. 
BC awareness has been 
highlighted through recent staff 
newsletters. 
Further training for service 
managers will be scheduled once 
all plans have been signed off 
and based on the needs of the 
service.  

5 The Business Continuity Framework for 
SHDC and Breckland is dated August 
2011 and still appears to be a draft 
version. We could not find evidence that 
the Business Continuity framework had 
been signed off and agreed. 
 

Ensure that this document 
is reviewed to confirm it is 
up to date. This should be 
formally approved by CMT. 
This should then be made 
available to all staff so that 
they understand the role of 
Business Continuity in the 
council. 
 
The framework should be 
then reviewed annually and 
updated via version number 
to confirm this has been 
completed. 
 

This has now been completed. A 
2014 version has been agreed 
and is now available for staff. 

Medium Completed 

6 There is no reminder system in place to 
ensure that Service Managers keep their 
Business Continuity Plans up to date. 
 

Create a standing agenda 
item for all Business 
Continuity Project Group 
meetings for this reminder. 

All Service Managers are 
responsible for updating their 
plans when staff changes occur. 
The performance system can act 

Medium Completed 

P
age 13



 
No Findings 

 
Recommendations 

 
Actions  

 
Priority 

 
Progress 
to date 

Key roles in the plans could be vacant if 
they are not updated following staff 
departures. 
 

This will ensure that all of 
the individual service plans 
remain up to date. 

as a reminder for managers. The 
resilience group will initiate spot 
checks on team plans on a 
regular basis. Key officers are 
responsible for ensuring 
operational changes are reflected 
in plans. 
 

7 There is inadequate information on 
Business Continuity available to staff at 
the moment on SHINE. The various 
plans are not accessible to staff and 
there are a limited number of updates 
sent to all staff.    
 
There is a risk that staff at all levels will 
therefore not understand their roles and 
responsibilities in the event of a genuine 
Business Continuity event. 

Once the Business 
Continuity Plans are 
updated, all staff should be 
able to access versions of 
the Plans that do not 
contain staff contact details 
to ensure that they are 
aware of the roles they may 
be required to perform.  
 
Regular Business 
Continuity updates should 
also be provided via email 
and SHINE to keep staff 
informed. 
 

SHINE has been updated with 
relevant information for staff. This 
also shows any updates on the 
front page so that users can see 
all changes. Key updates will be 
circulated via the staff newsletter. 
Further updates can be provided 
by the Chief Executive at All Staff 
Briefings if required.  
Teams are to undertake a 
scenario exercise every year to 
ensure all staff remain informed 
and plans are tested. 
Team plans (without contact 
details) will be stored on SHINE 
once signed off by Managers. 
CMT will have access to the 
Corporate BC plan, Emergency 
Plan and contacts list on a 
memory stick so they can access 
the info at any time. All plans 
once complete will be entered on 
Resilience Direct for Key Officers 
to access. 

Medium CMT – 
completed 
 
All staff – in 
progress 

 

P
age 14



 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 To note the contents of the report and progress made to date 

 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 Significant progress has been made since the Business Continuity Audit in May 2014. It 

should be noted that plans require continuous updating and monitoring to reflect changes in 
staffing and service priorities. The Resilience group will continue to monitor team plan 
reviews to give assurance that they are up to date and fit for purpose. 

 
3.2 Compliance with the Civil Contingencies Act 2004. 
 
3.3 More resilient service delivery. 
 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 The development of resilience within South Holland gives us the confidence to be able to 

continue to deliver services even if an incident occurs which may have an impact on its 
delivery. 

 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 Compliance with the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 
 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 It remains the responsibility of the Council to ensure that Business Continuity Plans are in 

place for any service which is contracted. The contractors should be able to demonstrate 
how they are building resilience in to their service delivery processes and how they would 
continue to deliver the required services during and after an incident. 

 
5.4 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.4.1 The Corporate Business Continuity Plan details the services which are required to deliver 

the corporate priorities. 
 
5.5 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.5.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 
5.6.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.7 Health & Wellbeing 
 
5.7.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 

Page 15



 
5.8 Financial  
 
5.8.1 There may be some financial implications in building resilience in to our service delivery. 

However these will be assessed on an individual cost benefit analysis before 
implementation. There may be financial penalties if service delivery is compromised. 

 
5.9 Risk Management  
 
5.9.1 The formal development of a corporate Business Continuity Plan has allowed the Council to 

identify risks involved with service delivery, manage their impact, and determine actions to 
develop resilience against their effects. 

 
5.10 Staffing 
 
5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
  
5.11 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
5.11.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
  
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 Service disruption has the potential to affect all wards and communities.  
 
7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1 BC – Business Continuity 
 EP – Emergency Planning 
 JEMS – Joint Emergency Management Service 
 CMT – Corporate Management Team 
 SMT – Service Manager Team 
 CBPS – Compass Point Business Services 
 

Background papers:- None 

 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post: Riana Rudland – Community Development and Health Manager 
Telephone Number: 07823553988 
Email: riana.rudland@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting  
Name and Post: Riana Rudland – Community Development and Health Manager 
 
Key Decision:   
No, report is for information only 
 
This report refers to a Mandatory Service  
 
 

Page 16



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Executive Director of Commissioning and Governance 
 
To: Governance and Audit Committee 
 
Author: Christopher Dean – National Management Trainee, Corporate Improvement 

& Performance Team 
 
Subject: Quarter 2 Risk Report 
 
Purpose: To update the committee on the state of risk management within the 

organisation 
 

Recommendation:  
 
1) That the report is noted. 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
 
1.1. The last risk report to the Governance and Audit Committee was in September 2014 and 

over the previous 3 months officers have continued to manage operational risks through 
service area risk registers.  Similarly, strategic risks although managed through CMT are 
held within the strategic risk register. 

 
1.2. The strategic and operational risk registers, for completeness are reviewed formally on a 

quarterly basis. In addition to this formal update officers, CMT and other stakeholders can 
include new, update or propose the removal of risks, in line with business needs at any 
time. 

 
1.3. The updated strategic risk register includes 9 strategic risks (see Appendix A). In the past, 

this report has been by exception, but as there are just 9 in total, all low, medium and high 
risks are included and available in this report. These cover the over-arching risks that may 
affect the strategic direction of the council, rather than risks linked to business continuity or 
those that affect discreet service areas. 

 
1.4. The review of strategic risk is a standing item on the CMT agenda (quarterly). 
 
1.5. Risks are grouped into two categories: 
 
1.5.1 Strategic risks that could affect the whole and long-term plan of the council, these risks 

could fundamentally affect upon: 
 

• Our reputation 

• The organisation we are 

• The dependable, accountable delivery of public services 
 

1.5.2 Operational risks concern the day-to-day activities in the delivery of functions and   
services. 
 

1.6. Risks use a 3 X 3 matrix through a numerical number that combines the impact score of the 
risk occurring, with the likelihood score of it happening.   

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I 
M 
P 
A 
C 
T 

High 

(3) 
3 6 9 

Medium 

(2) 
2 4 6 

Low 

(1) 
1 2 3 

 

Low 

(1) 

Medium 

(2) 

High 

(3) 

LIKELIHOOD 

 
1.7. Risks fall into High, Medium or Low categories depending on their rating: 
 

• High – rating of 6 or over 

• Medium – rating between 3 and 4 

• Low – rating of 2 or under 
 
These are also identified by the following colours within our performance management data 
entry workbooks and reports: 

 

High  

Medium  

Low  

 
1.8. Ideally all risks would be managed down to the ‘Low’ rating and this is attempted to be 

achieved through ‘controls’ that are put into place to reduce the likelihood of them occurring 
and/or the impact if they do happen. 

 
1.9. In addition to trying to ‘control’ risks, the fact that they may still occur has to be considered; 

therefore actions need to be identified to ‘mitigate’ any foreseeable damage that may occur 
as a result. 

 
 
 
 

Page 18



 
 
Risk Summary 
 
1.10 This risk summary covers two areas: 
 

• The risk summary table shows the total number of risks by category and the 
percentage of high, medium and low risks within each category. 

• The exceptions report, a detailed report to provide focus on high-level risks. 
 
The risk champions may wish to feedback to the committee on any areas they feel are of particular 
concern. 
 
Risk Summary Table (Previous ratings): 
 
The risk position at 30 June 2014 – Covering the period Quarter 1 2014/15 
 

Risk Category 
Total 

Number of 
Risks 

% Low Risks % Medium Risks % High Risks 

Strategic 9 11.11% (1) 55.56% (5) 33.33% (3) 

Operational 64 45.31% (29) 46.88% (30) 7.81% (5) 

 
Risk Summary Table (Current Ratings): 
 
The risk position at 30 September 2014 – Covering the period Quarter 2 2014/15 
  

Risk Category 
Total 

Number of 
Risks 

% Low Risks % Medium Risks 
% High Risks 

 

Strategic 9 11.11% (1) 55.56% (5) 33.33% (3) 

Operational 64 43.75% (28) 48.44% (31) 7.81% (5) 

 
This tells us that: 
 

• Strategic risks are predominantly medium 

• Strategic risks have not changed 

• Operational risks are predominantly medium and low level risks 

• No operational risks have closed 

• One operational risk has increased from a low to a medium rating within 
Human Resources 

 
Therefore: 
 

• Strategic Risk Overview: Overall rating is Medium 

• Operational Risk Overview: Overall rating is evenly spread across Medium 
and Low 

 
For Strategic Risks please see Appendix A. 
For the Exceptions Report on Operational risks please see Appendix B. 
 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 Not applicable - report is for information only.  Members are asked to note the report. 

Page 19



 
 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 This report will allow Governance and Audit the guarantee that risks for the Council be they 

Strategic or Operational are managed in an effective manner. 
 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 There are no expected benefits. 
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.  
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 Some of the risks are currently rated at Medium and High; should any of these risks occur 

there may be legal implications for the authority. 
 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.4 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.4.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.5 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.5.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 
5.6.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.7 Financial  
 
5.7.1 Some of the risks are currently rated at Medium and High; should any of these risks occur 

there may be financial implications for the authority. 
 
5.8 Health & Wellbeing 
 
5.8.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.9 Risk Management  
 
5.9.1 The report considers the authority’s Strategic and Operational risks. 
 
5.10 Staffing 
 
5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 

Page 20



  
5.11 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
5.11.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 No wards or communities are affected 
 
7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1 No acronyms have been used. 
 

Background papers:- None 

 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post:  Christopher Dean, National Management Trainee 
Telephone Number: 01775 764629 
Email: Christopher.dean@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting 
Name and Post:  Christopher Dean, National Management Trainee 
 
Key Decision:  No  
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
This report refers to a Discretionary Service 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
Appendix A  South Holland District Council Strategic Risk Register (Q2, 

2014-15) 
Appendix B Exceptions from South Holland District Council Operational Risk 

Register (Q2, 2014-15) 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Q2
2014/1

5

Service Area
R

is
k
 R

e
fe

re
n
c
e

D
a
te

s
 A

d
d
e
d

D
a
te

s
 C

lo
s
e
d

Risk Title Description Risk Consequences
Risk 

Owner 

Inherent

Risk 

Impact

Inherent

Risk

Likelihood

Inherent 

Risk 

Rating

Previous

Risk 

Impact   

2013/14

Previous

Risk

Likelihood   

2013/14

Previous 

Risk 

Rating   

2013/14

Previous 

Risk 

Letter   

2013/14

Proximity
Existing Controls (What is being 

done to avoid this)

R
is

k
 I

m
p
a
c
t

R
is

k
 L

ik
e
lih

o
o
d

R
is

k
 s

c
o
re

R
is

k
 L

e
tt

e
r

Comments

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

tr
a
v
e
l

Executive 

Director of Place S
 -

 0
1

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
4

Medium Term Financial 

Strategy.

Medium term financial 

strategy demonstrates a 

lack of sustainability 

over the medium term 

as a result of central 

government funding 

reductions. An efficiency 

programme, reviews or 

income streams need to 

be developed and 

implemented in order to 

address future funding 

gaps.

This would result in the 

need to make cuts or 

further efficiencies 

Julie 

Kennealy
3 3 9 3 3 9 H Ongoing

• Develop longer term 

transformation programme 

• Shared services 

• Financial planning

• Financial modelling 

• VFM/Efficiency Strategy 

• Reserves 

• Control of payroll costs  

• Lump sum payment to 

Lincolnshire County Council 

Pension Fund included in 

budget.

• Keep a watching brief on 

Central Govt measures to 

reduce impact of public sector 

pension schemes 

3 3 9 H

Reviewed by JK at end of September - unchanged but a 

variety of planned actions for October and November 

will be evaluated in terms of impact and incorprated into 

future reviews. In the meantime position will be 

monitored monthly.

��������

 Executive 

Director of 

Commissioning 

and Governance

S
 -

 0
2

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
4

Failure to deliver the 

Council's Corporate 

Priorities.

Failure to deliver the 

Council’s corporate 

priorities as set out in 

the corporate plan 2011 - 

15.

Would lead to missed 

targets and failure to 

deliver objectives and 

may result in the 

Council suffering 

reputational damage 

and a failure to deliver 

priorities to residents.

Maxine 

O'Mahony
2 2 4 2 2 4 M Ongoing

• Performance Management 

Framework development is 

continuing

• Regular performance reporting

• Corporate priorities reviewed 

and set against corporate plan

• Regular communication 

regarding performance 

communicated to all staff

• Preparation for a 4 year 

corporate plan starting 2015 has 

commenced

• Recruitment to vacant posts 

has commenced

▪ Review and restructure team 

to ensure corporate plan has 

regular reviews

2 2 4 M
Risk reviewed with MO 30/9, existing controls updated - 

no changes to socre identified.
��������

Executive 

Director of Place S
 -

 0
3

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
4

Reduction in discount in 

second year of local 

Council Tax Support 

Scheme leads to 

reduced collection of 

Council Tax.

Introduction of local 

Council Tax Support 

Scheme leads to 

reduced collection of 

Council Tax.

•  Lower Council Tax 

receipts

• Financial impact on 

Council budget  

• A reduction in the 

Council Tax base 

(caused by changes in 

number of claimants)

Julie 

Kennealy
3 3 9 2 3 6 H Ongoing

• Monitor collection through the 

monthly CPBS performance 

reports 

• Reserve created to help with 

potential initial pressures / 

timing pressures

• Review scheme - opportunity 

to amend on an annual basis.  

• After the first full year of 

running the new scheme there 

will be more data and statistics 

available in order to assess the 

long term impact of scheme 

changes 

2 2 4 M Reviewed with JK 30/9, no changes identified. ����

Executive 

Director of Place S
 -

 0
4

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
4

Business Rates 

Retention Scheme.

Business rates retention 

scheme leaves the 

Council exposed to 

changes  in the 

business tax base and 

collection performance.  

Exposure to los of rates 

if re-rating of power 

stations occurs

• Reduced levels of 

income 

• Financial impact on 

Council budget

Julie 

Kennealy
3 3 9 3 3 9 H Ongoing

• Monitor collection through the 

monthly CPBS performance 

reports 

• Reserve created to help with 

potential initial pressures / 

timing pressures

• After the first full year of 

running the new scheme there 

will be more data and statistics 

available in order to assess the 

long term impact of scheme 

changes 

• Outstanding appeal on two 

gas fired power stations could 

have a significant impact on 

retained business rates 

reducing income to safety net 

levels.   

3 3 9 H

Reviewed by JK at end of September - unchanged but a 

variety of planned actions for October and November 

will be evaluated in terms of impact and incorprated into 

future reviews. In the meantime position will be 

monitored monthly.

��������

South Holland District Council - Strategic Risks 2014/15

1

P
age 23



Q2
2014/1

5

Service Area
R

is
k
 R

e
fe

re
n
c
e

D
a
te

s
 A

d
d
e
d

D
a
te

s
 C

lo
s
e
d

Risk Title Description Risk Consequences
Risk 

Owner 

Inherent

Risk 

Impact

Inherent

Risk

Likelihood

Inherent 

Risk 

Rating

Previous

Risk 

Impact   

2013/14

Previous

Risk

Likelihood   

2013/14

Previous 

Risk 

Rating   

2013/14

Previous 

Risk 

Letter   

2013/14

Proximity
Existing Controls (What is being 

done to avoid this)

R
is

k
 I

m
p
a
c
t

R
is

k
 L

ik
e
lih

o
o
d

R
is

k
 s

c
o
re

R
is

k
 L

e
tt

e
r

Comments

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

tr
a
v
e
l

South Holland District Council - Strategic Risks 2014/15

Executive 

Director of Place S
 -

 0
5

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
4

Ending of Disabled 

Facilities Grants 

payments to district 

councils, with funds 

transferring to Better 

Care funding stream 

(integrated health and 

social care pot)  

Existing funding 

arrangements for DFG’s 

where central 

government makes a 

funding award directly to 

housing authorities each 

year will end in 14/15. 

And from 15/16 the 

funds will transfer to the 

Better Care funding 

regime. There will no 

longer be any dedicated 

funding for the Council 

to undertake this work – 

there will however 

remain a clear statutory 

responsibility to 

undertake disabled 

adaptations. There is an 

expectation that 

organisations involved 

will work together and 

make services more 

integrated                                                    

The Council will have to 

draw entirely  on its own 

existing available 

revenue  funding to 

meet the statutory 

requirements under 

DFG regulations

Julie 

Kennealy
2 2 4 2 2 4 M

Engage with appropriate 

stakeholders including LCC and 

the CCG to make the case that 

at least existing funding levels 

should be maintained and that 

the Council participates in 

devising proposals to integrate 

these services with health and 

social care providers.                                     

2 2 4 M Risk reviewed with JK 30/9, no changes identified ��������

Executive 

Director of Place S
 -

 0
7

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
4 Failure to contribute to 

the growth of existing 

businesses in the 

district. 

Failure to contribute to 

the growth of existing 

businesses in the 

districts and support 

inward investment. 

• Reduced business rate 

levels 

• Poor job growth 

• Poor resource 

efficiency 

• Poor investment by 

SME's

Julie 

Kennealy
1 2 2 1 2 2 L Ongoing

• Economic Development 

activity engaging with local 

business in order to provide 

support and assist development. 

• Grants for Growth - support for 

SMEs, providing practical help 

and financial assistance to help 

them reduce costs and increase 

competitiveness and resilience.

1 2 2 L Reviewed with JK 30/9, no changes identified. ��������

 Executive 

Director 

Commissioning 

and Governance

S
 -

 0
8

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
4

Failure to maximise 

trading opportunities.

Failure to maximise 

trading opportunities.

• Lack of exploitation of 

assets and 

opportunities, e.g. 

trading arms (CPBS) 

• Trading arms 

complicate the business 

Maxine 

O'Mahony
2 2 4 2 2 4 M Ongoing

• Business plans will be 

developed for all trading 

platforms / trading opportunities. 

• Support continued growth of 

Compass Point Business 

Services (CPBS) 

2 2 4 M Reviewed with MO 30/9, no changes identified. ��������

Executive 

Director of 

Commissioning 

and Governance

S
 -

 0
9

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
4 Staff recruitment and 

retention at all levels 

within both 

organisations 

Staff recruitment and 

retention at all levels 

within both 

organisations 

• Loss of key senior 

staff 

• Loss of staff in face of 

economic growth and 

more lucrative 

opportunities elsewhere 

• Loss of staff 

knowledge 

Maxine 

O'Mahony
3 2 6 3 2 6 H Ongoing

• Annual staff surveys regarding 

shared management and 

general staff issues.

• Programme of non-salary 

rewards to be introduced for 

staff, being looked at 2014/15

• Staff training

• Providing support for staff to 

have a voice within the authority 

- supporting the staff forum 

which provides staff with the 

opportunity to raise concerns. •  

Setting up a staff forum 

3 2 6 H Reviewed with MO 30/9, no changes identified. ��������

Assistant 

Director 

Commissioning S
 -

 1
1

0
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
4

Failure to effectively 

implement  corporate 

business continuity plan

Failure to effectively 

implement joint 

corporate business 

continuity plan

• Impact on delivery of 

services 

• Loss of IT systems

• Ineffective 

communication 

•  Failure to provide 

suitable premises 

•  Failure to provide 

suitable premises

Rob 

Walker
3 1 3 3 1 3 M Now

Business impact analysis in 

place; service areas have 

business continuity plans in 

place; business continuity plans 

to be tested; out of hours 

procedures in place; mutual aid 

/ support arrangements in place 

with Breckland Council and 

neighbouring authorities; 

business continuity plans 

reviewed on a regular basis 

through business continuity 

group.

3 1 3 M

Corporate Continuity Plan is on the CMT agenda for the 

13/10/2014.  There is no change to the current risk 

score. 

��������

2

P
age 24



Q2 14/15

Dept

D
a
te

 A
d
d
e
d

D
a
te

 C
lo

s
e
d

Risk Title Description Risk Consequences
Risk 

Owner

Inherent

Risk 

Impact

Inherent

Risk

Likelihood

Inherent 

Risk 

Rating

Previous

Risk 

Impact    

13/14

Previous

Risk

Likelihood    

13/14

Previous 

Risk 

Rating    

13/14

P
re

v
io

u
s
 R

is
k
 

L
e
tt

e
r 

  
 1

3
/1

4

Proximity
Existing controls (What is being 

done to avoid this?)

Mitigating actions (What will be 

done if this occurs?)

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

R
is

k
 

Im
p
a
c
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

R
is

k
 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o
d

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

R
is

k
 

s
c
o
re

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

R
is

k
 

L
e
tt

e
r

Comments

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l

Community 

Development

0
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
3

Loss of service through 

natural or manmade 

disaster (flood, fire, 

epidemic, riot etc), 

utilities breakdown, 

major equipment 

breakdown, building/ 

major equipment end of 

useful life

Loss of service through 

natural or manmade 

disaster (flood, fire, 

epidemic, riot etc), 

utilities breakdown, 

major equipment 

breakdown, building/ 

major equipment end of 

useful life

Loss of service 

including cancellation of 

events and hires

Loss of income

Reputational damage

Damage to irreplaceable 

heritage items/ building

Claims for loss of 

service (contractors/ 

leaseholders)

Cost of re-opening

Phil Perry 3 2 6 3 2 6 H unknown

• Maintenance budgets 

adequate and building 

management regimes are 

effective

• Risk assessment/ facilities 

management

• Business continuity planning

• Hire terms and conditions limit 

risk

• Corporate insurance 

provision???

• Capital investment 

programme/ repairs and 

renewals planning and 

programme

• Membership of regional 

partnership to limit impact of 

natural/ manmade disaster on 

irreplaceable collections 

(Ayscoughfee Museum)

• Revert to business continuity 

plan

• Working with users/ hirers/ 

partners to manage impact as 

much as reasonably possible

3 2 6 H
This risk has been reviewed and 

no changes identified. ��

Community 

Development

0
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
3

Loss of service through 

withdrawal of SHDC 

subsidy

Loss of service through 

withdrawal of SHDC 

subsidy

Closure/ partial closure 

of facilities/ services

Damage to irreplaceable 

heritage items/ building

Reduction in public 

benefit

Impact on town centre/ 

district economy

Impact on night-time 

economy (reduction in 

choice/ quality)

Loss of local/ regional/ 

national reputation

Repayment of grant 

income

Phil Perry 3 1 3 3 2 6 H unknown

• Evidencing public benefit and 

usage

• Development of business 

plans to increase capacity 

without increasing cost

• Partnership working on local, 

regional and national level

• Seeking other external funding

• Seeking ongoing political 

support and understanding

• Management of partial or full 

closure of facilities/ services
3 2 6 H

Transformation project and Task 

Group review ongoing. ��

Environmental 

Services

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
1
0

Burial Space

Lack of space for new 

burials as a result 

cemetery becoming full.

No space for burials in 

Spalding cemetery

Glen 

Chapman
2 2 4 3 2 6 H

• Detailed plan of spaces 

available.                                                                                          

• Acquisition of additional land 

that is to be available for use by 

December 2013. 

• Use alternative cemeteries 3 2 6 H

No changes to risk identified. 

Planning application for the 

cemetery is now published and 

outcome detailed next quarter. 

��

CPBS - Resilience - 

IT

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
3 Risk of reliance on 3rd 

Party Suppliers to 

deliver key elements of 

ICT systems.

Risk of reliance on 3rd 

Party Suppliers to 

deliver key elements of 

ICT systems.

IT Service unable to 

deliver to customers 

expectations and the 

service cannot control 

the pace of change.

Gary 

Stephens
3 2 6 3 2 6 H

 • SLA's are included in third 

party contracts however the 

SLA's can often be budget 

dependant.

Judgement to be taken on 

whether one-time payment 

appropriate.

3

2 6 H
This risk has been reviewed and 

no changes have been identified. ��

Member & Electoral 

Services

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
1
2

Capacity and processes 

to monitor section 106 

agreements

• Lost financial 

opportunities 

• Legal challenge from 

developers

• Challenge from the 

community

Thomson, 

Vicky
2 2 4 3 2 6 H

•  Allocation of resources to be 

decided 

•  Appointment of LSC

3 2 6 H
This risk has been reviewed and 

there are no changes required. ��

South Holland District Council - Operational Risks 2014/15

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Duncan Hall - Shared Housing Manager 
 
To: Governance and Audit Committee – 18 December 2014 
 
(Author: Richard Scorthorne - Housing Landlord Manager 
 
Subject: Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Draft 2015-16 Estimates 
 
Purpose: To consider the draft service estimates for 2015-16  
 

Recommendation: 
  

This report is for information only 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 

1.1 The appendices to this report outline the draft 2015-16 revenue and capital estimates for 

 the Housing Revenue Account; the outline capital programme through to 2019-20 and the 

 30 year HRA operating account. 
 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 For information only 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 

3.1  To comply with the budget and policy framework. 
 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 

4.1 To set rents to comply with the statutory period of notice to tenants, and to provide an early 

view on the financial position of the Housing Revenue Account.) 
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 Carbon Footprint/Environmental Issues implications have been considered, and in the 

opinion of the report writer, there are none. 
 
5.2  Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 Constitution and Legal implications have been considered, and in the opinion of the report 

writer, there are none. 
 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 Contracts implications have been considered and in the opinion of the report writer, there 

are none. 
 
5.4 Corporate Priorities 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5.



 
5.4.1 Corporate Priorities implications have been considered and in the opinion of the report 

writer, there are none.  
 
5.5 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.5.1 Crime and Disorder implications have been considered and in the opinion of the report 

writer, there are none. 
 
5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 
5.6.1 Equality and Diversity/Human Rights implications have been considered and in the opinion 

of the report writer, there are none. 
 
5.7 Financial  
 
5.7.1 Financial implications have been considered and in the opinion of the report writer there are 

none. 
 
5.8 Health & Wellbeing 
 
5.8.1  Health and Wellbeing implications have been considered and in the opinion of the report 

writer, there are none.  
 
5.9 Risk Management  
 
5.9.1 Risk Management implications have been considered and in the opinion of the report writer, 

there are none. 
 
5.10 Staffing 
 
5.10.1 Staffing implications have been considered and in the opinion of the report writer, there are 

none. 
  
5.11 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 

5.11.1 The Council will consult on this draft HRA budget prior to final approval in January 2015. 

 Prior to final approval, the draft budget and business plan will be reviewed by the 
 Governance and Audit Committee.  
 
 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 The implications cover all wards). 
 
7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1 HRA -Housing Revenue Account 
 

Background papers:- None 

 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post:  Richard Scorthorne Housing Landlord Manager  

Page 28



Telephone Number: 01775 764671 
Email: Rscorthorne@sholland.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting 
Name and Post:  Duncan Hall - Shared Housing Manager 

Richard Scorthorne - HRA Landlord Manager 
Alison Wild - Senior Business Partner 

 
Key Decision:  No 
 
Exempt Decision: No  
 
This report refers to a Mandatory Service 
 
Appendix A,  
Appendix B1 
Appendix B2  
Appendix C   

Draft 2015/16 HRA Budget and 30 Year Business Plan 
HRA Fees and Charges 
Draft Service Charges 2015/16 
HRA Business Plan Operating Account 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

APPENDIX A 
Draft  2015-16 HRA Budget and 30 Year Business Plan 
 
1. Executive Summary 

• Draft budgets have been prepared for 2015-16. These will be updated and 
presented to Cabinet at its January meeting. 

• Expenditure Budget 2015-16 £17.885m (2014-15 £17.766m) an increase of 
0.24% 

• Income Budget 2015-16 £17.738m (2013-14 £16.936m) an increase of 
1.09%. 

• Stock numbers as at 1 April 2014 (excluding shared ownership properties) 
were 3,864. Stock numbers expected to be 3,861 at 1 April 2015 and in 
addition 17 new builds/ non original stock additions at affordable rent. 

• Proposed average weekly dwelling rents in 2015-16 to increase by 2.2% 
(2014-15 7.06%) line with  Government guidelines CPI +1% (2.2%). 

• Interest of £2.347m 2015-16 (£2.347m 2014-15) has been included on HRA 
self-financing debt of £67.456m. 

• Revenue financing of the Capital Programme is included at £7.130m. 

• The Supported Housing Service new service has been running since April 
2014 

• Rents will be collected over 52 weeks, not 50 weeks, for 2015-16 onwards. 
This will result in a lower weekly charge, but there will not be any rent free 
weeks.  

• Average rent proposed for existing dwelling rents £77.95 (52 weeks) 
compared to actual rent £76.27 (52 weeks). This was approved on a 50 
week basis for 14-15, at £79.33 per week.  

• Average affordable rent for new builds and newly acquired properties will be 
£99.44 per week over 52 weeks, compared to actual rent £97.30 over 52 
weeks. Affordable rent is estimated at 80% of market rent.  

 
2. Introduction 
 
This appendix outlines the 2015-16 budgets for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
and sets out the proposals for the setting of rent and discretionary fees and charges.  
 
The HRA is a ring-fenced account, which means that it may not be supported by the 
General Fund and Council Tax or vice-versa.  Expenditure and income that may be 
charged to the account are defined either by statute or regulation.  The HRA is not 
permitted by law to be in deficit.  The HRA holds balances at 1 April 2014 of £6.835m 
with an additional £200k in reserve for insurance. 
 
The HRA set a net expenditure budget for 2015-16 of £0.147m (2014-15 £0.830 m). 
The latest forecast  for 2014-15 is for an in-year surplus of £1.065m, which includes a 
forecast capital programme slippage of £1.757m giving an estimated balance of 
£5.847m at 1 April 2015 (as at Quarter two forecast). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



 2 

Housing Revenue Account Reserves Unallocated Amount 
Available  £’000  

2014-15 
Insurance Reserve 200 
Sub total  200 

Cumulative Working Balance  5,213 
Outturn  2,860 

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis 
under statute (1,238) 

Balance on the HRA at 31.3.14 6,835 

Total HRA unallocated reserves at 31.3.14 7,035 

  

(830) Approved HRA budget 2014-15 

Rollover of capital programme from 2013-14 approved 
Q1 (2,253) 

Forecast Surplus (investment income) 18 

Quarter 2 forecast net budget savings 120 

Revision to capital programme Q2 1,757 

Total HRA unallocated reserves forecast at 31.3.15 5,847 

 
 
3. Integrated Business Planning and Budgeting 
As part of the Council’s integrated planning and performance framework, the budget 
and business planning process links to our corporate priorities. The business plans 
for each service reflect how we will deliver our corporate priorities over the next five 
years. Heads of Service have prepared their budgets to reflect their plans and 
strategies and are in accordance with the principles outlined in the Council’s Medium 
Term Financial Plan (MTFP). 
 
 In my opinion, as S151 officer, the estimates for 2015-16 are robust and the level 
of reserves adequate. A sensitivity analysis has been carried out on the key 
components of the budget. 
 
In addition to adopting the main principles incorporated in the MTFP, budget holders 
have also followed the principles of the 30 year HRA Business Plan in preparing their 
estimates. Planned maintenance budgets are in line with expenditure needed to 
achieve and maintain Decent Homes Plus standard. Rent increases are in line with 
the Government guidelines.  
 
 
 
The estimates have been prepared in accordance with the Housing Strategy, so that 
resources are directed towards HRA priorities. The Council’s key priorities for 
housing are: 
 

• To provide more high quality affordable housing 

• Target capital expenditure on the Council housing stock to continue to achieve 
the decent homes standard 

• Reduce the incidence of homelessness  

• Work with others in support of the housing needs of the district. 
The 30 year HRA business plan finance model becomes more important as the 
Council has to rely on its own resources to maintain a positive HRA Reserve given 
the constraints of the Housing Debt Cap £74.701m .  

Page 32



 3 

 
4. Consultation and Scrutiny 
The Council will consult on this draft HRA budget prior to final approval in January 
2015. The draft budget and business plan will be reviewed by Governance and 
Audit Committee.  
 
5. Value for Money 
A review will be undertaken of how costs associated with ancillary services are 
dealt with, to ensure a consistent and equitable approach is applied across the 
Council's housing stock. Any proposed changes will be within the limits of the rent 
income formula. As part of this review, it will be important to track and consider the 
impact on tenants of any changes to housing benefit regulations, specifically 
on some services potentially no longer being 'eligible' for the purposes of housing 
benefit. 
 
6. Supported Housing  
 
The contractual arrangements with Lincolnshire County Council for the Supported 
Housing service ceased from 1 April 2014. SHDC provide the new “intensive 
landlord” service, funded through service charges and recharges. This service will 
undergo an annual review after its first year of operation.  
 
 
7. Draft HRA Estimates for 2015-16 
 
The following table shows the HRA estimates by type of spend presented as 
required by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. 

Description 

2014-15 
Estimate 

£'000 

2015-16 
Estimate 

£'000 
Variance 

£'000 
Variance 

% Ref 
Employees 2,310 2,450 140 0.06 7.1 
Premises 2,362 2,675 313 0.13 7.2 
Transport 287 283 (4) (0.01) 7.3 

Supplies & Services 1,994 2,096 102 0.05 7.4 
Third Party Payments 600 600 0 0.00 7.5 
Support Services  242 253 11 0.00 7.6 
Depreciation 1,600 1,596 (4) 0.00 7.7 

Direct Revenue Financing 6,001 5,534 (467) 0.00 7.7 
Financing 2,370 2,398 28 0.01 7.8 

Total Expenditure 17,766 17,885 119 0.24  

      
Rents (15,341) (15,736) (395) 0.03 7.9 
Fees & Charges (1,212) (1,210) 2 0.00 7.10 

Recharges (383) (792) (409) 1.07 7.11 

Total Income (16,936) (17,738) (802) 1.09  

      

 830 147 (683) (1)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



 4 

7.1 Employee Costs 
The estimates are based on the approved establishment as at 1st September 2014 
For 2015-16 employees are budgeted at 98% of establishment, to take account of 
staff turnover ratios. The estimates assume pay award for 2.2% 2015-16 and CSU 
craft pay award agreed for Craft operatives . The reduction in budget also reflects 
the change in the Supported Housing Service.  
 
7.2 Premises Costs 
The premises budgets include the repair and maintenance costs of the Council’s 
housing stock, both planned and responsive, and are in line with the HRA 
Business Plan in order to achieve the Decent Homes Plus standard. The increase 
in budget relates to and additional amount for damp proofing £15k and materials 
for void repairs (£285k) kitchen and bathroom upgrades, fully rechargeable to the 
capital programme £400k.  
 
7.3 Transport Costs 
Transport costs relate to the mileage costs and lump sums payable to officers as 
well as vehicle contract payments. Lease arrangements for the CSU vehicles, 
reflect in the estimates for 2015-16. 
 
7.4 Supplies and Services 

 The impairment allowance for bad debts has been assumed to increase by £8k in 
2015-16 to £393k, as a result of Welfare Reforms. Significant items not included 
last year are CSU vehicle tracking software licence costs £50k, materials for 
kitchen and bathroom upgrades in voids £108k (fully rechargeable to the capital 
programme) and £60k for sheltered housing carpet replacement. Some of this cost 
is offset by savings in professional fees and miscellaneous expenses £150k. 
 
7.5 Third Party Payments 
Third party payments represent payments for the back office services provided by 
Compass Point Business Services (East Coast) Ltd (CPBS) and legal services 
provided by Lincolnshire Legal.  
 
7.6 Support Services 
Central support service charges are for services provided by the central Council 
departments, such as communications, risk and performance management. 
 
7.7 Capital Charges and Capital Financing (DRF) 
Depreciation is shown as a charge over the useful life of the Council asset. This is a 
notional charge to the accounts.  Direct revenue financing (DRF), is the way that the 
HRA finances the majority of the Capital programme spend. A provisional 
contribution of £7.130m has been made from revenue to finance the draft 2014-15 
HRA Capital Programme (See Section 9-Capital Programme). This is a reduction of 
£467k compared to 2014-15.  
 
7.8 Financing 
Interest of £2.347m 2015-16 (£2.347m 2014-15) has been included on HRA self-
financing debt of £67.456m, the remainder being notional internal borrowing. 
 

Income 
The majority of income comes from weekly rents of the housing stock. The 
estimates take account of the proposed increases in housing rent levels and other 
rents and charges.  

Page 34



 5 

 
7.9 Rent 
Rent levels for 2015-16 have been increased in line with Government’s guidance. 
For 2015-16 the draft estimates are increased by 2.2% (CPI+ 1%).  
 

 
 
The proposed average rent for 2015-16 is therefore £77.95 (52 weeks). The 
current average rent of £79.32 (50 weeks) which is only fractionally above the 
£79.33 average rent figure reported in January 2014 due to revised rents following 
relet at formula rent in line with the Council’s policy).  
 
 
During 21014-15 rent was collected with 2 rent free periods. During 2015-16 there 
will not be any rent free weeks, spreading the cost to tenants, including sheltered 
housing. Tenants will pay a lower amount throughout the year, as opposed to a 
higher amount over 50 weeks. This proposal was outlined in the rent setting report 
approved in January 2014. 
 
7.10 Fees and Charges   
Charges for sewerage are increased in line with the annual increase applied by 
Anglian Water. Currently, the HRA funds a shortfall of around £215,000 that being 
the difference between the expenditure incurred in operating the sewage treatment 
service, and the income recovered through sewage charges. Further legal work 
may be undertaken to establish where the Council may increase its charges. 
Subject to this work being concluded, it is anticipated that charges will be 
increased to close the gap in the subsidy the HRA provides. 
 
It is proposed to increase some of the fees and charges in 2015-16 for Sheltered 
Housing in line with rent increases. The service charges for the Community 
facilities and Intensive Landlord Sheltered Housing service charges  detailed in 
Appendix B, include a 2.2% increase payable over 52 weeks. Alarm monitoring 
charges will stay the same fee per week, but will be payable over 52 weeks, as 
opposed to 50 weeks during 2014-15.  
 
Transitional Relief 
The Sheltered Housing budget is a ring-fenced account within the HRA and is 
expected to cover its costs. The alarm monitoring service draft 2015-16 estimate, is 
estimated to return a surplus of £42k. Where tenants are not on Housing Benefit, a 
discretionary transitional relief scheme has been applied over 3 years (2015-16 year 
2), so that the Service charge cost is phased in with the full service charge being met 
by the tenant by year 4. The cost of the Transitional Relief is a cost to the HRA and 
has been built into the draft estimates 2015-16 and 30 year Business Plan. 
Transitional Relief costs are estimated at £15.7k year 1, £10.5k  year 2 (2015-16), 
£5.2k year 3. 
 
Service Charges are listed in Appendix B  

Page 35



 6 

 
7.11 Recharges 
Support service recharges and internal recharges show under this category. The 
variance between the 2014-15 and 2015-16 recharge budget is due to the kitchen 
and bathroom recharge of works carried out by the CSU, to the capital programme. 
The expenditure is shown in supplies and services and premises costs. 
 
 
8. Forward Estimates  
The Council has modelled the HRA financial plans over a thirty year period using a 
business planning tool provided by Sector. This models the estimated expenditure 
and income associated with the HRA over this period and shows what funds are 
available to support the asset management strategy. The 2015-16 model indicates 
that the Council’s financial plan is viable, meeting and maintaining identified capital 
investment in accordance with stock condition survey and maintaining a viable 
revenue account throughout the life of the business plan, with surpluses accruing. 
 
The 30 Year Operating Account is attached at Appendix C.  
 
9. Capital Programme 
The Council prepares a rolling five year capital programme, approved annually 
before the start of the year. The changes to the HRA financing regime potentially 
provide wide ranging options for the HRA’s capital investment programme. As a 
result a baseline programme has been prepared, which presents an affordable 
programme of new build, major repairs, disabled adaptations and other capital 
spend. This is set out in the following table. This is based upon the major repairs 
programme produced from stock condition information and is in line with current 
asset management plans.  
 
The Business Plans indicates that surpluses will be available for investment in 
HRA stock. Members will wish to consider options for further investment arising 
from the business plan report and these will be included into this baseline 
programme as they are approved 

 
 

 
 

Page 36



 7 

 
10. Risk/Sensitivity 
The Council must set a budget for the HRA, which is a realistic statement of its 
estimated income and expenditure for the coming year based upon information 
currently available. The HRA cannot, by law, be in deficit. As a ring-fenced account 
the HRA maintains its own reserves. The minimum level of working capital 
balances is set at £1.5m. In addition, the HRA holds an amount of £200k 
earmarked for insurance payments.  
 
Key risk areas which impact on the HRA are as follows: 

 

Financial Management - As service budgets are reduced it is imperative that 
sound financial management practices are adopted by budget managers to avoid 
potential overspends and to identify issues swiftly so that they can be dealt with 
promptly. 
 
Housing Policy - Policy and practice within the HRA will be comprehensively 
reviewed, in consultation with tenants, in the light of the opportunities in the 
Localism Act. These will be fully costed and the financial impact on the business 
plan assessed.  
 
Welfare Reforms- Welfare Reforms-The Governments’ Welfare Reforms began 
implementation at the beginning of April 2013. The Under Occupancy Charge and 
the Benefits Cap came into effect in April 2013. Universal Credit will start to be 
rolled out in South Lincolnshire from 23rd March 2015. The reduction in Housing 
Benefit entitlement for those tenants under occupying their homes and the 
reduction in benefit for tenants affected by the benefits has started to have an 
impact on rent collected by the Housing Management Team. The level of arrears is 
being closely monitored and staff training has been organised for January 2015 to 
further improve arrears management and rent collection. There is uncertainty over 
the impact the Universal Credit will have. There are likely to be restrictions on the 
opportunity to arrange direct payments of benefit to the Council. It will be important 
to closely monitor the payment of rent through the new benefit over the months 
ahead. 
Future Government Policy – The HRA 30 year Business Plan is based on current 
Government policy, which is likely to change over the life of the plan. The plan is 
reviewed and updated . 
 
Housing Growth Company- The Council is currently working on a business plan 
for a Housing Growth Company. This may potentially impact on the HRA business 
plan.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

HRA FEES AND CHARGES
Proposed Fees and Charges for the
Sheltered Accommodation Service

charge 
2013-14

£

Hire of Community Centres (Per Hour)  - VAT 
exempt

       Hire of Centre for Day Care 10.50 10.50 10.50 10.50 -         
       Hire of Centre (community rate) 10.50 10.50 10.50 10.50 -         
       Hire of Centre (commercial rate) 16.25 16.25 16.25 16.25 -         

Charge for Hire of Kitchen at Centre             10.50 12.50 12.50 12.50 -         
Hire of Guest Room (per night) -  including 
VAT at Standard Rate – Tenant Guests
       -  Non En suite room 15.00 16.00 16.00 16.00 -         
       -  En suite room 18.00 19.00 19.00 19.00 -         
       -  Homelessness  21.00 22.00 22.00 22.00 -         
Water Charges (Per Week)
       Trinity Court – (No’s 1-21) 2.21 2.21 2.13 2.13 -         
       Trinity Court – (No’s 22) 2.97 2.97 2.86 2.86 -         
       Glen Haven – (No’s 1-12) 3.02 3.02 2.90 2.90 -         
       Glen Haven – (6a) 3.52 3.52 3.38 3.38 -         
       Nene Court (No’s 1-12, 17-22,25-30) 1.05 1.05 1.01 1.01 -         
       Nene Court (No’s 23 & 24) 1.09 1.09 1.05 1.05 -         
       Nene Court (No’s 13 - 16 & 31 - 34) 1.24 1.24 1.19 1.19 -         
Heating Charges (Per Week)
      Glen Haven (No’s 1 - 12) 10.73 10.73 10.32 10.32 -         
      Glen Haven (6a) 12.49 12.49 12.01 12.01 -         
       Nene Court (No’s 1-12, 17-22,25-30) 3.95 3.95 3.80 3.80 -         
       Nene Court (No’s 23 & 24) 4.10 4.10 3.94 3.94 -         
       Nene Court (No’s 13 - 16 & 31 - 34) 4.68 4.68 4.50 4.50 -         

70 71 71 71 -         

140 140 140 140 -         

35 62 62 62 -         

65 50 50 50 -         

35 41 41 41 -         

     - Urgent Replacement (1 key) 21 22 22 22 -         
     - Urgent Replacement (2 keys) 28 31 31 31 -         
     - Non-Urgent Replacement (1 key or more 
each key)

10 11 11 11 -         

HRA FEES AND CHARGES
Proposed Fees and Charges for the
Sheltered Accommodation Service

Replacement pendant – including VAT at 
Standard Rate (where applicable)

Recharge of lost lifeline Equipment – including 
VAT at Standard Rate.

Charge 
2014/15 

50 weeks

% 
Increase

Supply and Fit Key Safe – including VAT at 
Standard Rate

Proposed 
Charge 
2015/16 

52 weeks

Charge 
2014/15 

52 weeks

Increases in the charges for guest rooms are proposed as shown above. In line with fees and charges for
the meeting rooms at the South Holland Centre it is proposed that theses remain the same. 

Water and sewerage charges for sheltered housing residents have been reviewed. The charges are set to
recover the estimated cost in 2015-16

Where communal heating is provided costs are recharged to tenants based on the previous year’s estimated 
expenditure.

Where items are fitted or recharged to residents, these proposed charges represent full cost recovery.

Supply and Fit Door Chain – including VAT at 
Standard Rate

Supply and Fit Replacement lock with keys – 
including VAT at Standard Rate

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B
Draft Service Charges 2015/16

2014 15 
Rebased 
52 weeks

2014 15 
Rebased 52 

weeks
Proposed 
2015 16 

Proposed 
2015 16 

Alarm 
Monitoring

Intensive 
Landlord

Community 
Facilities

Intensive 
Landlord

Community 
Facilities

Poplar Court 12 2.80 5.60 -               5.72 -                
Willders Garth 10 2.80 5.77 -               5.9 -                
Churchgate 20 2.80 5.77 -               5.9 -                
Moulton 15 2.80 5.77 -               5.9 -                
Alderlands Close 10 2.80 5.77 -               5.9 -                
Chappell Road 16 2.80 5.77 -               5.9 -                
Cowley Road 15 2.80 5.77 -               5.9 -                
Sheppersons Avenue 9 2.80 5.77 -               5.9 -                
Charles Road 16 2.80 5.78 -               5.91 -                
Irby Crescent 20 2.80 5.77 0.25             5.9 0.26
St. Margarets 18 2.80 6.16 -               6.3 -                
Dozens Bank 12 2.80 6.57 -               6.71 -                
Lyndis Walk 50 2.80 6.06 5.57             6.19 5.69
Sezanne, Speyer & 
Parkside 112 2.80 5.84 5.57             5.97 5.69
Brownlow/Glen Ave 38 2.80 5.78 5.57             5.91 5.69
Spring Gardens 99 2.80 5.90 5.57             6.03 5.69
Lime Court 123 2.80 5.90 5.57             6.03 5.69

Thames, Severn, Wensum 60 2.80 5.78 5.57             5.91 5.69
Cecil Pywell 64 2.80 5.89 5.57             6.02 5.69
St. Matthews Drive 63 2.80 5.86 5.57             5.99 5.69
Linden Court 43 2.80 5.88 5.57             6.01 5.69
Fleet 33 2.80 5.77 5.57             5.9 5.69
St. Mary's Gardens 33 2.80 5.78 5.57             5.91 5.69
Weston 33 2.80 5.88 5.57             6.01 5.69
Arthurs Avenue 34 2.80 7.14 5.57             7.3 5.69
Nene Court 34 2.80 11.57 10.64           11.82 10.87
Glen Haven 13 2.80 23.04 10.64           23.55 10.87
Trinity Court 18 2.80 19.32 10.64           19.75 10.87
Total

Property Name

No. of 
properties

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Annual Audit Letter 
2013/14

South Holland District Council 

October 2014

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 6.



1© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Contents

This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their 
individual capacities, or to third parties. The Audit Commission has issued a document entitled Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies. This 

summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end and what is expected from the audited body. We draw your attention to this document which is available 
on the Audit Commission’s website at www.auditcommission.gov.uk.

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted 
in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should contact Neil Bellamy, the appointed engagement lead to the 
Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with your response please contact Trevor Rees on 0161 246 4000, or by email to 

trevor.rees@kpmg.co.uk, who is the national contact partner for all of KPMG’s work with the Audit Commission. After this, if you are still dissatisfied with how your 
complaint has been handled you can access the Audit Commission’s complaints procedure. Put your complaint in writing to the Complaints Unit Manager, Audit 

Commission,  3rd Floor, Fry Building, 2 Marsham Street, London, SW1P 4DF or by email to complaints@audit-commission.gsi.gov.uk. Their telephone number is 0303 4448 
330.

The contacts at KPMG 
in connection with this 
report are:

Neil Bellamy
Director
KPMG LLP (UK)
Tel: 0116 256 6082 
neil.bellamy@kpmg.co.uk

Helen Brookes
Manager
KPMG LLP (UK)
Tel: 0115 945 4476
helen.brookes@kpmg.co.uk

Jon Machej
Assistant Manager
KPMG LLP (UK)
Tel: 0115 935 3430
jon.machej@kpmg.co.uk

Page

Report sections

■ Headlines 2

Appendices

1. Summary of reports issued

2. Audit fees

4

5

P
age 46

mailto:trevor.rees@kpmg.co.uk


2© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Section one
Headlines

This report summarises the 
key findings from our 
2013/14 audit of South 
Holland District Council (the 
Authority). 

Although this letter is 
addressed to the Members 
of the Authority, it is also 
intended to communicate 
these issues to key external 
stakeholders, including 
members of the public.  

Our audit covers the audit of 
the Authority’s 2013/14 
financial statements and the 
2013/14 VFM conclusion.

All the issues in this letter 
have been previously 
reported. The detailed 
findings are contained in the 
reports we have listed in 
Appendix 1.

VFM conclusion We issued an unqualified conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements to secure value for money (VFM conclusion) for 
2013/14 on 26 September 2014. This means we are satisfied that you have proper arrangements for securing 
financial resilience and challenging how you secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

To arrive at our conclusion we looked at your financial governance, financial planning and financial control processes,
as well as how you are prioritising resources.

VFM risk areas We identified a single specific risk to our VFM conclusion and considered the arrangements you have put in place to 
mitigate this. We critically assessed the controls the Authority has in place to ensure sound financial standing and 
reviewed how the Authority is planning and managing its savings plans.
We concluded that we did not need to carry out additional work for this risk as there was sufficient relevant work that 
had been completed by the Authority in relation to this risk area.

Audit opinion We issued an unqualified opinion on your financial statements on 26 September 2014. This means that we believe
the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority and of its expenditure and
income for the year.

Financial statements 
audit

We identified no issues in the course of the audit that are considered to be material.

The Authority has robust processes in place for the production of the accounts and has built upon the improvements 
made last year. We noted that the Authority has maintained a thorough internal review process resulting in the draft 
set of accounts and accompanying working papers being of an excellent quality.

Officers were proactive in dealing with audit queries throughout the audit process meaning responses were timely 
and of a good standard resulting in fewer follow-up queries. The above factors facilitated a smooth audit process 
which has been completed within the planned timescales.

Annual Governance 
Statement

We reviewed your Annual Governance Statement and concluded that it was consistent with our understanding.

Certificate We issued our certificate on 26 September 2014.

The certificate confirms that we have concluded the audit for 2013/14 in accordance with the requirements of the
Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice.

Audit fee Our fee for 2013/14 was £59,382, excluding VAT. This includes an increase of £900 for additional work required in
regards to the accounting entries for NNDR due to the removal of certification requirements of the NNDR3 return.
Further detail is contained in Appendix 2.

P
age 47



3© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Appendices
Appendix 1: Summary of reports issued

This Appendix summarises 
the reports we issued since 
our last Annual Audit Letter.

2014

January

February

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

Auditor’s Report (September 2014)

The Auditor’s Report included our audit opinion on 
the financial statements, our VFM conclusion and 
our certificate.

Annual Audit Letter (October 2014)

This Annual Audit Letter provides a summary of the 
results of our audit for 2013/14.

External Audit Plan (February 2014)

The External Audit Plan set out our approach to the 
audit of the Authority’s financial statements and to 
work to support the VFM conclusion. 

Certification of Grants and Returns           
(January 2014)

This report summarised the outcome of our 
certification work on the Authority’s 2012/13 grants 
and returns.

Report to Those Charged with Governance 
(September 2014)

The Report to Those Charged with Governance 
summarised the results of our audit work for 
2013/14 including key issues raised as a result of 
our observations.

We also provided the mandatory declarations 
required under auditing standards as part of this 
report.

Audit Fee Letter (March 2014)

The Audit Fee Letter set out the proposed audit 
work and draft fee for the 2014/15 financial year. 

P
age 48



4© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This 
document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Appendices
Appendix 2: Audit fees

To ensure openness between KPMG and your Governance and Audit 
Committee about the extent of our fee relationship with you, we have 
summarised the outturn against the 2013/14 planned audit fee.

External audit

Our final fee for the 2013/14 audit of the Authority was  £59,382. This 
compares to a planned fee of £58,482. The reason for this variance is:

■ an additional fee of £900 to cover extra work undertaken on National 
Non Domestic Rates (NNDR). To deliver our 2013/14 audit opinion 
there were two elements of our work that we have previously carried 
out while certifying LA01 (the NNDR3 return to government), and 
relied upon for our opinion audit. In 2013/14, as a result of there 
being no certification of the NNDR3 return, we have had to carry out 
this work as additional procedures to our opinion audit. This is offset 
by there no longer being a separate certification fee for the NNDR3 
return.

Certification of grants and returns

Our grants work is still ongoing and the fee will be confirmed through our 
report on the Certification of Grants and Returns 2013/14 which we are 
due to issue in January 2015.

This Appendix provides 
information on our final fees 
for 2013/14.

58,482 59,382 

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

Audit

Planned Actual

External audit fees 2013/14 (£)

P
age 49



© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK public limited liability partnership and a member firm 
of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG 
International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

The KPMG name, logo and ‘cutting through complexity’ are registered 
trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative (KPMG 
International).

P
age 50



External audit progress 
report and technical 

update

South Holland District Council
November 2014

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 7.



1© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is 
confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

External audit progress report and technical update – November 2014

This report provides the 
Audit and Governance 
Committee with an overview 
on progress in delivering our 
responsibilities as your 
external auditors.

The report also highlights 
the main technical issues 
which are currently having 
an impact in local 
government. 

If you require any additional 
information regarding the 
issues included within this 
report, please contact a 
member of the audit team.

We have flagged the articles 
that we believe will have an 
impact at the Authority and 
given our perspective on the 
issue:

 High impact

 Medium impact

 Low impact

 For info

PROGRESS REPORT

Progress Report 4

KPMG RESOURCES

KPMG/Shelter report: Fix the housing shortage or see house prices quadruple in 20 years 6

TECHNICAL UPDATE

National Audit Office consultation: Draft Code of Audit 
Practice for the audit of local public bodies  8 VFM data briefing on expenditure on looked after children

 13

Invitation to Comment and Simplification and 
Streamlining the Presentation of Local Authority 
Financial Statements  8

VFM data briefings on managing council property assets
 14

Audit Commission consultation: 2015/16 Proposed 
Work Programme and Scales of Fees  8

Tool launched to help councils compare care 
performance on social care  15

Audit Commission calls for improved quality and 
accuracy in grant and subsidy claims and returns  9

Distribution of National Fraud Initiative (NFI) information 
packs to elected members at councils in England  15

2014/15 work programme and scales of fees for the 
National Fraud Initiative  10 The NAO’s role in local audit

 16

Public Accounts Committee report – Local government 
funding: assurance to Parliament  11 Funding healthcare: Making allocations to local areas 

(NAO report)  16

Government plans to regulate public sector exit payments
 11 Local government funding: Assurance to Parliament 

(NAO report)  16

Consultation on Local Government Pension Scheme
 12 Maintaining strategic infrastructure: roads (NAO report)

 16

Government publishes response on local authority 
parking strategies  12

Tenfold difference in outsource spending revealed (Local 
Government Chronicle article)  17

Update to VFM profiles – Children & Young People 
 13

P
age 52



2© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is 
confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

External audit progress report and technical update – October 2014

This report provides the 
Audit and Governance 
Committee with an overview 
on progress in delivering our 
responsibilities as your 
external auditors.

The report also highlights 
the main technical issues 
which are currently having 
an impact in local 
government. 

If you require any additional 
information regarding the 
issues included within this 
report, please contact a 
member of the audit team.

We have flagged the articles 
that we believe will have an 
impact at the Authority and 
given our perspective on the 
issue:

 High impact

 Medium impact

 Low impact

 For info

APPENDIX

Appendix 1 – 2013/14 audit deliverables 19

P
age 53



Progress report

P
age 54



4© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is 
confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

External audit progress report – October 2014

This document provides the 
Audit and Governance 
Committee with a high level 
overview on progress in 
delivering our 
responsibilities as your 
external auditors.

At the end of each stage of 
the audit we issue certain 
deliverables, including 
reports and opinions. A 
summary of progress 
against these deliverable is 
provided in Appendix 1 of 
this report. 

2014/15 Audit - Summary 
of work planned in the 
next quarter

We are about to start work on planning the 2014/15 audit and our work over the coming quarter will 
include: 
 ongoing liaison with finance staff to discuss relevant current and emerging issues in respect of 

the  accounts and value for money;
 meeting with Executive Officers as part of the detailed planning process to better understand the 

current and longer term issues that the organisation is addressing;
 liaising with internal audit with a view to maximising audit efficiency (whilst recognising the 

differences in our roles);
 updating our audit risk assessments and developing our detailed draft Audit Plan which we 

expect to submit to the Audit and Governance Committee early in 2015. This will set out the 
scope of the audit in more detail.

At this stage our planning is likely to include particular focus on:
• the Authority’s arrangements in relation to the two Audit Commission specified Value for Money 

criteria (that is, its arrangements for securing financial resilience and challenging how it secures 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness); 

• the impact on our audit of any changes to the accounts as a result of central guidance; and  
• any learning opportunities from the 2013/14 audit which we can use to improve the process in 

2014/15.  

P
age 55



KPMG resources

P
age 56



6© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is 
confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

KPMG resources

Area Comments

KPMG/Shelter 
report: Fix the 
housing shortage 
or see house prices 
quadruple in 20 
years

Without a radical programme of house building, average house prices in England could double in just ten years to £446,000, according to 
new research. In twenty years they could quadruple, with the average house price estimated to rise to over £900,000 by 2034 if current 
trends continue.

The research from KPMG and Shelter also reveals that more than half of all 20-34 year olds could be living with their parents by 2040, as 
soaring housing costs caused by the shortage of affordable homes leave more and more people priced out of a home of their own.

The warning comes as KPMG and Shelter launch a landmark new report, outlining how the 2015 government can turn the tide on the 
nation’s housing shortage within a single parliament. With recent government figures showing that homeownership in England has been 
falling for over a decade, the consequences of our housing shortage are already being felt.

The report sets out a blueprint for the essential reforms that will increase the supply of affordable homes and stabilise England’s 
rollercoaster housing market. It calls on politicians to commit to an integrated range of key measures, including:

■ Giving planning authorities the power to create ‘New Homes Zones’ that would drive forward the development of new homes. Combined 
with infrastructure, this would be led by local authorities, the private sector and local communities, and self-financed by sharing in the 
rising value of the land.

■ Unlocking stalled sites to speed up development and stop land being left dormant, by charging council tax on the homes that should 
have been built after a reasonable period for construction has passed.

■ Introducing a new National Housing Investment Bank to provide low cost, long term loans for housing providers, as part of a programme 
of innovative ways to finance affordable house building.

■ Helping small builders to get back into the house building market by using government guarantees to improve access to finance.

■ Fully integrating new homes with local infrastructure and putting housing at the very centre of City Deals, to make sure towns and cities 
have the power to build the homes their communities need.

To read the report, visit  
https://portal.ema.kworld.kpmg.com/uk/Documents/NewsroomDocs/2014/KPMG%20Shelter%20report%20FINAL.pdf.

For more information, please contact a member of the audit team. 

P
age 57

https://portal.ema.kworld.kpmg.com/uk/Documents/NewsroomDocs/2014/KPMG%20Shelter%20report%20FINAL.pdf


Technical update 

P
age 58



8© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is 
confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Technical update

Area Level of 
Impact

Comments KPMG 
perspective

National Audit 
Office 
consultation: 
Draft Code of 
Audit Practice 
for the audit of 
local public 
bodies



Medium

On Friday 19 September 2014 the National Audit Office (NAO) launched its consultation on the draft Code of Audit 
Practice for the audit of local public bodies. Subject to Parliamentary approval, the Code will take effect from 1 
April 2015 for audit work relating to the 2015/16 financial year onwards.

The NAO is seeking views and comments on the draft Code. In particular, the views of audited bodies are being 
sought on how valuable the work carried out each year on value-for-money arrangements is. The closing date for 
consultation responses is Friday 31 October 2014.

For more information visit http://www.nao.org.uk/keep-in-touch/our-surveys/consultation-code-audit-practice/

The Committee 
may wish to 
enquire of 
officers whether 
they responded 
to the 
consultation and 
the details of any 
response. 

Invitation to 
Comment and 
Simplification 
and 
Streamlining 
the 
Presentation of 
Local Authority 
Financial 
Statements



Medium

CIPFA and CIPFA/LASAAC have recently consulted on the simplification and streamlining of the presentation of 
local authority financial statements. 

The consultation focused on the reporting of local authority performance and therefore on the comprehensive 
income and expenditure statement, the movement in reserves statement and the segmental reporting 
requirements specified in the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom. As an 
important part of reporting performance, it also considered the narrative reporting requirements which would 
accompany the financial statements. 

The consultation closed on 19 September 2014.

The Committee 
may wish to 
enquire of 
officers whether 
they responded 
to the 
consultation and 
the details of any 
response. 

Audit 
Commission 
consultation: 
2015/16 
Proposed Work 
Programme and 
Scales of Fees



Medium

In October the Audit Commission launched its consultation on the 2015/16 proposed work programme and scales 
of fees.  The Commission is proposing to reduce scale fees by a further 25 per cent from 2015/16, based on the 
scale fees applicable for 2014/15. It does not plan to make changes to the overall work programme. The 
consultation period ends on Friday 6 January 2015.

The Commission is also consulting on a small supplementary fee for the audit of the accounts from 2014/15, in 
relation to audit work now required on business rates. This consultation ends on 7 November 2014.

For more information visit http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/audit-regime/audit-fees/201516propwpsf/

The Committee 
may wish to 
enquire of 
officers whether 
they responded  
or are intending 
to respond to the 
consultation and 
the details of any 
response. 

P
age 59

http://www.nao.org.uk/keep-in-touch/our-surveys/consultation-code-audit-practice/
http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/audit-regime/audit-fees/201516propwpsf/


9© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is 
confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Technical update

Area Level of 
Impact

Comments KPMG 
perspective

Audit 
Commission 
calls for 
improved 
quality and 
accuracy in 
grant and 
subsidy claims 
and returns



Low
78 per cent of councils’ claims to the grant-paying body for housing benefit subsidies for 2012/13 were challenged 
by the Audit Commission’s appointed auditors. 

Auditors issued a qualification letter in 35 per cent (360) of the 1,023 claims and returns made by councils for 
2012/13 in respect of seven schemes for grants or subsidies. 255 of the 360 (71 per cent) qualifications related to 
claims for housing and council tax benefit subsidy. In total, these seven schemes transfer £50.5 billion of public 
money from central to local government.

The full findings in Local Government Claims and Returns: Auditor’s Certification Work for 2012/13, also provide 
an overview of how local authority handling of claims and subsidies has changed since the Commission first 
produced a national report for the 2008/09 financial year. For example, between 2009 and 2013, auditors made 
amendments to about one quarter of teachers’ pensions returns. 55 teachers’ pensions returns (36 per cent) for 
2012/13 were qualified, double that for 2011/12.

To view the full report, visit http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/audit-regime/certifying-claims-and-returns/

We will report 
the findings of 
our 2013/14 
certification work 
by February 
2015.P

age 60

http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/audit-regime/certifying-claims-and-returns/


10© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is 
confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Technical update

Area Level of 
Impact

Comments KPMG perspective

2014/15 work 
programme 
and scales of 
fees for the 
National Fraud 
Initiative



Low

On Monday 30 June 2014 the Audit Commission published the final 2014/15 work programme and scale 
of fees for National Fraud Initiative (NFI).

The Commission has considered the small number of consultation responses received. Respondents 
generally supported the Commission’s decision to recognise the financial pressures that public bodies are 
facing in the current economic climate by keeping the scale of fees the same as for NFI 2012/13. They 
also raised some specific points, on which the Commission will respond directly to the organisations 
concerned. A summary of the consultation responses can be viewed at http://www.audit-
commission.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/NFI-2014-15-Work-programme-and-scale-of-fees-
Consultation-Feedback.pdf.

The final work programme and scale of fees documents for the NFI 2014/15 exercise are available on the 
Commission’s website http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/national-fraud-initiative/public-sector/fees/. 

Data request
The NFI Team sent the formal NFI 2014/15 data request to all mandatory participant directors of finance 
on Monday 30 June. Directors of finance of existing voluntary participants also received an invitation to 
participate. The emails included links to the NFI online instructions which give details of NFI data 
requirements and also announce the launch of the Commission’s 2014/15 web application.

Participants are required to submit the required data sets, through the secure NFI web application, on 
Monday 6 October 2014. The Commission expects to release the data matches on Thursday 29 January 
2015.

The Committee may 
wish to confirm that 
the Authority has met 
the submission 
deadline.

P
age 61

http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/NFI-2014-15-Work-programme-and-scale-of-fees-Consultation-Feedback.pdf
http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/national-fraud-initiative/public-sector/fees/


11© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is 
confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Technical update

Area Level of 
Impact

Comments

Public Accounts 
Committee 
report – Local 
government 
funding: 
assurance to 
Parliament



For 
information

The Public Accounts Committee has recently published a report on funding for local authorities. This found that whilst the 
Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has increased flexibility for local government spending, allowing 
local authorities to use government funding according to local priorities, DCLG cannot be sure that the local accountability 
system is ensuring that local authorities are achieving value for money with their funding.

The report can be found at http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201415/cmselect/cmpubacc/456/456.pdf

Government 
plans to regulate 
public sector exit 
payments



For 
information

The government has recently consulted on proposals to ensure exit payments are recovered when high earners return to the 
same part of the public sector within twelve months of leaving. The proposed provisions will be included in the Small Business, 
Enterprise and Employment Bill.

The consultation outlines the government’s proposal to underpin exit payment recovery across the public sector. The 
government expects any changes brought about as part of this consultation to support existing or on-going changes to exit 
payment arrangements to ensure they are fair and promote value for money more widely. 

More information can be found at https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/recovery-of-public-sector-exit-payments

P
age 62

http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201415/cmselect/cmpubacc/456/456.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/recovery-of-public-sector-exit-payments


12© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is 
confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Technical update

Area Level of 
Impact

Comments

Consultation on 
Local 
Government 
Pension Scheme



For 
information

The government has recently consulted on new governance arrangements, and sought responses from interested parties on the 
draft (pension) regulations which are to come into force from October 2014 onwards.

The main provisions include a requirement for the Secretary of State to establish a national scheme advisory board to advise him
on the desirability of changes to the scheme. Provision is also made for administering authorities to establish local pension
boards to assist them with the effective and efficient management and administration of the scheme. 

Further information can be found at https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/the-local-government-pension-scheme-
amendment-regulations-2014-draft-regulations-on-scheme-governance

Government 
publishes 
response on local 
authority parking 
strategies



For 
information

The government launched a consultation paper on local authority parking enforcement in 2013. The consultation closed in 
February 2014 and the government has now responded with a number of proposals, including:

■ amending guidance to make it clear that motorists parking at an out-of-order meter should not be issued a penalty charge 
where there are no alternative ways to pay;

■ banning the use of CCTV cameras to enforce parking contraventions in the vast majority of cases, but with some exceptions 
(eg restricted areas outside of schools);

■ widening the powers of parking adjudicators. This could include, for example, measures to protect drivers where adjudicators 
have repeatedly identified a problem at a specific location (such as inadequate signage) and parking tickets have repeatedly 
been issued; and

■ introducing a mandatory 10 minute free period at the end of paid-for on-street parking either through amendments to statutory 
guidance or regulations.

Further information can be found at https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-authority-parking

P
age 63

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/the-local-government-pension-scheme-amendment-regulations-2014-draft-regulations-on-scheme-governance
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-authority-parking


13© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is 
confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Technical update

Area Level of 
Impact

Comments

Update to VFM 
profiles



For 
information

The VFM profiles tool was updated in July 2014. The update includes a redesigned children and young people section based on 
the latest section 251 outturn data for 2012/13. This data includes the time series back to 2009/10 wherever possible, and the 
change brings the children and young people’s section in line with the rest of the profiles where outturn data is used. The VFM 
profiles previously used section 251 planned budget data.

This section is now organised into the follow areas of expenditure:

■ LA education services
■ Schools and services
■ Sure start & early years
■ Looked after children
■ Safeguarding
■ Youth justice
■ Young people
■ Other children & family services
■ Asylum seekers. 

Each section contains financial indicators from the section 251 outturn data collection and relevant performance or contextual 
indicators. 

VFM data briefing 
on expenditure on 
looked after 
children



For 
information

The Audit Commission has published Councils’ expenditure on looked after children, the latest in its series of VFM data briefings 
analysing data in the VFM profiles.

The briefing reports that, although the number of looked after children increased by 12 per cent between 2008/09 and 2012/13,
councils’ expenditure increased by only 4 per cent. Reductions in the daily cost of care and an increase in the proportion of
children receiving foster care saved a total of £239 million, partially offsetting the spending pressure arising from the increased 
number of children in care.

The briefing looks in more detail at some of the factors which influence how much councils spend on foster care and encourages 
councils to use the VFM Profiles to compare their costs with those of similar councils.

The briefings can be found at: http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/information-and-analysis/value-for-money-briefings-2

P
age 64

http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/information-and-analysis/value-for-money-briefings-2


14© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is 
confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Technical update

Area Level of 
Impact

Comments

VFM data briefing 
on managing 
council property 
assets



For 
information

On 5 June, the Audit Commission published the latest in its series of VFM briefings, Managing council property assets: Using 
data from the VFM Profiles

The briefing draws on Capital Outturn Return (COR) data in the Profiles to show trends since 2004/05 in: the net book value 
(NBV) of the operational and investment estates; levels of capital investment; and sources of finance for capital investment. It
deals with how to release more value from the estate overall, and in particular, it addresses the need for councils to consider how 
they can best use or dispose of surplus assets, which had a NBV of £2.5 billion in 2012/13.

As part of this update the following updated data has been added to the Profiles:

■ Sustainable economy section, planning – processing of planning applications – quarter 3 2012/13.

■ Financial resilience, revenue collection services – CIPFA Revenue Collection Statistics – for 2012/13.

■ Environmental services – ENV18 – Local authority collected waste: annual results tables, final annual results for local authority 
collected waste and management figures for England. The Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs revised this 
data in May 2014. The data in the VFM profiles has been updated for the total local authority collected waste and household –
waste not sent for recycling.

■ Benefits caseload – the latest available monthly data has been added, bringing the latest data to February 2014.

For further information visit:  http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/2014/06/can-local-governments-2-5-billion-surplus-assets-be-
put-to-better-use/

P
age 65

http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/2014/06/can-local-governments-2-5-billion-surplus-assets-be-put-to-better-use/


15© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is 
confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Technical update

Area Level of 
Impact

Comments

Tool launched to 
help councils 
compare care 
performance on 
social care



For 
information

The Department of Health has launched a new tool to help councils compare their performance on social care with similar areas
across England. The tool groups upper tier and unitary authorities by their spending on the over-65s and working age adults with
learning disabilities. The aim is to help local authorities see how they are meeting various indicators, and to identify areas for 
improvement by viewing the performance of their peers.

The tool can be found at: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/adult-social-care-efficiency-tool

Distribution of 
National Fraud 
Initiative (NFI) 
information 
packs to elected 
members at 
councils in 
England



For 
information

To complement the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) national report published in June 2014 (available at http://www.audit-
commission.gov.uk/national-fraud-initiative/nfi-reports/), the Audit Commission distributed an information pack for elected 
members with responsibility for finance and audit at councils in England in August. A copy was also be sent to directors of finance 
and NFI key contacts for information.

The information pack brings together key facts about the NFI, the council’s NFI outcomes and comparisons to their CIPFA 
nearest neighbours. The pack links to a series of questions elected members can put to their director of finance (NFI senior 
responsible officer). The responses will help them understand how the NFI is being used within the council, the benefits of taking 
part and if they are being maximised.

If you did not receive the information pack and would like a copy please contact via email at nfiqueries@audit-
commission.gsi.gov.uk

P
age 66

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/adult-social-care-efficiency-tool
http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/national-fraud-initiative/nfi-reports/
mailto:nfiqueries@audit-commission.gsi.gov.uk


16© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is 
confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Technical update

Area Level of 
Impact

Comments

The NAO’s role in 
local audit



For 
information

The National Audit Office (NAO) is taking on new responsibilities in the new framework for the audit of local bodies. The NAO has 
produced a leaflet which provides information on its new role, examples of its recent value for money work focused on local 
services, and contact details for you to provide views and suggestions or to ask questions about its work.

For more information, visit http://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-naos-role-in-local-audit/

Funding 
healthcare: 
Making 
allocations to 
local areas (NAO 
report)



For 
information

The National Audit Office (NAO) has recently published a report examining the extent to which £79 billion of central funding 
allocated to local health bodies differs from target allocations based on relative need. It finds that nearly two-fifths of Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCGs) are more than five percentage points above or below their fair share of funding per person. It also 
finds that there is a clear relationship between the financial position of CCGs and their distance from target funding allocations, 
with 19 of the 20 CCGs with the tightest financial position receiving less than their target allocation, and 18 of the 20 with the 
largest surpluses receiving more than their target allocation.

For more information, visit http://www.nao.org.uk/report/funding-healthcare-making-allocations-to-local-areas/

Local government 
funding: 
Assurance to 
Parliament (NAO 
report)



For 
information

A recent NAO report examines how the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has implemented and 
oversees the assurance framework that enables departments to assure Parliament on funding for local authorities following the
changes in the 2010 Spending Review to give local authorities more control over their funding. The report finds that under current 
arrangements DCLG’s monitoring information gives limited insight into whether value for money is being achieved in practice. It 
also suggests that departments should assess whether continuing to fund local authorities through un-ringfenced targeted grants 
is appropriate in the context of a locally-defined approach to achieving value for money. 

To view the report, visit http://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-government-funding-assurance-to-parliament/

Maintaining 
strategic 
infrastructure: 
roads (NAO 
report)



For 
information

The NAO has published a report on Maintaining strategic infrastructure: roads. This report highlights how the lack of predictability 
of funding for highways authorities has practical implications for the roads network and may lead to increased costs in the long
term.

Although the report focuses primarily on central government responsibilities it may be of interest to you for your highways 
management responsibilities.

To read the report, visit http://www.nao.org.uk/report/maintaining-strategic-infrastructure-roads/

P
age 67

http://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-naos-role-in-local-audit/
http://www.nao.org.uk/report/funding-healthcare-making-allocations-to-local-areas/
http://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-government-funding-assurance-to-parliament/
http://www.nao.org.uk/report/maintaining-strategic-infrastructure-roads/


17© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is 
confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Technical update

Area Level of 
Impact

Comments

Tenfold difference 
in outsource 
spending 
revealed (Local 
Government 
Chronicle article)



For 
information

“Exclusive analysis has revealed a tenfold difference in the amount councils spend per head of population on outsourced 
services.

Figures from a database of councils’ published receipts for 2012-13 show a huge gulf in the amount spent by top-tier councils with 
organisations in the private, public and voluntary sectors.

Wigan MBC spent just £116 with outside providers per head of population, compared with over £1,000 at several London 
boroughs and £1,450 at Southend BC.

The data, compiled by research firm Porge and analysed by Local Government Chronicle, presents a broad picture of the total 
trade top-tier councils carried out with other organisations, based on all published receipts for expenditure over £500.

It shows councils spent £30.5bn with outside providers in 2012-13.

Alongside classic outsourcing expenditure, such as waste contracts, this includes capital schemes such as house building and 
payments to financial institutions.”

To view the full article, visit http://www.lgcplus.com/5071076.article (subscription required)

P
age 68

http://www.lgcplus.com/5071076.article


Appendix

P
age 69



19© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This document is 
confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Appendix 1 – 2014/15 Audit deliverables

At the end of each stage of our audit we issue certain deliverables, including reports and opinions.

Our key deliverables will be delivered to a high standard and on time.

We discuss and agree each report with the Council’s officers prior to publication.

Deliverable Purpose Timing Status

Planning

Fee letter Communicating indicative fee for the audit year April 2014 Complete

External audit plan Outlining our audit strategy and planned approach

Identifying areas of audit focus and planned procedures

February 
2015

TBC

Interim

Interim review

(if required)

Details and resolution of control and process issues.

Identifying improvements required prior to the issue of the draft financial statements and the year-end audit.

Initial VFM assessment on the Council's arrangements for securing value for money in the use of its 
resources.

April 2015 TBC

Substantive procedures

Report to those 
charged with 
governance 
(ISA+260 report)

Details the resolution of key audit issues.

Communication of adjusted and unadjusted audit differences.

Performance improvement recommendations identified during our audit.

Commentary on the Council’s value for money arrangements.

September 
2015

TBC

Completion

Auditor’s report Providing an opinion on your accounts (including the Annual Governance Statement).

Concluding on the arrangements in place for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of 
resources (the VFM conclusion).

September 
2015

TBC

WGA Concluding on the Whole of Government Accounts consolidation pack in accordance with guidance issued 
by the National Audit Office.

September 
2015

TBC

Annual Audit 
Letter

Summarising the outcomes and the key issues arising from our audit work for the year. October 2015 TBC

Certification of claims and returns

Certification of 
claims and returns 
report

Summarising the outcomes of certification work on your claims and returns for Government departments. January 2016 TBC

P
age 70



© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the 
KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG 
International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights 
reserved.

The KPMG name, logo and “cutting through complexity” are registered 
trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International. 

P
age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
Report of: Head of Audit & Risk Management – Audit Lincolnshire, and the 

Finance Manager 
 
To:    Governance & Audit Committee – 18 December 2014 
 
(Author:  Lucy Pledge – Head of Audit & Risk Management – Audit 

Lincolnshire 
 Mark Finch – Finance Manager) 

 
Subject: Internal Audit Update Report 
 
Purpose: To update the Committee on progress with the Audit Plan 

September 2014 to November 2014 
 

 

Recommendation:  
 
That Members consider the content and outcomes of Internal Audit work and identify 
any action required 
 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to: 
 

• Advise of progress being made with the 2014/15 Audit Plan 

• Provide details of the audit work during the period  

• Provide details of the current position with agreed management actions 
in respect of previously issued reports 

• Update the committee on any changes to the 2014/15 Audit Plan and 
any other matters that may be relevant to the Governance and Audit 
Committee role. 

 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 Consider the content and outcomes of Internal Audit work and identify any 

action required. 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 To monitor Internal Audit progress including the results of Audit work. 
 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS (AND MAIN REPORT) 
 
4.1 To meet the Audit Committees terms of reference in monitoring the work of 

Internal Audit. 
 

Page 73

Agenda Item 8.



 

Key Messages  
 
4.2.  Work is progressing on the 2014/15 plan. 

 

• 2 Audits complete     11% of jobs (includes HB) 

• 8 Audits at the scoping/client brief stage 47% of jobs 

• 5 Audits at fieldwork stage   30% of jobs 

• 2 Audits at draft report stage  12% of jobs 
 
17 projects 

 
Actual progress is less than expected however the majority of audits were 
planned towards the latter half of the year. Two audits, partnerships and risk 
management have taken longer than expected to commence. 

 
4.3. We have issued one final report since the last Committee. Two reports are at 

draft report stage, income receipting and insurance.  
 
4.4. The payroll audit for 2013/14 has been subject to several discussions with 

CPBS as well as ELDC auditors. Whilst a draft report was issued, CPBS 
subsequently provided additional evidence of internal control and this 
information was reviewed and improvements have been made. In discussion 
with ELDC auditors and CPBS it was agreed that due to the length of time 
since the original audit was completed and as the 2014/15 payroll audit is 
about to commence, control improvements will be fully tested as part of that 
audit review. 

 
 

Internal Audit work completed from September 2014 to November 
2014 
 

4.4. The following audit work has been completed and a final report issued:  
 

Effective 
 
 

Some 
improvement 
needed 
 

Major 
improvement 
needed 
 
 

Inadequate 

 
 
 

Accounts Payable  
(Substantial 
Assurance) 

  

 
 

Note: The Governance & Audit Committee should note that the assurance 
expressed is at the time of issue of the report but before the full implementation of 
the agreed management action plan.  Definitions levels are shown in Appendix 1.  
 

Page 74



4.5. Progress with the implementation of agreed management action on high and 
medium recommendations for previous audits is followed up and reported in 
Appendix 3 (summary) and Appendix 4 (detail).  

 
4.6. In the audits given “Some improvement needed” or “Effective” Assurance, we 

confirmed that the Council has sound processes in place as follows: 
 

Accounts Payable – Substantial Assurance (13/14) 
 
The Accounts Payable function is provided by Compass Point Business Services 
(CPBS) for both East Lindsey District Council (ELDC) and South Holland District 
Council (SHDC). Council officers raise purchase requisitions, request supplier set 
ups, and record goods received within the portal area of the AX system. 
 
We have completed testing at both ELDC and SHDC to confirm that the 
processes and controls for Accounts Payable remain in place and are working as 
intended. 
 
Through our transaction testing, observations and discussions with officers, we 
have confirmed that overall Accounts Payable processes are well controlled. In 
particular:  
 
� Payments to suppliers are being made promptly and accurately  
� Purchase requisitions over £500 are being approved by a budget manager  
� Control reconciliations are carried out regularly and supporting 

documentation is retained  
� Manual payments are fully recorded and authorised  

 
We found some areas for improvement specifically around updating Authorised 
Signatories, ensuring refunds are requested for accounts in credit (after a period 
of time) and reminding all staff about the importance of raising official orders. 
These have been accepted and implemented.  

 
 

Audits in Progress 
 
4.7. The following 2014/15 audits are currently in progress: 
 
 
CPBS Corporate Governance 
 
This is a joint review with East Lindsey Internal Audit team and covers performance 
management, Board roles, Company agreements, year end surpluses /deficits, 
changes affecting company activities, capital investment.   
 
The audit is looking to provide assurance on the effectiveness of performance 
management information; managing the twin roles of Board Director and Council 
Officer; ensuring that agreements are up to date and fit for purpose and that there 
are clear processes for work beyond the scope of the contract; year end surpluses 
and deficits are treated appropriately; there are appropriate arrangements in place to 

Page 75



manage changes that may impact on the Company and that there are effective 
arrangements for continued capital investment where required. 
 
ICT 
 
The audit is looking to provide assurance on the arrangements for IT security: 

• (infrastructure follow up, public service network accreditation, data protection 
agreements),  

• the secure use of mobile devices,  

• arrangements for disaster recovery (this is a follow up review),  

• software management and licensing compliance,  

• ICT strategies and the effectiveness of programme/project management. 
 
Housing in Multiple Occupation 
 
This review is examining the arrangements for controlling licensable and non 
licensable HMO’s within the District and undertaking some benchmarking against 
other Councils. 
 
Insurance 
 
This audit will cover management arrangements over insurance, including planning, 
arranging and monitoring insurances; risks have been assessed in determining cover 
and Incidents are captured and claims are effectively handled where they arise  
 
Health and safety 
 
This review will examine the management of Health and Safety, incidents, risk 
assessments, use of contractors, premises risks, asbestos risks as well as other  
Health and Safety risk areas. 
 
Information governance 
 
This is a follow up review to the previous information governance audit (January 
2014)  
 
Income / Receipting 
 
Our review will examine charges, accounting for income and banking. This review 
excludes the cash receipting ICT application as this was subject to an audit during 
2013/14 where full assurance was given.  We also will not cover income collection at 
outlying venues, for example, the South Holland Centre and Ayscoughfee Hall and 
Gardens. 
 
 
 

Performance Information 
 
4.8. Our current performance against targets is shown below:  
 

Page 76



 
Performance Indicator 

 
Target 

 
Actual @ 30th 
Nov 2014 

Percentage of 14/15 plan completed. 
 
 
Number of Audit Jobs: 17 
Completed:                    2 
 
 

100%  
(revised plan) 
 
 

42% 
 
(See comments in 
para 4.2 above) 
 
 
 

Percentage of key financial systems 
completed. 
 

100%  Annual Indicator 
 

Percentage of recommendations 
agreed. 
 
 
 
 

100%  100% 

Percentage of recommendations 
implemented 14/15 audits falling 
due) 
 

100% or escalated  
 

2014/15 – N/A 
All years there are 
25 
recommendations 
outstanding  See 
Appendix 3/4 
below 
 
 

Timescales Draft report issued within 
10 working days of 
completing audit. (target 
100%) 
 
Final report issued within 
5 working days of 
closure meeting / receipt 
of management 
responses. (target 
100%) 
 
Audit completed to draft 
report stage within two 
months of starting 
fieldwork (target 80%) 
 
 

100% 
 
 
 
 
100% 
 
 
 
 
 
75% 

Client Feedback on Audit (average) Good to excellent 100%  
 
 

 

Page 77



Other matters of interest 
 

Funding Bids for Counter Fraud Development 
 

The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) have made 
£16m available to Local Authorities to tackle fraud for a two year period.  
Councils were invited to submit bids in order to receive a share of this fund? 
 

Lincolnshire Fraud Partnership – total grant request £200k 
 

This bid recognises DCLG's desire for Local Authorities to working jointly in 
the fight against fraud.  We aim to create a Lincolnshire Fraud Partnership 
comprising counter fraud specialists and subject area experts from 
Lincolnshire County Council and seven district councils with the aim of: 

 

• delivering joint fraud proactive exercises across Lincolnshire 

• developing and delivering an effective co-ordinated fraud awareness 
programme 

• sharing intelligence, investigative resource, expertise and best practice  
 

Accountable to the Chief Finance Officers, the group would ensure a strong, 
effective and sustained response to the threat of fraud within Lincolnshire local 
authorities. 
 
We are pleased to report that we were successful in our bid.   
 

South Holland also submitted a joint bid with Boston Borough Council and 
East Lindsey District Council relating to business rates evasion and the project 
has received £125,820.  

Shared business rates assurance managers Andy Hall and Mike Carr will work 
with the Valuation Office Agency to maximise the business rates collected by 
all three authorities. 

 

Audit Commission – Protecting the Public Purse – October 2014 
 

1. This is the last report in the Protecting the Public Purse series from the Audit 
Commission before it closes in March 2015.  The key messages include: 
 

• Scale of fraud against local government is large but difficult to quantify with 
precision – they do believe the last national estimate (2013) of £2.1 billion is 
probably an underestimate. 
 

• Fewer cases of detected fraud were reported in 2013/14 compared with the 
previous year but the value has increased by 6% 
 

Page 78



• Councils will need to focus on non-benefit frauds that present the highest risk 
of loss, some example given were: 
 

- Council tax fraud 
- Right to buy 
- Social care fraud 
- Insurance fraud 
 

• Detection rates for some frauds have fallen, specifically business rates and 
procurement fraud.  They suggest the fall in detected fraud may be due to the 
fall in dedicated fraud officers. 
 

• Detection rates in other areas has risen, such as schools (increase of 6% - 
£2.3m) and housing tenancy. 

 
2. The Commission's counter-fraud activities will transfer to new organisations from 

April 2015 – the National Fraud Initiative will transfer to the Cabinet Office and the 
Protecting the Public Purse series and fraud briefings will transfer to the Counter 
Fraud Centre run by CIPFA.  
 

3. The report recommends that councils should: 
 

• use the Commission's checklist to review their counter fraud arrangements 
 

• adopt a corporate approach to fighting fraud  
 

• actively pursue potential frauds identified in the National Fraud Initiative 
 

• assess themselves against CIPFA's new Code of Practice on Managing the 
Risk of Fraud and Corruption 
 

• engage fully with the new CIPFA Counter Fraud Centre 
 
The full publication can be found on the Audit Commission website at: www.audit-
commission.gov.uk  
 
 
CIPFA Counter Fraud Centre 
 
4. The new CIPFA Counter Fraud Centre will lead and co-ordinate the fight against 

fraud & corruption across public services.  They will be working be working 
closely with the DCLG, the National Crime Agency and the Cabinet Office and all 
Local Authorities are encouraged to engage with the Centre. 
 

5. They have recently published a new Code of Practice which includes key 
principles and lists key actions which includes a policy framework – the Council 
already has all recommended fraud related polices with the exception of the 
Cyber Security Policy – we feel this is covered adequately in our existing IT 
Security Policies.   

Page 79



 

6. The CIPFA Counter Fraud Centre are offering some usual services which the 
counter Fraud Team will utilise, for example: 

 

• training, including a new set of qualifications 

• a subscription service (providing access to Counter Fraud tools, guidance 
and fraud alerts) 

• good practice bank (including case studies)  

• working groups to consider and develop guidance to tackle key fraud risk 
areas 

 
Local Government Transparency Code 2014 

 

7. This Code has recently been amended and there are now additional mandatory 
reporting requirements for Local Authorities.  The first set of annual data must be 
published no later than 2 February 2015 and thereafter not less than annually.  
The new mandatory elements relating to counter fraud work are: 
 

• number of occasions powers used under the Prevention of Social Housing 
Fraud (Power to Require Information) (England) Regulations 201432, or 
similar powers  (not applicable to County Council) 

• total number (absolute and full time equivalent) of employees undertaking 
investigations and prosecutions of fraud 

• total number (absolute and full time equivalent) of professionally 
accredited counter fraud specialists 

• total amount spent by the authority on the investigation and prosecution of 
fraud, and 

• total number of fraud cases investigated 
 

8. These reporting requirements are not too onerous as we periodically report on 
most of this information. 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 80



5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.4 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.4.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.5 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.5.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 
5.6.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.7 Financial  
 
5.7.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.8 Risk Management  
 
5.8.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.9 Staffing 
 
5.9.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
  
5.10 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 Not applicable 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



Background papers:- None 

 
Lead Contact Officer 
 
Name/Post: Lucy Pledge - Head of Audit & Risk Management, Audit Lincolnshire 
Telephone Number: 01522 553692 
Email: lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting:   
Lucy Pledge – Head of Audit & Risk Management – Audit Lincolnshire;  
John Scott – Audit Manager, Audit Lincolnshire 
Mark Finch – Finance Manager 
 
Key Decision: No  
 
Exempt Decision: No  
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
 
Appendix 1 – Assurance Definitions 
Appendix 2 – Audits with Limited Assurance 
Appendix 3 – Outstanding Recommendations as at 03/12/14 
Appendix 4 – Outstanding Recommendations as at 03/12/14 (detail) 
Appendix 5 – Internal Audit Plan & Schedule 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 82



Appendix 1 - Assurance Definitions 

Appendix 1 - Assurance Definitions1  
Effective 
 
 

Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a high level of confidence 
on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and the operation of 
controls and / or performance.   
 

The risk of the activity not achieving its objectives or outcomes is low.  Controls have 
been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and are operating effectively. 
 

As a guide there are a few low risk / priority actions arising from the review. 

Some improvement 
needed 
 
 

Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a reasonable level of 
confidence (assurance) on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and 
operation of controls and / or performance. 
 

There are some improvements needed in the application of controls to manage risks. 
However, the controls have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and operating 
sufficiently so that the risk of the activity not achieving its objectives is medium to 
low.  A few specific control or risk issues identified. 
 

As a guide there are low to medium risk / priority actions arising from the review.  

Major improvement 
needed 
 
 

Our critical review or assessment on the activity identified numerous concerns on 
service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and operation of controls and / 
or performance. 
 

The controls to manage the key risks were found not always to be operating or are 
inadequate. Therefore, the controls evaluated are unlikely to give a reasonable level 
of confidence (assurance) that the risks are being managed effectively.  It is unlikely 
that the activity will achieve its objectives.   
 

As a guide there are numerous medium and a few high risk / priority actions arising 
from the review.   
 

Our work did not identify system failures that could result in any of the following: 
- damage to the Council’s reputation 
- material financial loss 
- adverse impact on members of the public 
- failure to comply with legal requirements 

Inadequate 
 
 

Our critical review or assessment on the activity identified significant concerns on 
service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and operation of controls and / 
or performance. 
 

Our work identified system failures that could result in any of the following: 
- damage to the Council’s reputation 
- material financial loss 
- adverse impact on members of the public 
- failure to comply with legal requirements 
 

There are either gaps in the control framework managing the key risks or the 
controls have been evaluated as not adequate, appropriate or are not being 
effectively operated. Therefore the risk of the activity not achieving its objectives is 
high. 
As a guide there are a large number of high risks / priority actions arising from the 
review. 

                                            
1 These definitions are used as a means of measuring or judging the results and impact of matters 
identified in the audit. The assurance opinion is based on information and evidence which came to our 
attention during the audit.  Our work cannot provide absolute assurance that material errors, loss or 
fraud do not exist.  

Page 83



 

Appendix 2 – Audits where assurance is assessed as ‘Major improvement 
needed” or  
“Inadequate” 
 
There are none. 
 
END OF APPENDIX 2 
 

Page 84



Appendix 3 - Outstanding recommendations as at December 14 
 
 

 
Audit Area 
 

 
Date 

 
Assurance 

 
Number 
of Recs 
 

 
Implem’d 

 
Outstanding 

 
Due 
date not 
yet 
reached  

H M L 

Asset Management  Sept 
2013 

Substantial 6 5  1   

AX security April 
2012 

Limited 20 19 1    

Business Continuity May 
14 
 

Limited 9 4 3 2   

Counter Fraud July 
2012 

Substantial 5 4  1   

HR strategy and 
policies 

April 
2014 

Substantial 4 1  2  1 
 

HRA Business Plan Oct 
2012 

Limited/Sub
stantial 

10 9 1    

ICT Disaster 
Recovery 

Nov 
2012 

Limited 4 3 1    

ICT Infrastructure Dec 
2012 

Substantial 21 14  7   

Procurement Dec 
2013 

Limited 6 5 1    

Risk Management April 
2014 

Substantial 6 0    6 

Information 
Governance 

Feb 
2014 

Limited 16 13 2 1   

Welfare reform Feb 
2014 

Substantial 5 4  1   

Accounts payable Sept 
2014 

Substantial 4 2  1  1 

Recruitment and 
Selection 

July 
2014 

Substantial 6 3    3 

 
Note  
Information governance follow up underway 
IT Disaster recovery follow up underway 
ICT Infrastructure follow up underway 
 
 
 
END OF APPENDIX 3 
 
 
 
 

Page 85



APPENDIX 4  
 

Outstanding Recommendations as at 03/12/14 (detail) 
 
 
 Name Priority Finding Ref Agreed management action Date to 

be 
complete
d 

Response Comments Revised 
date for 
completion 

Person 
responsibl
e 

1 SHDC Asset 
Management 
13/14 

Medium There is currently an 
issue with reporting on 
rent collection. The 
length of time a case has 
been in arrears cannot 
be identified at the 
moment. Therefore the 
data for the KPI of less 
than 3% of arrears at 90 
days or more cannot be 
reported.  
 
 
 
CPBS are currently 
working with the team on 
this issue, but there is no 
estimated completion 
time for delivery of a 
report to identify the 
arrears.  

4.1 Arrangements are being 
made with CPBS to meet up 
and work out a short term 
solution to allow KPI 
reporting, as well as a long 
term more permanent 
solution that will provide the 
team with regular and 
accurate data. 
 
 
 
If a solution is not 
forthcoming, this will be 
escalated by Steve Udberg.  

1/10/201
3 

Sept 14 Still reported as 
not implemented - 
revised date 31/12/14 
 
Feb 14:  Discussions 
with CPBS ongoing.  
CPBS are revising their 
Credit Control policy and 
expect to be able to 
provide reports in 
2014/15.  In the 
meantime debtors cases 
are reported individually. 

31/12/2014 David 
Bailey 
CPBS 

P
age 86



2 SHDC_AX 
Security  

High There are a number of 
AX-related Policies and 
Procedures being 
developed, many of them 
are awaiting completion 
or are in draft form. 
 
 
 
In addition, there are 
gaps in the high-level 
policy framework relating 
to the use of IT across 
the organisation and 
selectively to the AX 
system in particular.  

2.1 A number of AX related 
policies have been published 
on the intranet: 
 
Fixed Assets, AP, AR, 
Security, General Ledger, 
VAT. There are 3 that are 
currently still under review: 
Interfaces, Treasury and 
reporting. The HR, payroll 
and expenses policies will 
also be prepared when there 
is a full system roll-out.  
 
 
 
We consider it would be 
appropriate to issue a full set 
of AX policies for the start of 
the next financial year. 
 
 
 
The Councils would also 
need to amend their budget 
and policy frameworks 
including financial 
regulations. 

31/3/201
3 

 
Sept 2014 New security 
policy updated and 
published for January 
2014. AX treasury policy 
sent for publication. AX 
policies published 
2/01/2014. AX policy ( 
payroll, expenses, 
staffright not live but 
configuration still 
required. Detailed work 
instructions have been 
delayed to ensure 
people are paid on time 
and Staff right was 
implemented by 
01/04/2014. Work 
instructions will be 
completed when the new 
arrangements have 
bedded down allowing 
time to be spent doing 
these.  AX HR Policy. 
Staffright in place 
01/04/2014. New 
configuration still 
required with emphasis 
on getting Staffright in 
place. E-guides done 
working procedures will 
follow when system is 
settled down. Target 
date now 31/12/14 

31/12/2014 David 
Bailey, 
CPBS 
Finance 
Director 

P
age 87



3 SHDC_Busin
ess 
Continuity 
2013/14 

High There does not appear to 
be a strong senior 
management promotion 
of Business Continuity in 
SHDC at this time. By 
not ensuring that staff 
are made aware of the 
importance of Business 
Continuity and by not 
embedding this, the 
impact could be that staff 
do not understand its 
importance and are not 
prepared should a 
Business Continuity 
situation occur. 

1.1 The Corporate BC Plan is to 
be endorsed by CMT and 
this should be completed by 
mid-June. Following this we 
hope to involve the new 
Chief Executive more closely 
with Emergency Planning 
and Business Continuity 
processes so it is hoped that 
there will be much more 
senior management buy-in 
and promotion.  

1/8/2014 Sep 14: There has been 
some delay in 
progressing this  

No date 
yet 

Riana 
Rudland, 
Communit
y 
Developm
ent 
Manager 

4 SHDC_Busin
ess 
Continuity 
2013/14 

Medium At this time the Business 
Continuity training 
content is still being 
planned. 

10.1 A training plan is currently 
being developed and this will 
be rolled out to staff over 
time. We are also planning 
to increase awareness 
through monthly newsletters 
and information on SHINE. 
We will also ensure that this 
is covered in staff inductions 
as well.  

1/8/2014 Sep 14: There has been 
some delay in 
progressing this due to 
cross over in annual 
leave commitments. The 
internal communication 
around BC will be 
developed through the 
Communications group 
which meets on 
Thursday 11th 
September. 
 
 
01/08/2014 for 
implementation, training 
rolled out from this date 

1/12/2014 Riana 
Rudland, 
Communit
y 
Developm
ent 
Manager 

P
age 88



5 SHDC_Busin
ess 
Continuity 
2013/14 

High The Business Continuity 
Plans are not complete 
for all departments. The 
impact of this is that 
there could be a lack of 
clarity or procedures 
should an incident occur.  
 
We also found instances 
of completed versions 
that were still designated 
as "draft" versions, had 
missing information and 
answers that were not 
definite. 

11.1 Once the Corporate Plan 
has been updated, this 
allows for more focus on the 
smaller Service Area plans. 
While it is still down to the 
Service Managers to update 
their plans, the findings of 
this audit and the support of 
JEMS should help ensure 
that this is completed 
accurately and on a more 
regular basis. 

1/9/2014   No date 
yet 

Riana 
Rudland, 
Communit
y 
Developm
ent 
Manager 

6 SHDC_Busin
ess 
Continuity 
2013/14 

High The last BC exercise that 
took place at SHDC was 
in October 2008.  
 
The impact of this is that 
staff may not be 
prepared or follow 
procedures for a real life 
situation should it occur. 
There is also the concern 
that there could be 
"gaps" in the process 
that have not been 
identified and corrected 
through practicing a 
roleplay exercise. 
 
Note - there is a planned 
exercise in 14/15. 

2.1 An exercise is planned for 
later in the year and this will 
allow for review and 
reflection afterwards. This 
will become a scheduled 
event and we will complete 
an exercise on a more 
regular basis. We will also 
be doing desktop reviews 
moving forwards that will 
help us to confirm the 
service Business Continuity 
Plans are working. 

1/11/201
4 

Exercise undertaken – 
awaiting further details 

1/11/2014 Riana 
Rudland, 
Communit
y 
Developm
ent 
Manager 

P
age 89



7 SHDC_Busin
ess 
Continuity 
2013/14 

Medium There is limited 
information on Business 
Continuity available to 
staff at the moment. 

6.1 We have plans to have a 
section on SHINE. This will 
also show any updates on 
the front page so that users 
can see all changes. We are 
also looking at increasing 
our internal communications. 
There is the potential for a 
monthly newsletter to come 
from the Comms team with 
the option of including 
updates as part of staff 
briefings delivered by the 
Chief Exec. Once this is in 
place we can then include 
information on Business 
Continuity. 

1/8/2014 Sep 14: The BC section 
on SHINE is in the 
process of being 
developed. The internal 
communication around 
BC will be developed 
through the 
Communication group  

1/12/2014 Riana 
Rudland, 
Communit
y 
Developm
ent 
Manager 

P
age 90



8 SHDC_Count
er Fraud 
Review 
(Health 
Check) 12/13 

Medium The Sanctions Policy 
(Housing Benefit and 
Council Tax Benefit 
Fraud offences) also 
requires review to ensure 
it is up to date.  
 
 

1.1.1 All legislation is now in place 
for the Single Fraud 
Investigation Service. This 
will be implemented in April 
2013 and policies will be 
updated in accordance with 
this. 

30/9/201
4 

12/9/2014 MH SFIS 
transfer confirmed as 
1/10/14 and four staff in 
scope of TUPE 
.Residual work and 
SPOC duties to be 
picked up by new 
agreement which should 
retain 2 fte. Once 
transfer has happened 
then will need to review 
process etc 
24 9 2014. In light of 
recent changes / 
decisions from the 
Councils and linked to 
the SFIS, AE will now 
produce a new policy for 
both clients rleating to 
the revised service that 
we can carry out on 
Council Tax Support 
Fraud. This is also 
linked to the outcome of 
seperate fraid bids for 
external governemnt 
funding. New policies to 
be produced during 
October and ready for 
approval that month / 
November.Date 
extended to 30 11 2014 
to reflect this position 
MH 

30/11/2014 Sharon 
Hammond 
& Andy 
Eaman 
(CPBS) 

P
age 91



9 SHDC_HR 
strategy & 
policies 
2013/14 

Medium Performance statistics 
supplied by CPBS to 
SHDC for inclusion 
SHINE are not 
independently validated 
by the Joint Performance 
Team. 

3.1 Accuracy and quality of 
performance data is a key 
requirement within any 
performance system if poor 
decisions are not to be 
made.  
 
 
 
We are currently reviewing 
the performance indicator/ 
measures requirements of 
the Council and will include 
this requirement for suitable 
validation and data quality 
assurance checks within our 
performance management 
system review. 

30/9/201
4 

Data provided by CPBS 
and other third parties is 
not currently validated 
by the Corporate 
Improvement & 
Performance Team, 
largely due to resource 
and capacity issues. The 
CIP Team is currently 
undergoing a review and 
restructure, due to 
conclude in Q4, 
following which 
additional capacity will 
be in place. The team is 
also currently working on 
refreshing the Data 
Quality Strategy, which 
will include commitments 
to routine sampling of 
data provided, which the 
additional resources will 
conduct as part of their 
roles 

31/3/2015 Jo Russell 

P
age 92



10 SHDC_HR 
strategy & 
policies 
2013/14 

Medium There are no corporate 
performance indicator to 
monitor the completion 
rate of the Performance 
Development Reviews. 

4.1 It was agreed that the 
introduction of a 
performance indicator would 
help encourage managers to 
undertake PDR's with their 
staff in line with the PDR 
policy.   Thereby enabling 
prompt identification of the 
training requirement for the 
year and production of a 
timely training plan.   
 
 
 
The HR manager will 
approach the Performance 
Team and Senior 
Management to discuss the 
inclusion of an indicator as 
part of the performance 
indicator review that is 
currently taking place. 

30/9/201
4 

  30/4/2015 Ruth 
Hassall - 
HR 
Manager 

P
age 93



11 SHDC_HRA 
Business 
Plan 

High In March 2012, officers 
proposed revised 
governance 
arrangements for the 
HRA Business Plan that 
would address the 'risk to 
the sustainability of the 
plan' that current 
arrangements were 
considered to present. 
 
 
 
Whilst agreement to 
implement the proposal 
to form a specific HRA 
group or panel to 
oversee the plan was 
documented in Full 
Council minutes of 7 
March 2012, the group 
was not set up. 
 
 
 
Management have now 
clarified scrutiny 
arrangements within a 
paper to Full Council 
(24th October 2012) and 
this element of 
governance will added to 
the responsibilities of the 
Governance and Audit 
Committee. 
 
 
 
 

1.1 We will consult with 
management team and 
Portfolio Holders to identify 
ways to implement this 
recommendation. 

31/3/201
3 

Sept 14: A specialist 
consultant has been 
appoointed to advise on 
suitable governance 
arrangements for the 
HRA. This work 
commenced in June 
2014 and some 
preliminary work was 
undertaken. Following 
further discussion with 
management team 
means that the scope of 
this work is being 
broadened. Further 
discussion with the 
consultant has been 
arranged and we 
anticipate receiving their 
recommendations by the 
end of the calendar year. 

31/12/2014 Duncan 
Hall, 
Housing 
Manager 

P
age 94



The committee will not 
provide the regular, more 
detailed monitoring and 
review of the plan that 
was the role originally set 
out for a dedicated HRA 
group, including: 
 
 
 
§ review of detailed 
budgetary control reports 
 
§ ongoing management 
of risks 
 
§ political input to the 
plan on service and  
council's priorities 
 
engagement with 
Tenants to consider their 
views and priorities 
(tenants were to be 
members of the group). 

P
age 95



12 SHDC_ICT 
Disaster 
Recovery 
2012/13 

High Details of critical systems 
have not been reviewed 
at ELDC since CPBS 
was created and do not 
exist at SHDC. 

2.1 CPBS Business Continuity 
Team will establish recovery 
priorities and determine 
timescales and will meet 
with the client Business 
Continuity Groups. 

31/3/201
3 

Aug 14: Not 
implemented; Business 
Continuity Audit report 
for SHDC also just 
finalised in August 14. 
Reviewing DR as part of 
current ICT internal 
audit.  

Overdue 
31/3/2014 

Rob 
Barlow, 
ELDC 
Section 
151 
Officer 
and SHDC 
ICT 
Manager 
(S Linsley) 

13 SHDC_ICT 
Infrastructure 

Medium Whilst individual ICT 
strategies exist there is 
no single ICT strategy 
document reflecting the 
needs of ELDC, SHDC 
and CPBS. 

1.1 CPBS shall produce an 
overarching ICT strategy.  
 
The two Council's will need 
to develop their own policies 
that reflect their Corporate 
policies, to which CPBS's 
policy will respond. 

31/3/201
3 

Strategy audit is part of 
current ICT internal audit 
2014/15  

  Rob 
Barlow, 
ELDC 
Section 
151 
Officer 
and SHDC 
ICT 
Manager 

14 SHDC_ICT 
Infrastructure 

Medium There is a reference to 
event logging in the 
'Communications and 
Operations management' 
procedure, however a 
more detailed policy is 
required. 
 
 
 
We were advised that a 
discussion paper on 
application administration 
is being prepared for 
CPBS MT. 

8.1 This has been incorporated 
into CPBS procedures firstly 
for CPBS managed systems 
and secondly for Client 
systems. 
 
 
 
CPBS 
 
ELDC 
 
SHDC 

30/9/201
3 

Sep 14:  This is currently 
on the project list for 
implementation and will 
be complete by the time 
SHDC COCO is 
resubmitted this Sept. 
New target date Oct 14 

Overdue 
31/10/2014 

S Burns, 
M Payne 

P
age 96



15 SHDC_ICT 
Infrastructure 

Medium The backup policy for 
servers and applications 
is not currently captured 
and recorded via the 
service desk (Hornbill). 

10.1 Records will be added to 
Hornbill system. 

30/4/201
3 

Sep 14: We are also 
exploring opportunities 
to rationalise the back-
up solution. Target date 
extended to Oct 14 
 

28/2/2015 M Hall 

16 SHDC_ICT 
Infrastructure 

Medium No firewall policies exist. 12.1 All changes are agreed but it 
is acknowledged that it is not 
formally documented. This 
will be incorporated into the 
change control review 
identified in 6 above. 

30/4/201
3 

Sep 14: GS Update 
policies are being 
compiled to reflect new 
walled garden approach 
to be installed later this 
year. 
 
 

Overdue 
31/10/2014 

G 
Stephens, 
S Burns 

17 SHDC_ICT 
Infrastructure 

Medium There is no security 
training plan covering 
staff at CPBS, SHDC 
and ELDC. 

13.1 We will engage with the 
clients on their training 
requirements and provide 
training materials. 
 
 
 
CPBS will add to its training 
programme for CPBS Staff. 

31/12/20
13 

Sept 14; target date 
extended to Nov 14 
 

30/11/2014 Tony 
Lascelles, 
CPBS 
Head of 
HR 

P
age 97



18 SHDC_ICT 
Infrastructure 

Medium For ELDC there is no 
intrusion prevention 
system. For SHDC a 
LAN guardian product 
has been deployed, 
however it is 
questionable as to how 
much usage is made of 
it. 

15.1 Will install a system for 
ELDC if approval given for 
the expenditure. 

30/6/201
3 

Sep 14: GS 9-6 
Remediations are now 
complete for all entities 
we are introducing a 
walled garden approach 
to the network that will 
allow a more flexible 
approach. As part of this 
implementation later this 
year it may not be a 
requirement for IDS at 
ELDC.   New target date 
30/11/2014. 

30/11/2014 S Burns 

19 SHDC_ICT 
Infrastructure 

Medium There are three Windows 
domains covering SHDC, 
ELDC and CPBS and a 
concern was raised with 
regard to the stability of 
the SHDC Windows 
domain. 

21.1 The process of replacing the 
SHDC domain has 
commenced. Migrating to 
active Directory. 

31/12/20
13 

  28/2/2015 G 
Stephens, 
S Burns 

P
age 98



20 SHDC_Procu
rement 
2013/14 

High Our review of top 
suppliers by payment 
value found that in four 
out of the ten we 
sampled there were no 
tendering 
arrangements/contracts 
in place. 
 
 
 
Where this is the case, 
procurement 
arrangements have not 
followed contract 
regulations, with the risk 
that the Council cannot 
demonstrate 
transparency and 
fairness in supplier 
selection or that value for 
money has been 
achieved. 
 
 
 
We note that 
Procurement 
Lincolnshire and SHDC 
are currently undertaking 
reviews which should 
address some of the 
contracts in our sample. 

1.1 A strategic commissioning 
group has been established 
across Breckland and 
SHDC.  As part of this, 
Procurement Lincolnshire 
have been asked to 
undertake a headline 
category spend analysis and 
provide recommendations 
on procurement options 
against items which can be 
easily and quickly procured. 

31/3/201
4 

Contract review exercise 
is underway by 
Procurement 
Lincolnshire on behalf of 
SHDC and other 
Lincolnshire Councils. 
This includes analysis of 
any gaps between 
spend data and the 
contract register, 
identification of 
collaborative 
opportunities and 
production of an action 
plan to address any 
issues identified. The 
review is expected to 
conclude by end of Q3 
(December 2014). 
Following this, a new 
post of 'Client-Side 
Contract Officer' will be 
in post in early 2015 to 
take forward any 
necessary action 

3/12/2014 Jo Russell 

P
age 99



21 SHDC_SHD
C Information 
Governance 
13/14 

High Our discussions with a 
sample of council staff 
identified that 3 out of 9 
had not received training 
on data protection, and 1 
out of 9 had not received 
training on FOI. 
 
 
 
The staff interviewed all 
stated that they were 
confident that they 
understand requirements 
without training. 
However, 5 out of 9 
interviewed stated that 
they were uncertain 
about or didn't know the 
statutory time limits for 
responding to a subject 
data access request. 
 
 
 
Training is a fundamental 
control to ensure staff 
have sufficient 
understanding of their 
responsibilities for data 
protection and FOI. 
 
 
 
There are no regular 
reminders to raise 
awareness of data 
protection and FOI. 

3.1 This will be looked into while 
we update the policies. We 
will examine possible E-
Learning programmes to 
enable all staff to gain a 
better understanding of DP 
and FOI, and provide 
refresher training to those 
staff that have already had 
formal training. 
 
We will also look at providing 
support to managers to 
enable them to discuss this 
at team meetings and will 
send out emails to all staff 
on a quarterly basis to 
remind them of the process 
and provide links to the 
policies. 

1/6/2014 In progress 31/1/2015 Louisa 
Clare, 
Member 
Services 
Officer 

P
age 100



22 SHDC_SHD
C Information 
Governance 
13/14 

High The document retention 
policy is dated 2005 and 
there is no evidence that 
it has been reviewed 
since this date.  
 
 
 
In the 8 years since the 
policy was created the 
documents produced by 
service areas are likely to 
have changed and some 
services are now run by 
CPBS.  
 
 
 
In the absence of an up 
to date and 
comprehensive policy, 
there is a risk that 
information is not 
retained for an 
appropriate period of 
time. 

15.1 This will be checked and 
updated. Due to the links 
with Compass Point, we will 
co-ordinate with Karen 
Rippen from CPBS to 
complete the 
recommendations. 

1/8/2014 In progress 31/1/2015 Louisa 
Clare, 
Member 
Services 
Officer 

P
age 101



23 SHDC_SHD
C Information 
Governance 
13/14 

Medium The majority of officers 
we interviewed did not 
know who was 
responsible for checking 
compliance with 
document retention 
periods in their 
department or when / if 
checks are completed. 
 
 
 
If responsibility is not 
clear, information may 
not be retained for the 
correct period of time 
and the council may face 
criticism when it has to 
respond to subject 
access or FOI requests. 

16.1 We will update our policies 
and ensure that each team 
has a nominated champion. 
We will confirm that these 
members of staff understand 
their roles and this will be 
refreshed through the use of 
reminder emails.  

1/8/2014 In progress 1/1/2015 Louisa 
Clare, 
Member 
Services 
Officer 

P
age 102



24 SHDC_Welfa
re Reform 
2013/14 

Medium Performance and 
Improvement Agents 
carry out quality checks 
on a sample of 
 
claims on a daily basis. 
On a 4 weekly basis a 
full report is run of all 
claims and 
 
a random sample of 42 
claims are reviewed in 
detail. 
 
 
 
As the samples are 
randomly selected 
across Housing Benefits 
and Council 
 
Tax support there is no 
guarantee that a relative 
number of Council Tax 
Support 
 
claims will be picked up. 
 
 
 
It is important that a clear 
number of CTS claims 
are reviewed regularly to 
 
provide assurance that 
the correct reductions 
are being applied. 

3.1 Agreed - a sample of CTS 
claims will be checked 
quarterly. 

30/6/201
4 

12/9/2014 - MH - Update 
needed from AH - Team 
leader for the QA team 
22/9/2014 MH spoke 
with AH. QA team are 
currently doing 100% 
checks on all bens 
assessors and this will 
include CTS cases. 
Eexercise to be 
completed by 31 10 
2014 when a return to 
normal sample of 10% 
per person . End date 
amended to 31 10 2014 
to reflect the above 
position when an 
overview can be 
provided if needed 
21/10/14 100% are 
nearing completion. The 
majority of cases that 
are checked are CTS 
claims already. MH & SL 
are working through a 
strategy for ongoing 
cases moving forward 
and are hoping to have 
this signed off by mid 
November detailing the 
% of checks that will 
become part of QA in 
respect of all cases 

31/10/2014 Operation
s Support 
Team 
Leader. 

P
age 103



25 ELDC & 
SHDC 
Accounts 
Payable 

Medium Authorised signatories   Authorised Signatory lists 
will be uploaded to the 
Council portals - allowing 
budget managers to review 
permissions and complete a 
signed form for 
additions/removals. Ops 
Support will sample check 
updates to the list to ensure 
it matches the forms. An 
alert system is currently 
being designed within he 
system to flag to staff of any 
updates/changes made tot 
he list 

31/10/20
14 

2/9/2014 MH Update to 
be received from AH 
team leader for this area 
22/9/2014 MH spoke to 
AH and she will provide 
update by month end 
25/9/2014 - ARH now 
met with D.Bailey, 
M.Fitzgerad and 
S.Wallace to discuss my 
ideas in principal and all 
agree. Next stage is to 
meet with MF again to 
get this put into place 
from an IT perspective 
and also 
communications to be 
sent to S151 Officers at 
ELDC & SHDC because 
although Audit report for 
ELDC will bring both in 
line at th same time. Still 
hoping for this to be in 
place for 31/10/14 

No given Team 
Leader 
Operation
s Support 

 
 
End of Appendix 4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 104



 
Appendix 5  Internal Audit Plan and Schedule 2014/15 
 

 
Area  
 

 
Days  

 
Indicative Scope 

 
Planned 
Start Date 

 
Actual 
Start Date 

 
Final 
Report 
Issued 

 
Status / Assurance 
Level Given 

Critical Service Activities       

Chief Executive       

Risk Management          10 Risk Management Audit will 
review the effectiveness of 
risk management 
arrangements and also 
assess relevance of 
strategic risks. 
 
Replaces Key Officer 
Groups audit due to 
management changes in 
this area. 
 
 

December 
14 

  Scope under 
discussion 
December 14 

       

Executive Director       

Housing Revenue Account         10 Follow up to previous audit 
 

December 
14 

   
 
 
 

CSU         15 Operational delivery 
assurance; includes gas 
servicing review. 
 
 
 
 

January 15   Focus switch to 
operational delivery 
following discussion 
with management. 

P
age 105



 
Area  
 

 
Days  

 
Indicative Scope 

 
Planned 
Start Date 

 
Actual 
Start Date 

 
Final 
Report 
Issued 

 
Status / Assurance 
Level Given 

Sub total 
 
 

         35 
 

  
 

   

Due Diligence       

  
 

     

Finance Systems 

• Cash receipting (CR) 

• Budget preparation (BP) / 
Medium Term Financial 
Plan (MTFP) 

• Payroll (P) 
 

 
CR-09 

BP/MTFP -04 
 
 
 

16 
 

 

To ensure the Council’s 
financial control environment 
is robust and operating 
effectively. 
 
Areas selected from risk 
assessment, last audit, 
changes, External Audit 
liaison and assurance map. 
 
The MTFP audit will now 
include work on savings 
targets which was previously 
a separate audit  

 
 
 

CR 
August 14 
 
BP / MTFP 
December 
14 
 
P 
December 
14 

 
Sept 14 

 This will be 
delivered in 
conjunction with 
ELDC internal audit. 
 
SHDC auditors 
Payroll 
Cash Receipting 
(CR-Draft report 
stage) 
 
ELDC auditors 
BP/MTFP 
Cash Receipting 
 
 

Key Control Testing of 
Financial systems 

14 To undertake testing on key 
controls within finance 
systems for Head of Audit 
assurance 

 

January 15   This will be 
delivered in 
conjunction with 
ELDC internal audit. 
 
SHDC 
Creditors/Property/ 
Housing benefits 

P
age 106



 
Area  
 

 
Days  

 
Indicative Scope 

 
Planned 
Start Date 

 
Actual 
Start Date 

 
Final 
Report 
Issued 

 
Status / Assurance 
Level Given 

 
ELDC 
Debtors, Council 
Tax, NNDR, Bank 
Reconciliation 
 
 

Health & Safety            8 To ensure that the Council 
has effective health and 
safety arrangements in 
place that comply with 
relevant legislation and 
regulations 

 

October 14 October 14  End of fieldwork 
stage 

Recruitment & Retention              9 To review how the Council is 
addressing risks identified 
around staff recruitment and 
retention staff 

 

May 14 May 2014 25 July 14 Final report issued 

Insurance          6 To ensure that the Council 
has effective arrangements 
in place to manage its 
insurable risks 

 

October 14 October 14  Draft report stage 
 
Delivered by ELDC 
auditors 
 
 
 
 

CPBS        10 Undertake a review of the 
governance, risk and 
internal control regime of the 
Company 

August 14 August 14  End of fieldwork 
stage 

P
age 107



 
Area  
 

 
Days  

 
Indicative Scope 

 
Planned 
Start Date 

 
Actual 
Start Date 

 
Final 
Report 
Issued 

 
Status / Assurance 
Level Given 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contract Management      10 To provide assurance that 
key contracts are managed 
effectively and monitored to 
confirm they are delivering 
as agreed 

 

January 15 
 
 

   

Partnerships / Collaborative 
working  

       10 
 
 

Assurance on the 
effectiveness of the 
Council's partnership / 
collaborative working 
arrangements and how 
collaborative working 
supports delivery of the 
Council's priorities and 
tackling the 'big issues' 
facing the Council.  
Transformation programme 
– actions following the peer 
review 
 
 
 
 
 

December14 
/ January 15 
 

  Waiting for interim 
management report 
on partnership 
working before 
commencement  
 

P
age 108



 
Area  
 

 
Days  

 
Indicative Scope 

 
Planned 
Start Date 

 
Actual 
Start Date 

 
Final 
Report 
Issued 

 
Status / Assurance 
Level Given 

 
 

Information Governance          5 Follow up review to confirm 
management actions from 
2013/14 audit have been 
implemented and review 
effectiveness of data 
security arrangements 
 

October 14 October 14  End of fieldwork  
 
Audit completed by 
ELDC auditors 
 

Sub Total          101      

Benefits Subsidy claim 
 
 

          25 Testing to support the 
external audit of the subsidy 
claim 
 

June-August 
14 
 

June 14 November 
14*  
 
Completion of 
workbooks. 

 

Completed 

Sub Total            25      

Strategic Risk            0      

       

Sub Total            0      

 
 

      

Emerging Risks       

Emerging risk contingency           24 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To audit any significant 
emerging risks arising in the 
year. 
 
 
Housing in Multiple 
Occupation  
HMO Audit (10 days) 

October 14 
 

 
 
 
 
 
November 
14 
 

  
 
 
 
 
Fieldwork underway 

P
age 109



 
Area  
 

 
Days  

 
Indicative Scope 

 
Planned 
Start Date 

 
Actual 
Start Date 

 
Final 
Report 
Issued 

 
Status / Assurance 
Level Given 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Sub Total            24      

Other relevant Areas       

Combined Assurance             0 
 

Co-ordinating and updating 
assurances on the Council’s 
assurance map with service 
managers.   
 
 

October 
/November  
2014 

  This will be deferred 
for 14/15; risk 
management work 
will take place 
instead 

Sub Total              0      

ICT Audit.       

ICT Audit 

• Mobile Devices 

• IT security 

           20 
 
(plus East 
Lindsey 
allocation) 

IT security 
Mobile devices 
Strategy 
ICT Programme/projects 
Software 
DR follow up 
 

September 
14 

December 
14 

 Field work in 
progress.  
 
Working in 
conjunction with 
ELDC internal audit 
on certain aspects.  
 
Scope agreed.  

Sub Total           20      

Non-Audit       

Advice / liaison           6      

P
age 110



 
Area  
 

 
Days  

 
Indicative Scope 

 
Planned 
Start Date 

 
Actual 
Start Date 

 
Final 
Report 
Issued 

 
Status / Assurance 
Level Given 

Annual Report           1      

Audit Committee            6      

Sub Total          13      

Total Audit Plan for 
2014/15 

         218      

 
 
 

P
age 111



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Section 151 Officer 
 
To: Governance and Audit Committee – 18 December 2014 

 
(Author): Sean Howsam – Finance Manager Treasury (CPBS) 

 
Subject: Mid Term Treasury Report 2014/15 

 
Purpose: To provide an update of the treasury management position of the Council 

as at 30 September 2014. 
 

Recommendation:  
 

 That the Governance and Audit Committee note the report and treasury activity and 
make any comments for consideration by Council when they consider this 
document at their meeting on 21 January 2015. 

 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 

1.1 The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash raised during 
the year will meet its cash expenditure.  Part of the treasury management 
operations ensure this cash flow is adequately planned, with surplus monies being 
invested in low risk counterparties, providing adequate liquidity initially before 
considering maximising investment return. 

 

1.2 The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the 
Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need 
of the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure the Council 
can meet its capital spending obligations.  This management of longer term cash 
may involve arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow 
surpluses, and on occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet 
Council risk or cost objectives. 

 

1.3 As a consequence treasury management is defined as: 
 

“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent 
with those risks.” 

 

1.4 The Treasury Management function is administered by Compass Point Business 
Services on behalf of the Council. 

 

1.5 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management 2011 was adopted by this Council on 8 March 
2012. 

 

The primary requirements of the Code are as follows:  
 

Page 113

Agenda Item 9.



• Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement which 
sets out the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury management 
activities; 

• Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out 
the manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and 
objectives; 

• Receipt by the full council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement - including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy - for the year ahead, a Mid-year Review Report and an 
Annual Report (stewardship report) covering activities during the previous 
year; 

• Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and monitoring 
treasury management policies and practices and for the execution and 
administration of treasury management decisions; 

• Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury management 
strategy and policies to a specific named body.  For this Council the delegated 
body is the Governance and Audit Committee. 

 
 
2.0 SUMMARY 
 

2.1 The mid year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management, and covers the following: 

 

• An economic update for the 2014/15 financial year to 30 September 2014; 

• A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy; 

• The Council’s capital expenditure (prudential indicators); 

• A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2014/15; 

• A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2014/15; 

• A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2014/15; 

• A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2014/15. 

 

2.2 There are no key changes to the Treasury or Capital Strategy. 
 
 
3.0 ECONOMIC UPDATE 
 

3.1 Economic performance to date and outlook. 

U.K. 

After strong UK Gross Domestic Product (GDP) quarterly growth of 0.7%, 0.8% and 
0.7% in quarters 2, 3 and 4 respectively in 2013, (2013 annual rate 2.7%), and 0.7% 
in Q1 and 0.9% in Q2 2014 (annual rate 3.2% in Q2), it appears very likely that 
strong growth will continue through 2014 and into 2015 as forward surveys for the 
services and construction sectors, are very encouraging and business investment is 
also strongly recovering. 
 

Page 114



The manufacturing sector has also been encouraging though the latest figures 
indicate a weakening in the future trend rate of growth.  However, for this recovery 
to become more balanced and sustainable in the longer term, the recovery needs to 
move away from dependence on consumer expenditure and the housing market to 
exporting, and particularly of manufactured goods, both of which need to 
substantially improve on their recent lacklustre performance.  
 
This overall strong growth has resulted in unemployment falling much faster through 
the initial threshold of 7%, set by the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) last August, 
before it said it would consider any increases in Bank Rate. 
 
The MPC has, therefore, subsequently broadened its forward guidance by adopting 
five qualitative principles and looking at a much wider range of about eighteen 
indicators in order to form a view on how much slack there is in the economy and 
how quickly slack is being used up. The MPC is particularly concerned that the 
current squeeze on the disposable incomes of consumers should be reversed by 
wage inflation rising back above the level of inflation in order to ensure that the 
recovery will be sustainable.  There also needs to be a major improvement in labour 
productivity, which has languished at dismal levels since 2008, to support increases 
in pay rates.  Most economic forecasters are expecting growth to peak in 2014 and 
then to ease off a little, though still remaining strong, in 2015 and 2016. 
  
Unemployment is therefore expected to keep on its downward trend and this is likely 
to eventually feed through into a return to significant increases in pay rates at some 
point during the next three years.  However, just how much those future increases in 
pay rates will counteract the depressive effect of increases in Bank Rate on 
consumer confidence, the rate of growth in consumer expenditure and the buoyancy 
of the housing market, are areas that will need to be kept under regular review. 
 
Also encouraging has been the sharp fall in inflation (CPI), reaching 1.5% in May 
and July, the lowest rate since 2009.  Forward indications are that inflation is likely 
to fall further in 2014 to possibly near to 1%. Overall, markets are expecting that the 
MPC will be cautious in raising Bank Rate as it will want to protect heavily indebted 
consumers from too early an increase in Bank Rate at a time when inflationary 
pressures are also weak. 
 
A first increase in Bank Rate is therefore expected in Q1 or Q2 2015 and they 
expect increases after that to be at a slow pace to lower levels than prevailed before 
2008 as increases in Bank Rate will have a much bigger effect on heavily indebted 
consumers than they did before 2008.  

The return to strong growth has also helped lower forecasts for the increase in 
Government debt by £73bn over the next five years, as announced in the 2013 
Autumn Statement, and by an additional £24bn, as announced in the March 2014 
Budget - which also forecast a return to a significant budget surplus, (of £5bn), in 
2018-19.  However, monthly public sector deficit figures have disappointed so far in 
2014/15. 

 

Page 115



U.S.A 

In September, the Federal Reserve continued with its monthly $10bn reductions in 
asset purchases, which started in December 2013. Asset purchases have now 
fallen from $85bn to $15bn and are expected to stop in October 2014, providing 
strong economic growth continues.  First quarter GDP figures for the US were 
depressed by exceptionally bad winter weather, but growth rebounded very strongly 
in Q2 to 4.6% (annualised). 

The U.S. faces similar debt problems to those of the UK, but thanks to reasonable 
growth, cuts in government expenditure and tax rises, the annual government deficit 
has been halved from its peak without appearing to do too much damage to growth, 
although the weak labour force participation rate remains a matter of key concern 
for the Federal Reserve when considering the amount of slack in the economy and 
monetary policy decisions. 

Eurozone 

The Eurozone (EZ) is facing an increasing threat from weak or negative growth and 
from deflation.  In September, the inflation rate fell further, to reach a low of 0.3%.  
However, this is an average for all EZ countries and includes some countries with 
negative rates of inflation.  Accordingly, the European Central Bank (ECB) took 
some rather limited action in June to loosen monetary policy in order to promote 
growth. In September it took further action to cut its benchmark rate to only 0.05%, 
its deposit rate to -0.2% and to start a programme of purchases of corporate debt.  
However, it has not embarked yet on full quantitative easing (purchase of sovereign 
debt).  

Concern in financial markets for the Eurozone subsided considerably during 2013.  
However, sovereign debt difficulties have not gone away and major issues could 
return in respect of any countries that do not dynamically address fundamental 
issues of low growth, international uncompetitiveness and the need for overdue 
reforms of the economy, (as Ireland has done).  It is, therefore, possible over the 
next few years that levels of government debt to GDP ratios could continue to rise 
for some countries. This could mean that sovereign debt concerns have not 
disappeared but, rather, have only been postponed. 

China and Japan 

Japan is causing considerable concern as the increase in sales tax in April has 
suppressed consumer expenditure and growth.  In Q2 growth was -1.8% q/q and -
7.1% over the previous year. The Government is hoping that this is a temporary blip. 

As for China, Government action in 2014 to stimulate the economy appeared to be 
putting the target of 7.5% growth within achievable reach but recent data has raised 
fresh concerns. There are also major concerns as to the creditworthiness of much 
bank lending to corporates and local government during the post 2008 credit 
expansion period and whether the bursting of a bubble in housing prices is drawing 
nearer. 

 

Page 116



3.2      Interest rate forecast.  

The Council’s treasury advisor, Capita Asset Services, has provided the following 
forecast: 

 

 
Capita Asset Services undertook a review of its interest rate forecasts in mid 
August, after the Bank of England’s Inflation Report. By the beginning of September, 
a further rise in geopolitical concerns, principally over Ukraine but also over the 
Middle East, had caused a further flight into safe havens like gilts and depressed 
PWLB rates further.  However, there is much volatility in rates as news ebbs and 
flows in negative or positive ways. This latest forecast includes a first increase in 
Bank Rate in quarter 1 of 2015.  
 
Our PWLB forecasts are based around a balance of risks.  However, there are 
potential upside risks, especially for longer term PWLB rates, as follows: - 
 

• A further surge in investor confidence that robust world economic growth is firmly 
expected, causing a flow of funds out of bonds and into equities. 

• UK inflation being significantly higher than in the wider EU and US, causing an 
increase in the inflation premium inherent to gilt yields. 

 

Downside risks currently include: 
 

• The situation over Ukraine poses a major threat to EZ and world growth if it was to 
deteriorate into economic warfare between the West and Russia where Russia 
resorted to using its control over gas supplies to Europe. 

• UK strong economic growth is currently dependent on consumer spending and 
the unsustainable boom in the housing market.  The boost from these sources 
is likely to fade after 2014. 

• A weak rebalancing of UK growth to exporting and business investment 
causing a weakening of overall economic growth beyond 2014. 

• Weak growth or recession in the UK’s main trading partners - the EU and US, 
inhibiting economic recovery in the UK. 

• A return to weak economic growth in the US, UK and China causing major 
disappointment in investor and market expectations. 

Page 117



• A resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis caused by ongoing 
deterioration in government debt to GDP ratios to the point where financial 
markets lose confidence in the financial viability of one or more countries and 
in the ability of the ECB and Eurozone governments to deal with the potential 
size of the crisis. 

• Recapitalising of European banks requiring more government financial 
support. 

• Lack of support by populaces in Eurozone countries for austerity programmes, 
especially in countries with very high unemployment rates e.g. Greece and 
Spain, which face huge challenges in engineering economic growth to correct 
their budget deficits on a sustainable basis. 

• Italy: the political situation has improved but it remains to be seen whether the 
new government is able to deliver the austerity programme required and a 
programme of overdue reforms.  Italy has the third highest government debt 
mountain in the world. 

• France: after being elected on an anti austerity platform, President Hollande 
has embraced a €50bn programme of public sector cuts over the next three 
years.  However, there could be major obstacles in implementing this 
programme. Major overdue reforms of employment practices and an increase 
in competiveness are also urgently required to lift the economy out of 
stagnation.  

• Monetary policy action failing to stimulate sustainable growth in western 
economies, especially the Eurozone and Japan. 

• Heightened political risks in the Middle East and East Asia could trigger safe 
haven flows back into bonds. 

 

 There are also increasing concerns that the reluctance of western economies to 
raise interest rates significantly for some years, plus the huge QE measures which 
remain in place (and may be added to by the ECB in the near future), has created 
potentially unstable flows of liquidity searching for yield and therefore heightened 
the potential for an increase in risks in order to get higher returns. This is a return of 
the same environment which led to the 2008 financial crisis. 

  
 

4.0 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL 
INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

 

4.1 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2014/15 was approved 
by Council on 26 February 2014. 

 
 There are no policy changes to the TMSS, the details in this report update the 

position in the light of the updated economic position and budgetary changes 
already approved. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 118



5.0 THE COUNCIL’S CAPITAL POSITION (PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS) 
 

This part of the report is structured to update: 

• The Council’s capital expenditure plans; 

• How these plans are being financed; 

• The impact of the changes in the capital expenditure plans on the prudential 
indicators and the underlying need to borrow; and 

• Compliance with the limits in place for borrowing activity 

 

5.1 Prudential Indicator for Capital Expenditure. 

This table shows the revised estimates for capital expenditure and the changes 
since the capital programme was agreed at the Budget.  

 

Capital Expenditure  2014-15 
Original 

Programme 
£’000 

Position 
As At 
30-09-14 
£’000 

2014-15 
Latest 

Approved 
£’000 

General Fund 2,683  2,299 4,019 

Housing Revenue Account 7,723 2,430 10,056 

Total 10,406 4,729 14,075 

 
The increases in the revised estimate are due to slippages in the 2013/14 capital 
programme being rolled over to the 2014/15 financial year. 
   

5.2 Changes to the Financing of the Capital Programme. 
 

The following table draws together the main strategy elements of the capital 
expenditure plans (above), highlighting the original supported and unsupported 
elements of the capital programme, and the expected financing arrangements of 
this capital expenditure.  The borrowing element of the table increases the 
underlying indebtedness of the Council by way of the Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR), although this will be reduced in part by revenue charges for the 
repayment of debt (the Minimum Revenue Provision).  This direct borrowing need 
may also be supplemented by maturing debt and other treasury requirements.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 119



 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.3 Changes to the Prudential Indicators for the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), 
External Debt and the Operational Boundary. 

The table shows the CFR, which is the underlying external need to incur borrowing 
for a capital purpose.  It also shows the expected debt position over the period. This 
is termed the Operational Boundary. 
 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

5.4 Limits to Borrowing Activity 
 

The first key control over the treasury activity is a prudential indicator to ensure that 
over the medium term, net borrowing (borrowings less investments) will only be for 
a capital purpose.  Gross external borrowing should not, except in the short term, 
exceed the total of CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional 
CFR for 2014/15 and next two financial years.  This allows some flexibility for 
limited early borrowing for future years.  The Council has approved a policy for 
borrowing in advance of need which will be adhered to if this proves prudent. 

Capital Expenditure 2014-15 
Original 

Programme 
£’000 

Position 
As At 
30-09-14 
£’000 

2014-15 
Latest 

Approved 
£’000 

General Fund 2,683 2,299   4,019 

HRA 7,723 2,430 10,056 

Total spend 10,406       4,729 14,075 

Financed by:    

Capital receipts 122        0     164 

Capital grants and Contributions 902    829       1,781 

Direct Revenue Funding/Use of 
Reserves 

 
7,870 

 
2,653 

 
10,620 

Total financing 8,894 3,482 12,565 

Borrowing need 1,512 1,247   1,510 

 2014-15 
Original Estimate 
For Year End 

£’000 

Position 
As At 

30/09/14 
£’000 

2014-15 
Revised Estimate 
For Year End 

£’000 

Prudential Indicator – Capital Financing Requirement 

CFR – non housing   2,207 2,216     2,216 

CFR – housing 69,896 69,407   69,407 

Total CFR 72,103 71,623   71,623 

Net movement in CFR   1,467 1,229     1,229 

Prudential Indicator – External Debt / the Operational Boundary 

Borrowing 71,456 71,456 71,456 

Other long term liabilities 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Total debt  31 March 72,456 72,456 72,456 

Page 120



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 The Section 151 Officer reports that no difficulties are envisaged for the current or 
future years in complying with this prudential indicator.  

A further prudential indicator controls the overall level of borrowing.  This is the 
Authorised Limit which represents the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited, 
and needs to be set and revised by Members.  It reflects the level of borrowing 
which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable 
in the longer term.  It is the expected maximum borrowing need with some 
headroom for unexpected movements. This is the statutory limit determined under 
section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003.  

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 2014/15 
Original 
Estimate 

For Year End 
£’000 

Position 
As At 
30/09/14 

 
£’000 

2014/15 
Revised 
Estimate 

For Year End 
£’000 

Gross borrowing 67,469 67,456 67,456 

Less investments (10,148) (24,169) (6,018) 

Net borrowing 57,321 43,287 61,438 

CFR (year end position) 72,103 71,623 71,623 

Authorised limit for external 
debt 

2014-15 
Original 
Estimate 
£’000 

Position 
As At 
30/09/14 
£’000 

2014-15 
Revised 
Estimate 
£’000 

Borrowing 74,456 74,456 74,456 

Other long term liabilities   1,000   1,000   1,000 

Total 75,456 75,456 75,456 

 
6.0 INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 2014/15 

6.1 In accordance with the Code, it is the Council’s priority to ensure security of capital 
and liquidity, and to obtain an appropriate level of return which is consistent with the 
Council’s risk appetite.  As set out in Section 3, it is a very difficult investment 
market in terms of earning the level of interest rates commonly seen in previous 
decades as rates are very low and in line with the 0.5% Bank Rate.  Indeed, the 
introduction of the Funding for Lending scheme has reduced market investment 
rates even further.  The potential for a prolonging of the Eurozone sovereign debt 
crisis, and its impact on banks, prompts a low risk and short term strategy.  Given 
this risk environment, investment returns are likely to remain low.  

The Council held £24,169,000 of investments as at 30 September 2014 
(£17,865,000 as at 31 March 2014) and the investment portfolio yield for the first six 
months of the year is 0.626% against a benchmark of 0.42% (average 3 month 
LIBID). 
 
 
 

Page 121



Deposits held as at 30 September 2014 were as follows: 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
The Section 151 Officer confirms that the approved limits within the Annual 
Investment Strategy were not breached during the first six months of 2014/15. 
 
The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2014/15 is £114,300, and 
performance for the year to date is £79,800.  
 
The Council monitors risk of its investment portfolio against the Capita Asset 
Services counterparty risk matrix.  This matrix gives recommended maximum 
investment durations for each financial institution based on the ratings allocated by 
the major credit rating agency’s and also takes into account credit default swap 
prices. 

6.2 Investment Counterparty Criteria 

The current investment counterparty criteria selection approved in the TMSS is 
meeting the requirement of the treasury management function. 

Institution As at  
31-03-14 
£’000 

As at 
30-09-14 
£’000 

Lloyds Bank PLC (Current Account) 153 228 
NatWest Bank (Instant Access) 2,655 2 

Svenska Handelsbanken Bank (Instant Access) 4,957 4,988 

CCLA Money Market Fund (Instant Access) 0   450 

Nationwide Building Society 3,100 5,000 

Goldman Sachs Bank 2,500 2,500 

Lloyds Bank PLC 4,500 4,500 

Royal Bank of Scotland 0 4,501 

Barclays Bank 0 2,000 

TOTAL 17,865 24,169 

 
7.0 BORROWING 
 

7.1 The Council’s revised capital financing requirement (CFR) for 2014/15 is £71.623m.  
The CFR denotes the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes.  If 
the CFR is positive the Council may borrow from the PWLB or the market (external 
borrowing) or from internal balances on a temporary basis (internal borrowing).  The 
balance of external and internal borrowing is generally driven by market conditions.  
The table at paragraph 5.4 shows the Council has borrowings of £67.456m and has 
utilised £4.167m of cash flow funds in lieu of borrowing.  This is a prudent and cost 
effective approach in the current economic climate. 
 
As outlined below, the general trend has been a decrease in interest rates during 
the six months, across longer dated maturity bands, but a rise in the shorter 
maturities, reflecting in part the expected rise in the Bank rate.  
 
It is anticipated that further borrowing will not be undertaken during this financial 
year. 

Page 122



 
The graph below shows the movement in PWLB rates for the first six months of the 
year to 30 September 2014: 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
8.0 DEBT RESCHEDULING 
 

8.1 The Councils debt was taken out in March 2012 as part of the HRA Financing 
Reforms. Debt rescheduling opportunities have been limited in the current 
economic climate and consequent structure of interest rates. 

 
 
9.0 OPTIONS 
 

9.1 There are no alternative options presented. 

 
 
10.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 

10.1 To comply with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s 
(CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2011.  

 
 
11.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 

11.1 The report provides Members with a summary of the economy, the effect it has had 
on financial markets and the treasury activity during 2014-15. The report requires 
scrutiny prior to submitting to Council for approval.  

 
 
12.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 

12.1.1 The report has no implications which would affect the Carbon Management Plan.  
 

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

25 Year Target 1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year 

Page 123



12.2 Constitution & Legal 
 

12.2.1 This Council is required to produce a mid term treasury report to comply with the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice 
on Treasury Management 2011. The report has no implications which would affect 
the constitution and does not therefore warrant a further change in the constitution.  

 
12.3 Contracts 
 

12.3.1 Consideration has been given to Contracts implications, and in the opinion of the 
report writer, there are none. 

 
12.4 Corporate Priorities 
 

12.4.1 The Treasury Management Strategy assists in delivering the Councils corporate 
priorities and this report provides an update as at 30 September 2014. 

 
12.5 Crime and Disorder  
 

12.5.1 Consideration has been given to Crime and Disorder implications, and in the 
opinion of the report writer, there are none. 

 
12.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 

12.6.1 The report has no implications which would affect equality and diversity & human 
rights.  

 
12.7 Financial 
 

12.7.1 This mid term report provides a review of the treasury activity for the first six month 
of the 2014-15 financial year. 

 
12.8 Health & Wellbeing 
 

12.8.1 Consideration has been given to Health and Wellbeing implications, and in the 
opinion of the report writer, there are none. 

 
12.9 Risk Management  
 

12.9.1 The Council’s priority is the security of its investments.  
 
12.10 Staffing 

 

12.10.1Consideration has been given to Staffing implications, and in the opinion of the 
 report writer, there are none. 
  
12.11 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 

12.11.1 The Council’s priority is the security of its investments. 
 

12.11.2 Capita Asset Services have been consulted in relation to the compilation of this  
            report. 
 

Page 124



13.0    WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 

13.1 None. 

 
14.0     ACRONYMS  
 

14.1 CPBS – Compass Point Business Services  
14.2 CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy 
14.3 GDP – Gross Domestic Product 
14.4 MPC – Monetary Policy Committee 
14.5 CPI – Consumer Price Index 
14.6 EZ - Eurozone 
14.7 ECB – European Central Bank 
14.8 PWLB – Public Works Loan Board 
14.9 QE – Quantitative Easing (purchase of sovereign debt) 
14.10 TMSS – Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
14.11 CFR – Capital Financing Requirement 
14.12 HRA – Housing Revenue Account 
 
 
Background papers:-  None 
 
       
Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post:  Sean Howsam – Finance Manager Treasury (Compass 

Point Business Services) 
Telephone Number: 01507 613248 

Email: sean.howsam@cpbs.com 

 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting 
Name and Post:  Mark Finch – Finance Manager 
 
Key Decision:  No  
 
Exempt Decision: No  
 
This report refers to a Mandatory Service  
 
Appendices attached to this report:    None 

  
 

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Section 151 Officer 
 
To: Governance and Audit Committee – 18 December 2014 

Cabinet – 17 February 2015 
Council – 25 February 2015 

 
(Author: Sean Howsam – Finance Manager Treasury (CPBS)) 
 
Subject: Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 

Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 2015/16 
 
Purpose: To provide pre-decision scrutiny to the strategy being proposed. 
 

Recommendation:  
 

That the Governance and Audit Committee scrutinise the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy and Annual Investment Strategy 2015/16 and 
make any comments and suggestions to be considered by Cabinet when they consider these 
documents at their meeting on 17 February 2015. 

 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash raised during the year 

will meet its cash expenditure.  Part of the treasury management operations ensure this 
cash flow is adequately planned, with surplus monies being invested in low risk 
counterparties, providing adequate liquidity initially before considering maximising 
investment return.  

 
1.2 The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the 

Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the 
Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure the Council can meet its 
capital spending obligations.  This management of longer term cash may involve arranging 
long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses, and on occasion any 
debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives. 

 
1.3 As a consequence treasury management is defined as: 
 

“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money 
market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with 
those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.” 

 
1.4 The Treasury Management function is administered by Compass Point Business Services 

on behalf of the Council. 
 
1.5 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on 

Treasury Management 2011 was adopted by this Council on 8 March 2012. 
 

The primary requirements of the Code are as follows:  
 

• Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement which sets 
out the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury management activities; 

Page 127

Agenda Item 10.



• Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out the 
manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives; 

• Receipt by the full council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement - 
including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision 
Policy - for the year ahead, a Mid-year Review Report and an Annual Report 
(stewardship report) covering activities during the previous year; 

• Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and monitoring treasury 
management policies and practices and for the execution and administration of 
treasury management decisions; 

• Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury management strategy and 
policies to a specific named body.  For this Council the delegated body is the 
Governance and Audit Committee. 

 
2.0 SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The Act requires the Council to set out its Treasury Management Strategy Statement, 

Minimum Revenue Provision Policy and Annual Investment Strategy for the forthcoming 
year. These outline the Council’s strategy for borrowing and its policies for managing its 
investments and for giving priority to the security and liquidity of those investments. Our 
strategy statements for 2015/16 are attached at Appendix A. The strategy statements 
cover: 

 

• reporting requirements 

• capital prudential indicators 2014/15 to 2017/87 

• the borrowing requirement 

• the MRP policy 

• the use of the Council’s resources and the investment position 

• Prudential and Treasury Indicators 

• treasury limits in force which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council 

• prospects for interest rates 

• the borrowing strategy 

• policy on borrowing in advance of need 

• debt rescheduling 

• the investment policy 

• creditworthiness policy 

• country limits 

• investment strategy 
 

2.2 The strategy document presented to Governance and Audit for scrutiny is currently at draft 
stage. This is because the future Capital Programme has yet to be finalised and approved 
by Council. Once this is known the tables within the strategy document shown at Appendix 
A will be updated and submitted to Council for approval before the commencement of the 
2015/16 financial year. 

 
2.3 The Council is currently considering the creation of a Housing Company and is preparing a 

Housing Investment Strategy. This may involve the Council taking on additional borrowing 
and providing a loan to the Housing Company. Once further information becomes available 
it may result in amendments to the draft strategy attached.   

 
 
 
 
 

Page 128



2.4 The Council’s strategy statement has been prepared in accordance with the 2011 Code 
and will require approval by Full Council. In addition there will be monitoring reports and 
regular review by Councillors in both executive and scrutiny functions.  The aim of these 
reporting arrangements is to ensure that those with ultimate responsibility for the treasury 
management function appreciate fully the implications of treasury management policies and 
activities, and that those implementing policies and executing transactions have properly 
fulfilled their responsibilities with regard to delegation and reporting. 

 
3.0 OPTIONS 
 
3.1 Members have the option of making comments to Cabinet in respect of the proposed 

strategy or alternatively making no comments.  
 
4.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
4.1 To comply with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code 

of Practice on Treasury Management 2011.  
 
5.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
5.1 The report provides Governance and Audit Members with the proposed Treasury 

Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and 
Annual Investment Strategy for 2015/16. The report requires scrutiny prior to submitting to 
Council for approval. 

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 
6.1.1    Carbon Footprint/Environmental Issues implications have been considered, and in the 

 opinion of the report author, there are none. 
 
6.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
6.2.1    This Council is required to produce a Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum 

Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy before the 
commencement of each financial year to comply with the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2011. The 
report has no implications which would affect the constitution and does not therefore 
warrant a further change in the constitution. 

 
6.3 Contracts 
 
6.3.1    Contracts implications have been considered, and in the opinion of the report author, there 

 are none. 
 
6.4 Corporate Priorities 
 
6.4.1    The Treasury Management Strategy (incorporating the Annual Investment Strategy) aims 

to achieve the optimum performance from the Council’s cash flow, debt and investment 
operations and effectively control the associated risks. This will help to finance the 
corporate priorities of the Council. 

 
 
 

Page 129



6.5 Crime and Disorder  
 
6.5.1    Crime and Disorder implications have been considered, and in the opinion of the report 

 author, there are none. 
 
6.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 
6.6.1    Equality and Diversity/Human Rights implications have been considered, and in the 

 opinion of the report author, there are none. 
  
6.7 Financial  
 
6.7.1    Adoption of the proposed Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue 

Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy will ensure sound financial 
controls associated with the management of the authority’s investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions and safeguard these assets. 

 
6.8 Health & Wellbeing 
 
6.8.1    Health and Wellbeing implications have been considered, and in the opinion of the report 

 author, there are none. 
 
6.9 Risk Management  
 

6.9.1   The Strategy will put in place measures for the effective control of the risks associated with 

Treasury Management and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.  
The Council’s priority is the security of its investments. 

 
6.10 Staffing 
 
6.10.1  Staffing implications have been considered, and in the opinion of the report author, there 

 are none. 
   
6.11 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
6.11.1 The report is being submitted for pre decision scrutiny prior to submission to Cabinet and 

Council. 
 
6.11.2 Capita Asset Services have been consulted in relation to the compilation of this report. 
 
7.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
7.1       None  
 
8.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1 CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
7.2 CPBS – Compass Point Business Services 
7.3 MRP – Minimum Revenue Provision 
7.4 VRP – Voluntary Revenue Provision 
7.5 CLG – Communities and Local Government 
7.6 HRA – Housing Revenue Account 
7.7 PFI – Public Finance Initiative 
7.8 CFR – Capital Financing Requirement 
7.9 PWLB – Public Works Loan Board 

Page 130



7.10 CPI – Consumer Price Index 
7.11 GDP – Gross Domestic Product 
7.12 CDS – Credit Default Swap 
7.13 MPC – Monetary Policy Committee 
7.14 EZ – Eurozone 
7.15 ECB – European Central Bank 
7.16     QE – Quantitative Easing (purchase of Sovereign Debt) 
 

Background papers:-  None 

 

Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post:  Sean Howsam – Finance Manager Treasury (Compass Point 

Business Services) 
Telephone Number: 01507 613248 
Email: sean.howsam@cpbs.com 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting 
Name and Post:  Mark Finch 
 
Key Decision:  No 
 
Exempt Decision: No  
 
This report refers to a Mandatory Service 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
Appendix A   Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue 

Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 
2015/16. 

 

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



   

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
 
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy 

 

South Holland District Council 
 
2015/16 

Page 133



 2

INDEX 
 

1 INTRODUCTION        3 
 

1.1 Background        3 
1.2 Reporting requirements      3 
1.3 Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16    4 
1.4 Training        5 
1.5 Treasury management consultants     5 
 

2 THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2015/16 – 2017/18  5 
 

2.1 Capital expenditure       5 
2.2 The Council’s borrowing need (the Capital Financing 

Requirement)        6 
2.3 Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement   7 
2.4 Core funds and expected investment balances    8 
2.5 Affordability prudential indicators     8 
2.6 Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream    8 
2.7 Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on 

council tax        9 
2.8 Estimates of the incremental impact of capital investment 

decisions on housing rent levels     9 
2.9 HRA ratios        9 
 

3 BORROWING        10 
 

3.1 Current portfolio position      10 
3.2 Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity    11 
3.3 Prospects for interest rates      12 
3.4 Borrowing strategy       13 
3.5 Policy on borrowing in advance of need    15 
3.6 Debt rescheduling       15 
3.7 Municipal Bonds Agency      16 
 

4 ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY     17 
 

4.1 Introduction – changes to credit rating methodology   17 
4.2 Investment policy       17 
4.3 Creditworthiness policy       19 
4.4 Country limits        20 
4.5 Investment strategy       20 
4.6 Investment risk benchmarking      21 
4.7 End of year investment report      21 
 

5 APPENDICES        22 
 

1 Interest Rate Forecasts 2014 – 2018     23 
2 Economic Background       24 
3 Treasury Management Practice (TMP1) – Credit and 

Counterparty Risk Management     29 
4 Approved Countries for Investments     33 
5 Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation    34 
6 The Treasury Management Role of the Section 151 Officer  35 

 

Page 134



 3

 
 

1.  Introduction 

1.1 Background 

The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that 
cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure.  Part of the treasury 
management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with 
cash being available when it is needed.  Surplus monies are invested in low risk 
counterparties or instruments commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, 
providing adequate liquidity initially before considering investment return. 
 
The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of 
the Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing 
need of the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that 
the Council can meet its capital spending obligations.  This management of longer 
term cash may involve arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term 
cash flow surpluses.  On occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured 
to meet Council risk or cost objectives.  
 
CIPFA defines treasury management as: 
 
“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks. ” 
 
The Council’s treasury function is undertaken by Compass Point Business 
Services (East Coast) Ltd (CPBS) on behalf of the Council. CPBS is 
responsible for: 
 

• Production of the annual treasury management strategy  

• Production of regular treasury management policy reports 

• Production of treasury management practices 

• Production of budget and budget variations relating to the treasury 
management function 

• Production of management information reports 

• Provision of adequate treasury management resources and skills, and 
effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management 
function 

• Arrangement of the appointment of external service providers. 
 
1.2 Reporting requirements 
 
The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main 
reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and 
actuals.  

Page 135



 4

Prudential and Treasury Indicators and Treasury Strategy (this report) - 
The first, and most important report covers: 

• the capital plans (including prudential indicators); 

• a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy (how residual capital 
expenditure is charged to revenue over time); 

• the treasury management strategy (how the investments and borrowings 
are to be organised) including treasury indicators; and  

• an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be 
managed). 

 
A Mid Year Treasury Management Report – This will update members with 
the progress of the capital position, amending prudential indicators as 
necessary, and whether any policies require revision. 
 
An Annual Treasury Report – This provides details of a selection of actual 
prudential and treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared to 
the estimates within the strategy. 
 
Scrutiny 
The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being 
recommended to the Council.  This role is undertaken by the Governance and 
Audit Committee. 
 
1.3 Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16 
 
The strategy for 2015/16 covers two main areas: 
 
Capital Issues 

• the capital plans and the prudential indicators; 

• the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy. 

 

Treasury Management Issues 

• the current treasury position; 

• treasury indicators which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the 
Council; 

• prospects for interest rates; 

• the borrowing strategy; 

• policy on borrowing in advance of need; 

• debt rescheduling; 

• the investment strategy; 

• creditworthiness policy; and 

• policy on use of external service providers. 

 

These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the 
CIPFA Prudential Code, the Communities and Local Government (CLG) MRP 
Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code and the CLG Investment 
Guidance. 

Page 136



 5

1.4 Training 

The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that members with 
responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury 
management.  This especially applies to members responsible for scrutiny.  
Training is arranged as required. 

   

The training needs of CPBS treasury management officers are periodically 
reviewed.  

1.5 Treasury management consultants 

CPBS uses Capita Asset Services as external treasury management advisors for 
the Council. 
 
The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions 
remains with the Council at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not 
placed upon external service providers.  
 
It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury 
management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and 
resources. The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the 
methods by which their value will be assessed are properly agreed and 
documented, and subjected to regular review.  

 

2. The Capital Prudential Indicators 2015/16 – 2017/18 

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury 
management activity.  The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected 
in prudential indicators, which are designed to assist members’ overview and 
confirm capital expenditure plans. 

2.1 Capital expenditure 

This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure 
plans, both those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget 
cycle.  Members approve capital expenditure forecasts as part of the annual 
Budget report. 

** Please note that the budgets are currently being worked on and are 
out for consultation so the figures will be subject to change as well as 
the prudential indicators. The final formal approval will take place by 
Council in February 2015. 

Page 137



 6

 

Capital 
Expenditure 
£’000’s 

2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Latest 

Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

General Fund 1,336 4,019 1,187 560 780 

HRA 5,396 10,056 7,256 7,591 7,739 

Total 6,732 14,075 8,443 8,151 8,519 

 

The table below summarises the capital expenditure plans and how these 
plans are being financed by capital or revenue resources.  Any shortfall of 
resources results in a funding need (borrowing).  

 

Capital Expenditure 
£’000’s 

2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Latest 

Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

General Fund 1,336 4,019 1,187 560 780 

HRA 5,396 10,056 7,256 7,591 7,739 

Total Spend 6,732 14,075 8,443 8,151 8,519 

Financed by:      

Capital receipts 272 164 126 129 132 

Capital grants & 
contributions 839 1,781 451 451 451 

Direct Revenue 
Funding /Use of 
Reserves 5,621 10,620 7,866 7,491 7,726 

Total Financing 6,732 12,565 8,443 8,071 8,309 

Net financing need 
for the year 

 
0 

 
1,510 

 
0 

 
80 

 
210 

 

Other long term liabilities - the above financing need excludes other long term 
liabilities, such as Private Financing Initiative (PFI) and leasing arrangements 
which already include borrowing instruments.   

2.2 The Council’s borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement) 

The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR).  The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital 
expenditure which has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital 
resources.  It is essentially a measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing 
need.  Any capital expenditure above, which has not immediately been paid 
for, will increase the CFR.  

The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the MRP is a statutory annual 
revenue charge which broadly reduces the borrowing need in line with each 
assets life. 

Page 138



 7

The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. PFI schemes, finance 
leases).  Whilst these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council’s 
borrowing requirement, these types of scheme include a borrowing facility and 
so the Council is not required to separately borrow for these schemes.  The 
Council currently has £254k of such schemes within the CFR. 

As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the CFR 
projections, as follows: 

 

£’000’s 2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Latest 

Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Capital Financing Requirement 

CFR - non HRA 741 2,216 1,962 1,792 1,743 

CFR - HRA 69,653 69,407 69,161 68,915 68,669 

Total CFR 70,394 71,623 71,123 70,707 70,412 

Movement in CFR (511) 1,229 (500) (416) (295) 

Movement in CFR represented by 

Net financing need for 
the year (above) 

 
- 

 
1,510 

 
- 

 
80 

 
210 

Less MRP and other 
financing movements 

 
(511) 

 
(281) 

 
(500) 

 
(496) 

 
(505) 

Movement in CFR (511) 1,229 (500) (496) (505) 

Note the MRP includes finance lease annual principal payments. 

 

2.3 Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement 

The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General 
Fund capital spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the 
minimum revenue provision - MRP), although it is also allowed to undertake 
additional voluntary payments if required (voluntary revenue provision - VRP).   

CLG Regulations have been issued which require the full Council to approve 
an MRP Statement in advance of each year.  A variety of options are 
provided to councils, so long as there is a prudent provision.   

The Council is recommended to approve the following MRP Statement: 

For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 or which in the future will 
be Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy will be: 

• Existing practice - MRP will follow the existing practice outlined 
in former CLG regulations (option 1)  

These options provide for an approximate 4% reduction in the borrowing need 
(CFR) each year. 

From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing (including PFI and finance 
leases) the MRP policy will be: 

• Asset Life Method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of 
the assets, in accordance with the regulations (this option must be 
applied for any expenditure capitalised under a Capitalisation 
Direction) (option 3) 

Page 139



 8

These options provide for a reduction in the borrowing need over 
approximately the asset’s life.  

There is no requirement on the HRA to make a minimum revenue provision 
but there is a requirement for a charge for depreciation to be made (although 
there are transitional arrangements in place). 

Repayments included in finance leases are applied as MRP.  

2.4 Core funds and expected investment balances 

The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance 
capital expenditure or other budget decisions to support the revenue budget 
will have an ongoing impact on investments unless resources are 
supplemented each year from new sources (asset sales etc.).  Detailed below 
are estimates of the year end balances for each resource and anticipated day 
to day cash flow balances. 

 

*Working capital balances shown are estimated year end; these may be 
higher mid year. 
 
 

2.5 Affordability prudential indicators 

The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing 
prudential indicators, but within this framework, prudential indicators are 
required to assess the affordability of the capital investment plans. These 
provide an indication of the impact of the capital investment plans on the 
Council’s overall finances.  As part of the formal governance process, the 
Council approves the following indicators: 

 

2.6 Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream. 

This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other 
long-term obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue 
stream. 

Year End Resources 
£’000’s 

2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

General Fund Balance 2,034 2,034 2,034 2,034          2,034 

HRA Working Balance 6,835 5,847 6,388 6,956 7,629 

Earmarked Reserves  8,083 8,383 8,626 9,017 8,795 

Capital Grants Unapplied 1,612 1,276 1,201 1,126 1,051 

Capital receipts 1,410 1,410 1,410 1,410 1,410 

Receipts in Advance 633 0 0 0 0 

Total core funds 20,607 18,950 19,659 20,543 20,919 

Working capital* 6 6 6 6 6 

Under borrowing (2,901) (4,411) (4,411) (4,491) (4,701) 

Expected investments 17,712 14,545 15,254 16,058 16,224 

Page 140



 9

 

 

 2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Non-HRA 0.95% -0.47% 1.49% 1.54% 1.66% 

HRA  25.08% 24.12% 22.68% 21.84% 21.8% 

 

The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the 
proposals in this budget report. 
 
2.7 Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on the band D 
council tax. 
 
This indicator identifies the revenue costs associated with proposed changes to 
the three year capital programme recommended in this budget report compared 
to the Council’s existing approved commitments and current plans.  The 
assumptions are based on the budget, but will invariably include some estimates, 
such as the level of Government support, which are not published over a three 
year period. 
 
 2013/14 

Actual 
2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Council tax - band D £0.09 £-4.13 £4.41 £8.39 £8.42 

 
2.8 Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on housing rent 
levels. 
 
Similar to the council tax calculation, this indicator identifies the trend in the cost of 
proposed changes in the housing capital programme recommended in this budget 
report compared to the Council’s existing commitments and current plans, 
expressed as a discrete impact on weekly rent levels.   
 

 2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Weekly housing rent 
levels 

 
£0.06 

 
£0.09 

 
£0.07 

 
£0.16 

 
£0.16 

 

This indicator shows the revenue impact on any newly proposed changes, 
although any discrete impact will be constrained by rent controls.   
 
 
2.9 HRA Ratios 
 
 2013/14 

Actual 
2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

HRA debt £m 67 67 67 67 67 

HRA revenues £m 16 16 17 17 17 

Ratio of debt to 
revenues (%) 

 
419 

 
419 

 
394 

 
394 

 
394 

 

Page 141



 10

 
 2013/14 

Actual 
2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

HRA debt £m 67 67 67 67 67 

Number of HRA 
dwellings 

 
3,888 

 
3,904 

 
3,905 

 
3,908 

 
3,911 

Debt per dwelling  (£) 17,232 17,162 17,157 17,144 17,131 

 
3.   Borrowing 
 
The capital expenditure plans set out in Section 2 provide details of the service 
activity of the Council.  The treasury management function ensures that the 
Council’s cash is organised in accordance with the the relevant professional 
codes, so that sufficient cash is available to meet this service activity.  This will 
involve both the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans require, the 
organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities.  The strategy covers the relevant 
treasury / prudential indicators, the current and projected debt positions and the 
annual investment strategy. 
 
3.1 Current portfolio position 

The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 March 2014, with forward 
projections are  summarised below. The table shows the actual external debt (the 
treasury management operations), against the underlying capital borrowing need 
(the Capital Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under 
borrowing.  

£’000’s 2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

External Debt 
Debt at 1 April  67,750 67,493 67,469 67,456 67,456 

Expected change in Debt (7) (3) 0 0 0 

Other long-term liabilities 
(OLTL) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Expected change in OLTL (250) (21) (13) 0 0 

Actual gross debt at 31 
March  

67,493 67,469 67,456 67,456 67,456 

The Capital Financing 
Requirement 

70,394     71,621 71,123 70,707 70,412 

Under / (over) borrowing 2,901 4,152 3,667 3,251 2,956 

 

Within the prudential indicators, there are a number of key indicators to 
ensure that the Council operates its activities within well-defined limits.  One 
of these is that the Council needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except 
in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the 
estimates of any additional CFR for 2015/16 and the following two financial years. 
This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years, but 
ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes.      

 

  

Page 142



 11

The Section 151 Officer reports that the Council complied with this prudential 
indicator in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future.  
This view takes into account current commitments, existing plans, and the 
proposals in this budget report. 

 

3.2 Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity 

The Operational Boundary.  This is the limit beyond which external debt is 
not normally expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would be a similar figure 
to the CFR, but may be lower or higher depending on the levels of actual debt. 

Operational boundary 
£’000’s 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Debt 71,456 71,456 71,456 71,456 

Other long term liabilities 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Total 72,456 72,456 72,456 72,456 

 

The Authorised Limit for external debt. A further key prudential indicator 
represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing.  This represents a 
limit beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or 
revised by the full Council.  It reflects the level of external debt which, while 
not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the 
longer term.   

1. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local 
Government Act 2003. The Government retains an option to control 
either the total of all councils’ plans, or those of a specific council, 
although this power has never been exercised. 

2. As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the 
following indicators, as shown below: 

Authorised limit £’000’s 2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Debt 74,456 74,456 74,456 74,456 

Other long term liabilities 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Total 75,456 75,456 75,456 75,456 

 

Separately, the Council is also limited to a maximum HRA CFR through the HRA 
self-financing regime.  This limit is currently: 
 

HRA Debt Limit £’000 2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Total 74,701 74,701 74,701 74,701 

 

Page 143



 12

 
3.3. Prospects for interest rates 
 
Capita Asset Services has been appointed as the Council’s treasury advisor 
and part of their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest 
rates.  Appendix 1 draws together a number of current City forecasts for short 
term (Bank Rate) and longer fixed interest rates.  The following table gives the 
Capita Asset Services’ central view.  
 
Annual 
Average % 

Bank Rate 
% 

PWLB Borrowing Rates% 
(including certainty rate adjustment) 

  5 year 25 year 50 year 

Dec 2014 0.50 2.50 3.90 3.90 

Mar 2015 0.50 2.70 4.00 4.00 

Jun 2015 0.75 2.70 4.10 4.10 

Sep 2015 0.75 2.80 4.30 4.30 

Dec 2015 1.00 2.90 4.40 4.40 

Mar 2016 1.00 3.00 4.50 4.50 

Jun 2016 1.25 3.10 4.60 4.60 

Sep 2016 1.25 3.20 4.70 4.70 

Dec 2016 1.50 3.30 4.70 4.70 

Mar 2017 1.50 3.40 4.80 4.80 

Jun 2017 1.75 3.50 4.80 4.80 

Sep 2017 2.00 3.50 4.90 4.90 

Dec 2017 2.25 3.50 4.90 4.90 

Mar 2018 2.50 3.50 5.00 5.00 

 

Until 2013, the economic recovery in the UK since 2008 had been the worst and 
slowest recovery in recent history. However, growth has rebounded during 2013 
and especially during 2014, to surpass all expectations, propelled by recovery in 
consumer spending and the housing market.  Forward surveys are also currently 
very positive in indicating that growth prospects are strong for 2015, particularly in 
the services and construction sectors. However, growth in the manufacturing 
sector and in exports has weakened during 2014 due to poor growth in the 
Eurozone. 

There does need to be a significant rebalancing of the economy away from 
consumer spending to manufacturing, business investment and exporting in order 
for this initial stage in the recovery to become more firmly established. One drag 
on the economy is that wage inflation has been lower than CPI inflation so 
eroding disposable income and living standards, although income tax cuts have 
ameliorated this to some extent. This therefore means that labour productivity 
must improve significantly for this situation to be corrected by warranting 
increases in pay rates. 

In addition, the encouraging rate at which unemployment has been falling must 
eventually feed through into pressure for wage increases, though current views on 
the amount of hidden slack in the labour market probably means that this is 
unlikely to happen in the near future. 

 

Page 144



 13

The US, the main world economy, faces similar debt problems to the UK, but 
thanks to reasonable growth, cuts in government expenditure and tax rises, the 
annual government deficit has been halved from its peak without appearing to do 
too much damage to growth.    

The current economic outlook and structure of market interest rates and 
government debt yields have several key treasury management implications: 

 
• As for the Eurozone, concerns in respect of a major crisis subsided 

considerably in 2013.  However, the downturn in growth and inflation 
during the second half of 2014, and worries over the Ukraine situation, 
Middle East and Ebola, have led to a resurgence of those concerns as 
risks increase that it could be heading into deflation and a triple dip 
recession since 2008.  Sovereign debt difficulties have not gone away 
and major concerns could return in respect of individual countries that do 
not dynamically address fundamental issues of low growth, international 
uncompetitiveness and the need for overdue reforms of the economy (as 
Ireland has done).  It is, therefore, possible over the next few years that 
levels of government debt to GDP ratios could continue to rise to levels 
that could result in a loss of investor confidence in the financial viability of 
such countries.  Counterparty risks therefore remain elevated.  This 
continues to suggest the use of higher quality counterparties for shorter 
time periods; 

• Investment returns are likely to remain relatively low during 2015/16 and 
beyond; 

• Borrowing interest rates have been volatile during 2014 as alternating 
bouts of good and bad news  have promoted optimism, and then 
pessimism, in financial markets.  During July to October 2014, a building 
accumulation of negative news has led to an overall trend of falling rates.  
The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash 
balances has served well over the last few years.  However, this needs 
to be carefully reviewed to avoid incurring higher borrowing costs in later 
times, when authorities will not be able to avoid new borrowing to finance 
new capital expenditure and/or to refinance maturing debt; 

• There will remain a cost of carry to any new borrowing which causes an 
increase in investments as this will incur a revenue loss between 
borrowing costs and investment returns. 

3.4  Borrowing strategy  

The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position.  This means that 
the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not been 
fully funded with loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances 
and cash flow has been used as a temporary measure.  This strategy is prudent 
as investment returns are low and counterparty risk is relatively high. 

Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be 
adopted with the 2015/16 treasury operations.  The Section 151 Officer will 

Page 145



 14

monitor interest rates in financial markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to 
changing circumstances: 

 
• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and 

short term rates, e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse 
into recession or of risks of deflation, then long term borrowings will be 
postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate funding into short 
term borrowing will be considered. 

 
• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in 

long and short term rates than that currently forecast perhaps arising 
from a greater than expected increase in the anticipated rate to US 
tapering of asset purchases, or in world economic activity or a sudden 
increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio position will be re-appraised 
with the likely action that fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst interest 
rates are still lower than they will be in the next few years. 

Any decisions will be reported to the appropriate decision making body at the next 
available opportunity. 

 
Treasury management limits on activity 

There are three debt related treasury activity limits.  The purpose of these are 
to restrain the activity of the treasury function within certain limits, thereby 
managing risk and reducing the impact of any adverse movement in interest 
rates.  However, if these are set to be too restrictive they will impair the 
opportunities to reduce costs / improve performance.  The indicators are: 

• Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a 
maximum limit for variable interest rates based upon the debt position 
net of investments; 

• Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure.  This is similar to the 
previous indicator and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates; 

• Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce 
the Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for 
refinancing, and are required for upper and lower limits.   

As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the treasury 
indicators, as follows: 

Page 146



 15

 

£,000’s 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

Interest rate exposures 

 Upper Upper Upper 

Limits on fixed interest 
rates based on net debt 
 

75,456 75,456 75,456 

Limits on variable 
interest rates based on 
net debt 

8,000 8,000 8,000 

Limits on fixed interest 
rates: 

• Debt only 
• Investments only 

 
 

 75,456 
(15,000) 

 
 

 75,456 
(15,000) 

 
 

 75,456 
(15,000) 

Limits on variable 
interest rates 

• Debt only 
• Investments only 

 
 

  8,000 
(15,000) 

 
 

  8,000 
(15,000) 

 
 

  8,000 
(15,000) 

Maturity structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2015/16 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 100% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 100% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 100% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 100% 

10 years to 20 years 0% 100% 

20 years to 30 years 0% 100% 

30 years to 40 years 0% 100% 

40 years to 50 years 0% 100% 

Maturity structure of variable interest rate borrowing 2015/16 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 10% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 10% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 10% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 10% 

10 years to 20 years 0% 10% 

20 years to 30 years 0% 10% 

30 years to 40 years 0% 10% 

40 years to 50 years 0% 10% 

 

3.5  Policy on borrowing in advance of need  

The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs, purely in order 
to profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow 
in advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement 
estimates, and will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be 
demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds.  
 

Page 147



 16

Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior 
appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting 
mechanism.  

3.6  Debt Rescheduling 

As short term borrowing rates will be considerably cheaper than longer term fixed 
interest rates, there may be potential opportunities to generate savings by 
switching from long term debt to short term debt.  However, these savings will 
need to be considered in the light of the current treasury position and the size of 
the cost of debt repayment (premiums incurred).  
 
The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include:  

• the generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow savings; 

• helping to fulfil the treasury strategy; 

• enhance the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile and/or the 
balance of volatility). 

 
Consideration will also be given to identify if there is any residual potential for 
making savings by running down investment balances to repay debt prematurely 
as short term rates on investments are likely to be lower than rates paid on 
current debt.   
 
All rescheduling will be reported to the Cabinet , at the earliest meeting following 
its action. 

3.7  Municipal Bonds Agency 

It is likely that the Municipal Bond Agency, currently in the process of being set up, 
will be offering loans to local authorities in the near future.  It is also hoped that the 
borrowing rates will be lower than those offered by the Public Works Loan Board 
(PWLB).  This Authority intends to make use of this new source of borrowing as 
and when appropriate. 

Page 148



 17

4  Annual Investment Strategy  

4.1 Introduction: changes to credit rating methodology 

The main rating agencies (Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s) have, through 
much of the financial crisis, provided some institutions with a ratings “uplift” due to 
implied levels of sovereign support. More recently, in response to the evolving 
regulatory regime, the agencies have indicated they may remove these “uplifts”. 
This process may commence during 2014/15 and/or 2015/16. The actual timing 
of the changes is still subject to discussion, but this does mean immediate 
changes to the credit methodology are required. 

It is important to stress that the rating agency changes do not reflect any changes 
in the underlying status of the institution or credit environment, merely the implied 
level of sovereign support that has been built into ratings through the financial 
crisis. The eventual removal of implied sovereign support will only take place 
when the regulatory and economic environments have ensured that financial 
institutions are much stronger and less prone to failure in a financial crisis. 

Both Fitch and Moody’s provide “standalone” credit ratings for financial 
institutions. For Fitch, it is the Viability Rating, while Moody’s has the Financial 
Strength Rating. Due to the future removal of sovereign support from institution 
assessments, both agencies have suggested going forward that these will be in 
line with their respective Long Term ratings. As such, there is no point monitoring 
both Long Term and these “standalone” ratings.  

Furthermore, Fitch has already begun assessing its Support ratings, with a clear 
expectation that these will be lowered to 5, which is defined as “A bank for which 
there is a possibility of external support, but it cannot be relied upon.” With all 
institutions likely to drop to these levels, there is little to no differentiation to be had 
by assessing Support ratings.  

As a result of these rating agency changes, the credit element of our future 
methodology will focus solely on the Short and Long Term ratings of an institution. 
Rating Watch and Outlook information will continue to be assessed where it 
relates to these categories. This is the same process for Standard & Poor’s that 
we have always taken, but a change to the use of Fitch and Moody’s ratings. 
Furthermore, we will continue to utilise CDS prices as an overlay to ratings in our 
new methodology. 

4.2 Investment policy 

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s Guidance on Local 
Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the revised CIPFA Treasury 
Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance 
Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”).  The Council’s investment priorities will be security 
first, liquidity second, then return. 
 
In accordance with the above guidance from CIPFA , and in order to minimise the 
risk to investments, the Council applies minimum acceptable credit criteria in 
order to generate a list of highly creditworthy counterparties which also enables 
diversification and thus avoidance of concentration risk. 

Page 149



 18

Continuing regulatory changes in the banking sector are designed to see greater 
stability, lower risk and the removal of expectations of Government financial 
support should an institution fail.  This withdrawal of implied sovereign support is 
anticipated to have an effect on ratings applied to institutions.  This will result in 
the key ratings used to monitor counterparties being the Short Term and Long 
Term ratings only.  Viability, Financial Strength and Support Ratings previously 
applied will effectively become redundant.  This change does not reflect 
deterioration in the credit environment but rather a change of method in response 
to regulatory changes. 
 
The Council’s funds are managed by CPBS with reference to a detailed cash flow 
forecast on a daily basis for the current year. Protocols are in place to govern the 
movement of funds within specific limits.  
 
Further, officers recognise that ratings should not be the sole determinant of the 
quality of an institution and that it is important to contiunally assess and monitor 
the financial sector on both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the 
economic and political environments in which institutions operate. The 
assessment will also take account of information that reflects the opinion of the 
markets. To this end the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a 
monitor on market pricing such as “credit default swaps” (CDS) and overlay that 
information on top of the credit ratings. This is fully integrated into the credit 
methodology provided by the advisors, Capita Asset Services  in producing its 
colour codings which show the varying degrees of suggested creditworthiness. 
 
Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and 
other such information pertaining to the banking sector in order to establish the 
most robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential investment 
counterparties. 
 
The intention of the strategy is to provide security of investment and minimisation 
of risk. 
 
Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed in 
Appendix 3 under the ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments categories. The 
maximum total investments to any individual financial institution or its parent 
group is £5m. There is also a combined limit of £10m for investments with part-
nationalised banks. 

Page 150



 19

4.3 Creditworthiness policy  
 
This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Capita Asset 
Services.  This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utlilising 
credit ratings from the three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and 
Standard and Poor’s.  The credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented with 
the following overlays:  
 

• credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 

• CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; 

• sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy 
countries. 

 
This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches and credit 
outlooks in a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of 
CDS spreads for which the end product is a series of colour coded bands which 
indicate the relative creditworthiness of counterparties.  These colour codes are 
used by the Council to determine the suggested duration for investments.   The 
Council will therefore use counterparties within the following durational bands:  
 

• Yellow 5 years 
• Dark Pink 5 years for Enhanced money market funds with a credit score  

of 1.25  
• Light Pink 5 years for Enhanced money market funds with a credit score  

of 1.5 
• Purple  2 years 
• Blue  1 year (only applies to nationalised or semi nationalised UK 
 Banks) 
• Orange 1 year 
• Red  6 months 
• Green  100 days  
• No colour  not to be used  

 
The Capita Asset Services creditworthiness service uses a wider array of 
information than just primary ratings and by using a risk weighted scoring system, 
does not give undue preponderance to just one agency’s ratings. 
 
Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a Short Term 
rating (Fitch or equivalents) of F1 and a  Long Term rating of A-.  There may be 
occasions when the counterparty ratings from one rating agency are marginally 
lower than these ratings but may still be used.  In these instances consideration 
will be given to the whole range of ratings available, or other topical market 
information, to support their use. 

Page 151



 20

 
All credit ratings will be monitored daily. CPBS is alerted to changes to ratings of 
all three agencies through its use of the Capita Asset Services creditworthiness 
service.  
 

• if a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer 
meeting the Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment 
will be withdrawn immediately. 

 

• in addition to the use of credit ratings CPBS will be advised of information 
in movements in CDS spreads against the iTraxx benchmark and other 
market data on a weekly basis. Extreme market movements may result in 
downgrade of an institution or removal from the Council’s lending list. 

Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service.  In addition this 
Council will also use market data and market information, information on 
government support for banks and the credit ratings of that supporting 
government. 

4.4 Country limits 

The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from the 
United Kingdom or countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA+ from 
Fitch. The list of countries that qualify using this credit criteria as at the date of this 
report are shown in Appendix 4.  This list will be added to, or deducted from, by 
officers should ratings change in accordance with this policy. 

4.5 Investment Strategy 

In-house funds.  Investments will be made with reference to the core balance 
and cash flow requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates 
for investments up to 12 months).    
 
Investment returns expectations.  Bank Rate is forecast to remain unchanged 
at  0.5% before starting to rise from quarter 2 of 2015. Bank Rate forecasts for 
financial year ends (March) are:  
 

• 2015/ 2016  1.00% 

• 2016/ 2017  1.50% 

• 2017/ 2018  2.50% 

 

There are downside risks to these forecasts (i.e. start of increases in Bank Rate 
occurs later) if economic growth weakens.  However, should the pace of growth 
quicken, there could be an upside risk. 

Page 152



 21

The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments 
placed for periods up to 100 days during each financial year for the next four 
years are as follows:  
 

2015/16  0.90%   
2016/17  1.50%   
2017/18  2.00%   

    2018/19  2.50% 
 

Investment treasury indicator and limit - total principal funds invested for 
greater than 364 days. These limits are set with regard to the Council’s liquidity 
requirements and to reduce the need for early sale of an investment, and are 
based on the availability of funds after each year-end. 

 
As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the treasury 
indicator and limit, as follows: 
 

Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days 

£’000’s 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

Principal sums invested 
> 364 days 

£m 
2,000 

£m 
2,000 

£m 
2,000 

 

For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its business 
reserve instant access and notice accounts, money market funds and short-dated 
deposits (overnight to three months) in order to benefit from the compounding of 
interest.   
 

4.6 Investment Risk Benchmarking 

The Council has not adopted any formal benchmarks in this area, as Officers 
believe that decisions on counterparties and maximum investment levels are 
adequate to monitor the current and trend position, and amend the 
operational strategy to manage risk as conditions change.   

4.7   End of year investment report 

At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity as 
part of its Annual Treasury Report.  

Page 153



 22

5   APPENDICES 
 

1. Interest rate forecasts 

2. Economic background 

3. Treasury Management Practice 1 – Credit and Counterparty Risk 
Management 

4. Approved countries for investments 

5. Treasury management scheme of delegation 

6. The treasury management role of the Section 151 Officer 

 
 
 

Page 154



   

APPENDIX 1 - Interest Rate Forecast 2014 - 2018 as at 5 December 2014 

PWLB rates and forecast shown below take account of the 20 basis point certainty rate reduction effective as of the 1st November 2012. 

Capita Asset Services Interest Rate View

Dec-14 M ar-15 Jun-15 Sep-15 Dec-15 M ar-16 Jun-16 Sep-16 Dec-16 M ar-17 Jun-17 Sep-17 Dec-17 M ar-18

Bank Rate View 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 0.75% 1.00% 1.00% 1.25% 1.25% 1.50% 1.50% 1.75% 2.00% 2.25% 2.50%

3 M onth LIBID 0.50% 0.60% 0.80% 0.90% 1.10% 1.30% 1.40% 1.60% 1.90% 2.10% 2.10% 2.30% 2.40% 2.60%

6 M onth LIBID 0.70% 0.80% 1.00% 1.10% 1.20% 1.40% 1.50% 1.80% 2.00% 2.20% 2.30% 2.50% 2.70% 2.80%

12 M onth LIBID 0.90% 1.00% 1.20% 1.30% 1.40% 1.70% 1.80% 2.10% 2.20% 2.30% 2.40% 2.60% 2.80% 3.00%

5yr PW LB Rate 2.50% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 3.00% 3.10% 3.20% 3.30% 3.40% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%

10yr PW LB Rate 3.20% 3.40% 3.50% 3.60% 3.70% 3.80% 3.90% 4.00% 4.10% 4.10% 4.20% 4.20% 4.30% 4.30%

25yr PW LB Rate 3.90% 4.00% 4.10% 4.30% 4.40% 4.50% 4.60% 4.70% 4.70% 4.80% 4.80% 4.90% 4.90% 5.00%

50yr PW LB Rate 3.90% 4.00% 4.10% 4.30% 4.40% 4.50% 4.60% 4.70% 4.70% 4.80% 4.80% 4.90% 4.90% 5.00%

Bank Rate

Capita Asset Services 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 0.75% 1.00% 1.00% 1.25% 1.25% 1.50% 1.50% 1.75% 2.00% 2.25% 2.50%

Capital Econom ics 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 0.75% 1.00% 1.00% 1.25% 1.25% 1.50% - - - - -

5yr PW LB Rate

Capita Asset Services 2.50% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 3.00% 3.10% 3.20% 3.30% 3.40% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%

Capital Econom ics 2.30% 2.60% 2.80% 3.00% 3.20% 3.40% 3.50% 3.60% 3.70% - - - - -

10yr PW LB Rate

Capita Asset Services 3.20% 3.40% 3.50% 3.60% 3.70% 3.80% 3.90% 4.00% 4.10% 4.10% 4.20% 4.20% 4.30% 4.30%

Capital Econom ics 3.05% 3.25% 3.45% 3.60% 3.80% 3.85% 3.90% 3.95% 4.05% - - - - -

25yr PW LB Rate

Capita Asset Services 3.90% 4.00% 4.10% 4.30% 4.40% 4.50% 4.60% 4.70% 4.70% 4.80% 4.80% 4.90% 4.90% 5.00%

Capital Econom ics 3.70% 3.95% 4.05% 4.15% 4.25% 4.35% 4.45% 4.55% 4.60% - - - - -

50yr PW LB Rate

Capita Asset Services 3.90% 4.00% 4.10% 4.30% 4.40% 4.50% 4.60% 4.70% 4.70% 4.80% 4.80% 4.90% 4.90% 5.00%

Capital Econom ics 3.80% 4.10% 4.20% 4.30% 4.40% 4.50% 4.60% 4.70% 4.80% - - - - -

P
age 155



 

APPENDIX 2 - Economic Background 

UK.  Strong UK GDP quarterly growth of 0.7%, 0.8% and 0.7% in quarters 2, 3 
and 4 respectively in 2013, (2013 annual rate 2.7%), and 0.7% in Q1, 0.9% in Q2 
and a first estimate of 0.7% in Q3 2014 (annual rate 3.1% in Q3), means that the 
UK will have the strongest rate of growth of any G7 country in 2014.  It also 
appears very likely that strong growth will continue through the second half of 
2014 and into 2015 as forward surveys for the services and construction sectors 
are very encouraging and business investment is also strongly recovering.  The 
manufacturing sector has also been encouraging though recent figures indicate a 
weakening in the future trend rate of growth.  However, for this recovery to 
become more balanced and sustainable in the longer term, the recovery needs to 
move away from dependence on consumer expenditure and the housing market 
to exporting, and particularly of manufactured goods, both of which need to 
substantially improve on their recent lacklustre performance.   

This overall strong growth has resulted in unemployment falling much faster 
through the initial threshold of 7%, set by the Monetary Policy Committee 
(MPC) last August, before it said it would consider any increases in Bank Rate.  
The MPC has, therefore, subsequently broadened its forward guidance by 
adopting five qualitative principles and looking at a much wider range of about 
eighteen indicators in order to form a view on how much slack there is in the 
economy and how quickly slack is being used up. The MPC is particularly 
concerned that the current squeeze on the disposable incomes of consumers 
should be reversed by wage inflation rising back above the level of inflation in 
order to ensure that the recovery will be sustainable.  There also needs to be a 
major improvement in labour productivity, which has languished at dismal levels 
since 2008, to support increases in pay rates.  Most economic forecasters are 
expecting growth to peak in 2014 and then to ease off a little, though still 
remaining strong, in 2015 and 2016.  Unemployment is therefore expected to 
keep on its downward trend and this is likely to eventually feed through into a 
return to significant increases in pay rates at some point during the next three 
years.  However, just how much those future increases in pay rates will 
counteract the depressive effect of increases in Bank Rate on consumer 
confidence, the rate of growth in consumer expenditure and the buoyancy of the 
housing market, are areas that will need to be kept under regular review. 

Also encouraging has been the sharp fall in inflation (CPI) during 2014 after 
being consistently above the MPC’s 2% target between December 2009 and 
December 2013.  Inflation fell to 1.2% in September, a five year low.  Forward 
indications are that inflation is likely to fall further in 2014 to possibly near to 1% 
and then to remain near to, or under, the 2% target level over the MPC’s two year 
ahead time horizon.  Overall, markets are expecting that the MPC will be cautious 
in raising Bank Rate as it will want to protect heavily indebted consumers from 
too early an increase in Bank Rate at a time when inflationary pressures are also 
weak.  A first increase in Bank Rate is therefore expected in Q2 2015 and they 
expect increases after that to be at a slow pace to lower levels than prevailed 
before 2008 as increases in Bank Rate will have a much bigger effect on heavily 
indebted consumers than they did before 2008.  

Page 156



 

 

25

The return to strong growth has also helped lower forecasts for the increase in 
Government debt by £73bn over the next five years, as announced in the 2013 
Autumn Statement, and by an additional £24bn, as announced in the March 2014 
Budget - which also forecast a return to a significant budget surplus, (of £5bn), in 
2018-19.  However, monthly public sector deficit figures have disappointed so far 
in 2014/15. 

The Eurozone (EZ).  The Eurozone is facing an increasing threat from weak or 
negative growth and from deflation.  In September, the inflation rate fell further, to 
reach a low of 0.3%.  However, this is an average for all EZ countries and 
includes some countries with negative rates of inflation.  Accordingly, the ECB 
took some rather limited action in June to loosen monetary policy in order to 
promote growth. In September it took further action to cut its benchmark rate to 
only 0.05%, its deposit rate to -0.2% and to start a programme of purchases of 
corporate debt.  However, it has not embarked yet on full quantitative easing 
(purchase of sovereign debt).  

Concern in financial markets for the Eurozone subsided considerably during 2013.  
However, sovereign debt difficulties have not gone away and major issues could 
return in respect of any countries that do not dynamically address fundamental 
issues of low growth, international uncompetitiveness and the need for overdue 
reforms of the economy, (as Ireland has done).  It is, therefore, possible over the 
next few years that levels of government debt to GDP ratios could continue to rise 
for some countries. This could mean that sovereign debt concerns have not 
disappeared but, rather, have only been postponed. The ECB’s pledge in 2012 to 
buy unlimited amounts of bonds of countries which ask for a bailout has provided 
heavily indebted countries with a strong defence against market forces.  This has 
bought them time to make progress with their economies to return to growth or to 
reduce the degree of recession.  However, debt to GDP ratios (2013 figures) of 
Greece 180%, Italy 133%, Portugal 129%, Ireland 124% and Cyprus 112%, 
remain a cause of concern, especially as some of these countries are 
experiencing continuing rates of increase in debt in excess of their rate of 
economic growth i.e. these debt ratios are likely to continue to deteriorate.  Any 
sharp downturn in economic growth would make these countries particularly 
vulnerable to a new bout of sovereign debt crisis.  It should also be noted that Italy 
has the third biggest debt mountain in the world behind Japan and the US.  
Greece remains particularly vulnerable but has made good progress in reducing 
its annual budget deficit and in returning, at last, to marginal economic growth.  
Whilst a Greek exit from the Euro is now improbable in the short term, some 
commentators still view the inevitable end game as either being another major 
right off of debt or an eventual exit.  

There are also particular concerns as to whether democratically elected 
governments will lose the support of electorates suffering under EZ imposed 
austerity programmes, especially in countries like Greece and Spain which have 
unemployment rates of over 24% and unemployment among younger people of 
over 50 – 60%.  There are also major concerns as to whether the governments of 
France and Italy will effectively implement austerity programmes and undertake 
overdue reforms to improve national competitiveness. Any loss of market 

Page 157



 

 

26

confidence in the two largest Eurozone economies after Germany would present 
a huge challenge to the resources of the ECB to defend their debt. 

USA.  The Federal Reserve started to reduce its monthly asset purchases of 
$85bn in December 2013 by $10bn per month; these ended in October 2014, 
signalling confidence the US economic recovery would remain on track.  First 
quarter GDP figures for the US were depressed by exceptionally bad winter 
weather, but growth rebounded very strongly in Q2 to 4.6% (annualised).  The 
first estimate of Q3 showed growth of 3.5% (annualised).  Annual growth during 
2014 is likely to be just over 2%. 

The U.S. faces similar debt problems to those of the UK, but thanks to reasonable 
growth, cuts in government expenditure and tax rises, the annual government 
deficit has been halved from its peak without appearing to do too much damage 
to growth, although the weak labour force participation rate remains a matter of 
key concern for the Federal Reserve when considering the amount of slack in the 
economy and monetary policy decisions.  It is currently expected that the Fed. will 
start increasing rates in mid 2015. 

China.  Government action in 2014 to stimulate the economy appeared to be 
putting the target of 7.5% growth within achievable reach but recent data has 
been mixed. There are also concerns that the Chinese leadership have only 
started to address an unbalanced economy which is heavily dependent on new 
investment expenditure, and for a potential bubble in the property sector to burst, 
as it did in Japan in the 1990s, with its consequent impact on the financial health 
of the banking sector. There are also concerns around the potential size, and 
dubious creditworthiness, of some bank lending to local government organisations 
and major corporates. This primarily occurred during the government promoted 
expansion of credit, which was aimed at protecting the overall rate of growth in the 
economy after the Lehmans crisis. 

Japan.   Japan is causing considerable concern as the increase in sales tax in 
April 2014 has suppressed consumer expenditure and growth.  In Q2 growth was 
-1.8% q/q and -7.1% over the previous year. The Government is hoping that this 
is a temporary blip. 

CAPITA ASSET SERVICES FORWARD VIEW  

Economic forecasting remains difficult with so many external influences weighing 
on the UK. Major volatility in bond yields is likely to endure as investor fears and 
confidence ebb and flow between favouring more risky assets i.e. equities, or the 
safe haven of bonds.  

The overall longer run trend is for gilt yields and PWLB rates to rise, due to the 
high volume of gilt issuance in the UK, and of bond issuance in other major 
western countries.  Over time, an increase in investor confidence in world 
economic recovery is also likely to compound this effect as recovery will further 
encourage investors to switch from bonds to equities.   

Page 158



 

 

27

The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK is currently evenly 
weighted. However, only time will tell just how long this period of strong economic 
growth will last; it also remains exposed to vulnerabilities in a number of key 
areas. 

The interest rate forecasts in this report are based on an initial assumption that 
there will not be a major resurgence of the EZ debt crisis, or a break-up of the EZ, 
but rather that there will be a managed, albeit painful and tortuous, resolution of 
the debt crisis where EZ institutions and governments eventually do what is 
necessary - but only when all else has been tried and failed. Under this assumed 
scenario, growth within the EZ will be tepid for the next couple of years and some 
EZ countries experiencing low or negative growth, will, over that time period, see 
an increase in total government debt to GDP ratios.  There is a significant danger 
that these ratios could rise to the point where markets lose confidence in the 
financial viability of one, or more, countries, especially if growth disappoints and / 
or efforts to reduce government deficits fail to deliver the necessary reductions. 
However, it is impossible to forecast whether any individual country will lose such 
confidence, or when, and so precipitate a sharp resurgence of the EZ debt crisis.  
While the ECB has adequate resources to manage a debt crisis in a small EZ 
country, if one, or more, of the large countries were to experience a major crisis of 
market confidence, this would present a serious challenge to the ECB and to EZ 
politicians. 

Downside risks currently include:  

• The situation over Ukraine poses a major threat to EZ and world growth if it 
was to deteriorate into economic warfare between the West and Russia 
where Russia resorted to using its control over gas supplies to Europe. 

• Fears generated by the potential impact of Ebola around the world 

• UK strong economic growth is currently mainly dependent on consumer 
spending and the potentially unsustainable boom in the housing market.  
The boost from these sources is likely to fade after 2014. 

• A weak rebalancing of UK growth to exporting and business investment 
causing a weakening of overall economic growth beyond 2014. 

• Weak growth or recession in the UK’s main trading partner - the EU, 
inhibiting economic recovery in the UK. 

• A return to weak economic growth in the US, UK and China causing major 
disappointment in investor and market expectations. 

• A resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis caused by ongoing 
deterioration in government debt to GDP ratios to the point where financial 
markets lose confidence in the financial viability of one or more countries 
and in the ability of the ECB and Eurozone governments to deal with the 
potential size of the crisis. 

• Recapitalisation of European banks requiring considerable government 
financial support. 

• Lack of support by populaces in Eurozone countries for austerity 
programmes, especially in countries with very high unemployment rates 
e.g. Greece and Spain, which face huge challenges in engineering 
economic growth to correct their budget deficits on a sustainable basis. 

Page 159



 

 

28

• Italy: the political situation has improved but it remains to be seen whether 
the new government is able to deliver the austerity programme required 
and a programme of overdue reforms.  Italy has the third highest 
government debt mountain in the world. 

• France: after being elected on an anti austerity platform, President 
Hollande has embraced a €50bn programme of public sector cuts over the 
next three years.  However, there could be major obstacles in 
implementing this programme. Major overdue reforms of employment 
practices and an increase in competiveness are also urgently required to 
lift the economy out of stagnation.   

• Monetary policy action failing to stimulate sustainable growth in western 
economies, especially the Eurozone and Japan. 

• Heightened political risks in the Middle East and East Asia could trigger 
safe haven flows back into bonds. 

• There are also increasing concerns at the reluctance of western central 
banks to raise interest rates significantly for some years, plus the huge QE 
measures which remain in place (and may be added to by the ECB in the 
near future).  This has created potentially unstable flows of liquidity 
searching for yield and, therefore, heightened the potential for an increase 
in risks in order to get higher returns. This is a return to a similar 
environment to the one which led to the 2008 financial crisis.  

The potential for upside risks to UK gilt yields and PWLB rates, especially for 
longer term PWLB rates include: - 

• A further surge in investor confidence that robust world economic growth is 
firmly expected, causing a flow of funds out of bonds into equities. 

• UK inflation returning to significantly higher levels than in the wider EU and 
US, causing an increase in the inflation premium inherent to gilt yields. 

Page 160



 

 

29

APPENDIX 3 - Treasury Management Practice (TMP1) – Credit and 
Counterparty Risk Management 

 

SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: All such investments will be sterling denominated, 
with maturities up to maximum of 1 year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality 
criteria where applicable. 
 

 
 Minimum ‘High’ 
Credit Criteria 

Use 

Debt Management Agency Deposit 
Facility 

N/A In-house 

Term deposits – local authorities   N/A In-house 

Term deposits – banks and building 
societies  

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-house 

Certificates of deposit issued by banks 
and building societies 

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-house 

Treasury Bills UK sovereign rating In-house 

Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks 

AAA 
In-house buy and 
hold 

Money market funds AAA 
In-house (£5m 
limit for cash flow 
purposes) 

 
Term deposits with nationalised banks and banks and building societies  

 
 
If forward deposits are to be made, the forward period plus the deal period should 
not exceed one year in aggregate.   
 
N.B. buy and hold may also include sale at a financial year end and repurchase 
the following day in order to accommodate the requirements of the Accounting 
Code of Practice. 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 
Max of total 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

UK  part nationalised 
banks 

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers 
credit rating matrix 

In-
house  

£10m 1 year 

Banks part 
nationalised by AAA 
or AA+ sovereign 
rating countries – non 
UK 

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers 
credit rating matrix 

In-
house  

£5m 1 year 

Page 161



 

 

30

Accounting treatment of investments.  The accounting treatment may differ 
from the underlying cash transactions arising from investment decisions made by 
this Council. To ensure that the Council is protected from any adverse revenue 
impact, which may arise from these differences, we will review the accounting 
implications of new transactions before they are undertaken. 
 
NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: These are any investments which do not 
meet the Specified Investment criteria.  A maximum of £5m will be held in 
aggregate in non-specified investments. 
 
1. Maturities of ANY Period 
 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 
Max %  of 
non-specified 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

Fixed term deposits with 
variable rate and variable 
maturities: -Structured 
deposits 

Sovereign rating  
of AAA or  AA+ 
and minimum 
colour of green on 
our external 
treasury advisers 
credit rating matrix 

In-house  100% 1 year 

UK Government Gilts 
UK sovereign 
rating 

In-house 
buy and 
hold 

100% 2 year 

Sovereign bond issues 
(other than the UK govt) 

AAA 
In-house 
buy and 
hold 

100% 2 year 

Bond issuance issued by a 
financial institution which is 
explicitly guaranteed by  
the UK Government  (eg 
National Rail)  

UK sovereign 
rating 

In-house 
buy and 
hold 

100% 2 year 

Collateralised deposits 
(see note 1) 

UK  Sovereign 
rating  

In-house  100% 2 year 

 

Page 162



 

 

31

 

Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies 
(OEICs): - 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 
Max %  of 
non-specified 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

 1. Government Liquidity 
     Funds 

Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house  100% 5 years 

 2. Enhanced Money 
Market Funds with a 
credit score of 1.25 

Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house 100% 5 years 

 3. Enhanced Money 
Market Funds with a 
credit score of 1.50 

Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house 100% 5 years 

4. Bond Funds 
Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house 100% 5 years 

 5. Gilt Funds 
Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house 100% 5 years 

 

Note 1. as collateralised deposits are backed by collateral of AAA rated local 
authority LOBOs, this investment instrument is regarded as being a AAA rated 
investment as it is equivalent to lending to a local authority. 
 
2.  Maturities in excess of 1 year 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 

Max %  of 
non-
specified 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

Term deposits – UK local 
authorities  

N/A 
In-
house 

100% 5 year 

Term deposits – banks and 
building societies  

Sovereign rating  of 
AAA or  AA+ and 
minimum colour of 
orange on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-
house 

100% 5 year 

Certificates of deposit issued 
by banks and building 
societies  

Sovereign rating  of 
AAA or  AA+ and 
minimum colour of 
orange on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-
house  

100% 5 year 

Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks 

AAA 
In-
house  

100% 5 year 

 

Page 163



 

 

32

Whilst these are maximum limits, under normal circumstances the Section 151 
Officer will ensure lower limits are maintained. The higher limits are required to 
allow flexibility in the movement of funds if a particular issue or circumstance 
arises e.g. global banking crisis. 
 
The maximum total investment to any individual financial institution or its parent 
group is £5m.  
 
 

Page 164



 

 

33

APPENDIX 4 - Approved countries for investments 

 

AAA                      

• Australia 

• Canada 

• Denmark 

• Germany 

• Luxembourg 

• Norway 

• Singapore 

• Sweden 

• Switzerland 

 

AA+ 

• Finland 

• Hong Kong 

• Netherlands 

• U.K. 

• U.S.A. 

 

 

 

Page 165



 

 

34

APPENDIX 5 - Treasury management scheme of delegation 

 

(i) Full council 

• receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, 
practices and activities 

• approval of annual strategy. 

• approval of / amendments to the council’s adopted clauses, treasury 
management policy statement and treasury management practices 

• budget consideration and approval 

• approval of the division of responsibilities as contained in the Financial 
Regulations 

 

(ii) Cabinet and Governance & Audit Committee 

• reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and making 
recommendations to the responsible body. 

• receiving and reviewing the annual strategy and making recommendations 
to the responsible body. 

• receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on 
recommendations. 

 

SCRUTINY AND MONITORING 
  
Council delegates the scrutiny and monitoring of the Treasury Management 
function to the Governance and Audit Committee.  As a minimum they will receive 
a Mid Term Treasury report on investment issues and performance. Training will 
be made available for members of the Governance and Audit Committee to 
ensure they have the necessary skills to undertake this role. Recommendations 
will be reported to Cabinet. 
 
The Governance and Audit Committee will also have access to professional and 
independent advice and support as required in order to undertake this role. 

 

Page 166



 

 

35

APPENDIX 6 - The treasury management role of the Section 151 Officer and 
deputy 

The Section 151 Officer responsibilities are as follows: 
 
� managing the Treasury Management function 
 

� recommending treasury management policies and practice for 
approval, reviewing the same regularly and monitoring compliance 

� Ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills 
are maintained by CPBS 

� Receiving and reviewing management information reports from 
CPBS 

� Reviewing the performance of the treasury management function 
 

� Informing Elected members 
 

� Submitting regular treasury management reports to Members 
� Reviewing the treasury management strategy 
� Maintaining an effective internal audit of treasury management and 

liaising with external audit. 
 
Compass Point Business Services (CPBS) is responsible for the 
provision of: 
 

• treasury management strategy statements and practices for approval  

• regular treasury management policy reports 

• budget and budget variations 

• management information reports 

• adequate treasury management resources and skills, and effective division 
of responsibilities within the treasury management function, and; 

• arranging the appointment of external treasury management advisors.  

 

Where the use of particular instant access accounts, notice accounts and 
money market funds has been approved by the Section 151 Officer, CPBS 
treasury officers have delegated authority to withdraw and deposit funds within 
the agreed limits contained in this strategy. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 167



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Finance Manager 
 
To: Governance and Audit Committee – 18 December 2014 
 
(Author: Mark Finch – Finance Manager) 
 
Subject: Governance and Audit Committee Self-Assessment 
 
Purpose: The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 

advocate that it is good practice for Audit Committees to undertake regular 
assessments. Thus enabling members to gain an appreciation of what 
affords best practice, to confirm the level of compliance being achieved, 
and to identify any potential areas for enhancements to be made to 
arrangements. 

 

Recommendation:  
 
1) That Members note the competed checklist at Appendix 1 and the actions to be completed 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards call for audit committees to assess their remit 

and effectiveness in keeping with Standard 1000 – Purpose, Authority and Responsibility 
 
1.2 CIPFA’s Audit Committee Self-Assessment Checklist (attached at Appendix 1) focuses on 

6 fundamental areas, and 66 individual aspects of operations. The key areas are as follows: 
 

• Establishment, Operation and Duties; 

• Internal Control; 

• Financial Reporting and Regulatory Matters; 

• Internal Audit; 

• External Audit; and 

• Administration. 
 
1.3 At a workshop session on 25 September the Governance and Audit Committee 

systematically went through the checklist to assess its performance against the CIPFA 
standard. The results of this assessment are set out in Appendix 1. 

1.4 The exercise identified a handful of actions that would improve its effectiveness. These are 
highlighted bold in the appendix. The actions include producing an annual report of the 
work of the audit committee, ensuring that members have appropriate induction and 
training, and holding private meetings with the internal and external auditors. 

 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 The alternative approach would be for the Audit Committee not complete the Self- 

Assessment exercise, however this would result in no assurance being provided that the 
Committee is assisting the Council in achieving good corporate governance, and is 
sufficiently proactive. 

 
 
 

Page 169

Agenda Item 11.



3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 Completion of the Self-Assessment Checklist provides feedback on the effectiveness of the 

current arrangements, and ensures that best practice is followed by the Committee, and 
good corporate governance is achieved. 

 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 The Audit Committee are able to demonstrate that best practice is followed and that they 

are proactive in in helping to raise the profile of internal control, risk management and 
financial reporting matters at the Council. 

 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.4 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.4.1 The Audit Committee, through its terms of reference, helps to ensure that the service areas 

and risks reported are working towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s 
corporate priorities.  

 
5.5 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.5.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 
5.6.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.7 Financial  
 
5.7.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.8 Health & Wellbeing 
 
5.8.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.9 Risk Management  
 
5.9.1 The Committee supports the oversight of the Council’s risk management framework, which 

will in turn ensure that the Council’s key risks are accurately reviewed and addressed. This 
is ensured by following best practice and adopting sound terms of reference. 

 
 

Page 170



5.10 Staffing 
 
5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
  
5.11 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
5.11.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 None. 
 
7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1 CIPFA - Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. 
 

Background papers:- See The Committee Report Guide 

 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post:  Mark Finch – Finance Manager 
Telephone Number: 01775 761161 
Email: Mark.finch@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting 
Name and Post:  Mark Finch – Finance Manager 
 
Key Decision:  No 
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
Appendix A  Governance and Audit Committee Self-Assessment Checklist 
 

Page 171



This page is intentionally left blank



South Holland -  Governance and Audit Committee Self Assessment Checklist Review Conducted 25 September 2014

No. Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Actions

1. ESTABLISHMENT, OPERATION AND DUTIES

Role and Remit

1.1 1 Does the audit committee have written terms of 
reference?

√ TOR firmly established. Covered under Part 3 of the Constitution, which is 
currently being reviewed by a Members' working group.

1.2 1 Do the terms of reference cover the core functions 
of an audit committee as identified in the CIPFA 
guidance?

√

1.3 1 Are the terms of reference approved by the council 
and reviewed periodically?

√ See answers to 1.1.

1.4 1 Has the audit committee been provided with 
sufficient membership, authority and resources to 
perform its role effectively and independently?

√

1.5 1 Can the audit committee access other committees 
and full council as necessary?

√ The committee minutes are reported to Council. Members also sit on scrutiny 
panels. 

1.6 1 Does the authority's Annual Governance Statement 
include a description of the audit committee's 
establishment and activities?

√

1.7 2 Does the audit committee periodically assess its 
own effectiveness?

√

1.8 2 Does the audit committee make a formal annual 
report on its work and performance during the year 
to full council?

√ It was decided that the committee would introduce an annual report to 

promote its work. 

Membership, Induction and training

1.9 1 Has the membership of the audit committee been 
formally agreed and a quorum set?

√ As part of Constitution and quorum is set.

1.10 1 Is the chair independent of the executive function? √

1.11 1 Has the audit committee chair either previous 
knowledge of, or received appropriate training on, 
financial and risk management, accounting 
concepts and standards, and the regulatory 
regime?

√

P
age 173



No. Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Actions

1.12 1 Are new audit committee members provided with 
an appropriate induction?

√ Specific audit induction and relevant training will be included in the 

Members' Development Programme  

1.13 1 Have all members skills and experiences been 
assessed and training given for identified gaps?

Work on the Members Charter and Development Programme will recognise 

the specific needs of Governance and Audit Committee Members

1.14 1 Has each member declared his or her business 
interests?

√ Members are required to declare business interests in a centrally held register

1.15 2 Are members sufficiently independent of the other 
key committees of the council?

√ No member of the committee sits on Cabinet, although a number also have 
positions on the council's scrutiny panels

Meetings

1.16 1 Does the audit committee meet regularly? √ Scheduled to meet on four occasions each year
1.17 1 Do the terms of reference set out the frequency of 

meetings?
√ No but the regularity of the meetings are well established as part of the 

Committee reporting cycle.
1.18 1 Does the audit committee calendar meet the 

authority's business needs, governance needs and 
the financial calendar?

√ This is also supported by a work programme that is a standing item on each 
committee

1.19 1 Are members attending meetings on a regular 
basis and if not, is appropriate action taken?

√ There was one meeting during 2013/14 which was not quorate, and had to be 
reconvened

1.20 1 Are meetings free and open without political 
influences being displayed?

√

1.21 1 Does the authority's S151 officer or deputy attend 
all meetings?

√ All meetings attended.

1.22 1 Does the audit committee have the benefit of 
attendance of appropriate officers at its meetings?

√ Attendance records show that the Committee is well attended by officers, thus 
providing the required level of support.

INTERNAL CONTROL

2.1 1 Does the audit committee consider the findings of 
the annual review of the effectiveness of the 
system of internal control (as required by the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations) including the 
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal 
audit?

√ At the meeting on 27 June 2014, as part of the Annual Report and Opinion for 
2013/14, incorporating the Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit.

2.2 1 Does the audit committee have responsibility for 
review and approval of the Annual Governance 
Statement and does it consider it separately from 
the accounts?

√ The draft statement of accounts were considered by the Committee in June and 
the final accounts will be considered in September. The draft AGS was 
considered by the Committee in June also. 

2.3 1 Does the audit committee consider how meaningful 
the Annual Governance Statement is?

√ Displayed through the level of debate as shown in the minutes.

P
age 174



No. Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Actions

2.4 1 Does the audit committee satisfy itself that the 
system of internal control has operated effectively 
throughout the reporting period?

√ The committee receives regular reports from the Head of Audit and Risk 
Management

2.5 1 Has the audit committee considered how it 
integrates with other committees that may have 
responsibility for risk management?

√ The Audit Committee is responsible for receiving risk management reports.

2.6 1 Has the audit committee (with delegated 
responsibility) or the full council adopted "Managing 
the Risk of Fraud - Actions to Counter Fraud and 
Corruption?"

√

The Audit Committee received the updated Counter Fraud, Corruption and 
Bribery Policy and Whistleblowing Policy during 2012/13. 

2.7 1 Does the audit committee ensure that the "Actions 
to Counter Fraud and Corruption" are being 
implemented?

√ When it reviews new/updated Counter Fraud Strategy and Whistleblowing Policy, 
plus new Audit Plans which do take account of such actions.

2.8 2 Is the audit committee made aware of the role of 
risk management in the preparation of the internal 
audit plan?

√ This is included in the report when the committee considers the internal audit 
plan. 

2.9 2 Does the audit committee review the authority's 
strategic risk register at least annually?

√ The Committee receives quarterly risk governance reports and also the strategic 
risk register. 

2.10 2 Does the audit committee monitor how the authority 
assesses its risk?

√ See 2.9

2.11 2 Do the audit committee's terms of reference include 
oversight of the risk management processes?

√

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND REGULATORY MATTERS

3.1 1 Is the audit committee's role in the consideration 
and/or approval of the annual accounts clearly 
defined?

√ Well established in the terms of reference and demonstrated by members at the 
meetings that consider the accounts.

3.2 1 Does the audit committee consider specifically:
- the suitability of accounting policies and 
treatments;
- major judgements made;
- large write-offs;
- changes in accounting treatment;
- the reasonableness of accounting estimates;
- the narrative aspects of reporting?

√ These issues are considered when the committee reviews the statements of 
accounts

3.3 1 Is an audit committee meeting scheduled to receive 
the external auditor's report to those charged with 
governance including a discussion of proposed 
adjustments to the accounts an other issues arising 
form the audit?

√ Received each September prior to the final approval of the annual statements of 
accounts

P
age 175



No. Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Actions

3.4 1 Does the audit committee review management's 
letter of representation?

√ See 3.4

3.5 2 Does the audit committee annually review the 
accounting policies of the authority?

√ See 3.4

3.6 2 Does the audit committee gain an understanding of 
management's procedures for preparing the 
authority's annual accounts?

√ A pre-meeting is held to explain the processes used, and changes to regulations 
and policies prior to the committee formally reviewing the statements of accounts.

3.7 2 Does the audit committee have a mechanism to 
keep it aware of topical legal and regulatory issues, 
for example by receiving circulars and through 
training?

√ Quarterly audit newsletters from Internal Audit and Briefing Notes from External 
Audit. There is also a standing agenda item - Training which can be used to 
ensure Members are up to date.

INTERNAL AUDIT

4.1 1 Does the audit committee approve annually and in 
detail, the internal audit strategic and annual plans 
including consideration of whether the scope of 
internal audit work addresses the authority's 
significant risks?

√ Annual planning reports taken to Committee in March each year.

4.2 1 Does internal audit have an appropriate reporting 
line to the audit committee?

√ As stated in the Audit Charter.

4.3 1 Does the audit committee receive periodic reports 
from the internal audit service including an annual 
report from the Head of Internal Audit?

√ Updates on progress against the annual plan and follow up of recommendations 
are presented each committee

4.4 1 Are follow-up audits by internal audit monitored by 
the audit committee and does the committee 
consider the adequacy of implementation of 
recommendations?

√ These are covered in the Head of Audit and Risk Management's regular progress 
reports to the committee

4.5 1 Does the audit committee hold periodic private 
discussions with the Head of Internal Audit?

√ Although these are not currently formally in place the auditors will be 

contacted to arrange a meeting ahead of one of the future committee 

meetings. 

4.6 1 Is there appropriate co-operation between the 
internal and external auditors?

√ Joint Working Protocol in place.

4.7 1 Does the audit committee review the adequacy of 
internal audit staffing and other resources?

√ See 4.1

4.8 1 Has the audit committee evaluated whether its 
internal audit service complies with CIPFA's Code 
of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government 
in the United Kingdom?

√ As part of the Annual Report and Opinion which incorporates the Review of the 
Effectiveness of Internal Audit, now against the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards

4.9 2 Are internal audit performance measures monitored 
by the audit committee?

√ As part of the above report.

4.10 2 Has the audit committee considered the information 
it wishes to receive from internal audit?

√ Yes - well established committee reporting cycle in place and forward work 
programme is a standard agenda item for every meeting.

P
age 176



No. Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Actions

EXTERNAL AUDIT

5.1 1 Do the external auditors present and discuss their 
audit plans and strategy with the audit committee 
(recognizing the statutory duties of external audit)?

√

5.2 1 Does the audit committee hold periodic private 
discussions with the external auditor?

√ This will be arranged jointly with a private meeting with the Head of Audit 

and Risk Management (see 4.5)

5.3 1 Does the audit committee review the external 
auditor's annual report to those charged with 
governance?

√

5.4 1 Does the audit committee ensure that officers are 
monitoring action taken to implement external audit 
recommendations?

√

5.5 1 Are reports on the work of external audit and other 
inspection agencies presented to the committee, 
including the Audit Commission's annual audit and 
inspection letter?

√

5.6 1 Does the audit committee assess the performance 
of external audit? √

External audit reports regularly to the committee giving members the opportunity 
to robustly challenge the performance of external audit.

5.7 1 Does the audit committee consider and approve the 
external audit fee?

√

ADMINISTRATION

Agenda administration

6.1 1 Does the audit committee have a designated 
secretary from Committee/Member Services?

√

6.2 1 Are agenda papers circulated in advance of 
meetings to allow adequate preparation by audit 
committee members?

√

6.3 2 Are outline agendas planned one year ahead to 
cover issues on a cyclical basis?

√ Well established committee reporting cycle.

6.4 2 Are inputs for Any Other Business formally 
requested in advance from committee members, 
relevant officers, internal and external audit?

√ There is a standing item on the agenda which receives any Urgent Business

P
age 177



No. Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Actions

Papers

6.5 1 Do reports to the audit committee communicate 
relevant information at the right frequency, time, 
and in a format that is effective?

√

6.6 2 Does the audit committee issue guidelines and/or a 
proforma concerning the format and content of the 
papers to be presented?

√

Actions arising

6.7 1 Are minutes prepared and circulated promptly to 
the appropriate people?

√

6.8 1 Is a report on matters arising made and minuted at 
the audit committee's next meeting?

√

6.9 1 Do action points indicate who is to perform what 
and by when?

√

P
age 178



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Democratic Services and Legal Manager 
 
To: Governance and Audit Committee – 18 December 2014 
 
(Author: Christine Morgan – Member Services Officer 
 
Subject: Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme 
 
Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee 
 

Recommendation:  
 
That the Committee gives consideration to the contents of this report and identifies any issues for 
discussion. 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee regularly considers a variety of reports from Internal 

Audit, External Audit and the Section 151 Officer. 
 
1.2 Many of these reports are considered at regular intervals, the majority being annually, half-

yearly or quarterly. 
 

1.3 In addition to these reports, the Committee also considers issues on an ad-hoc basis with 
some reports arising from consideration of items at previous meetings. 
 

1.4 Attached at Appendix 1 to this report is the Work Programme for the Governance and Audit 
Committee.  It lays out all meeting dates for the 2014/15 municipal year.  Alongside each of 
these meeting dates are issues considered by the Committee on a regular basis together 
with the author of the report, its purpose and whether it is mandatory, and the frequency 
with which it is considered. 
 

1.5 It had been agreed that this Work Programme be a regular item for consideration on the 
Committee’s agenda, thus creating a formal document laying out the work of the Committee 
in a clear, structured and organised way. 
 

1.6 The attached document contains items considered on a regular basis, and also any ad hoc 
issues as and when they arise, for example, issues raised at a meeting to be covered at a 
future meeting, and any one-off issues. 

 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme. 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 To allow Committee members to feed into the Work Programme on a regular basis, to 

ensure that it stays relevant and up to date. 
 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 The Work Programme is a formal document laying out the work of the Committee in a clear, 

Page 179

Agenda Item 12.



structured and organised way, thus providing members with up to date and relevant 
information. 

 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 Carbon Footprint/Environmental implications have been considered and in the opinion of 

the author, there are none arising out of this report. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 Constitutional and Legal implications have been considered and in the opinion of the 

author, there are none arising out of this report. However, the Work Programme should 
assist in providing a clear programme of work for the Governance and Audit Committee in 
line with the requirements laid out in the Council’s Constitution. 

 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 Contracts implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, there are 

none arising out of this report. 
 
5.4 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.4.1 Corporate Priority implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, there 

are none arising out of this report. 
 
5.5 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.5.1 Crime and Disorder implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, 

there are none arising out of this report. 
 
5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 
5.6.1 Equality and Diversity/Human Rights implications have been considered and in the opinion 

of the author, there are none arising out of this report. 
 
5.7 Financial  
 
5.7.1 Financial implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, there are 

none arising out of this report. 
 
5.8 Health & Wellbeing 
 
5.8.1 Health and Wellbeing implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, 

there are none arising out of this report. 
 
5.9 Risk Management  
 
5.9.1 Risk Management implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, 

there are none arising out of this report.  However, one of the roles of the Governance and 
Audit Committee is to monitor the effective development and operation of risk management 
and corporate governance in the Council and the Work Programme should assist in 
keeping track of risk issues. 

 

Page 180



5.10 Staffing 
 
5.10.1 Staffing implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, there are none 

arising out of this report. 
  
5.11 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
5.11.1 Stakeholder/Consultation/Timescales implications have been considered and in the opinion 

of the author, there are none arising out of this report. 
 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 No wards or communities will be affected by this report. 
 
7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1 None. 
 

Background papers:- None 

 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post: Christine Morgan (Democratic Services Officer) 
Telephone Number: 01775 764454 
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting 
 
Mark Finch  
Christine Morgan 

Finance Manager 
Democratic Services Officer 

  
 
Key Decision:  No  
 
Exempt Decision: No  
 
This report refers to a Mandatory Service  
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
 
Appendix A   Work Programme for the Governance and Audit Committee 
 

Page 181



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 

 

Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

18 December 2014 HRA Draft Estimates and Business Plan Section 151 Officer Delegated duty to review HRA 
Estimates. 
Not statutory requirement 

Annual 

  Annual Audit Letter 
 
 

External Audit Mandatory/Constitutional requirement. 
To approve audit fees. 

Annually 

 Progress Report External Audit Added by KPMG November 2014 for 
December meeting 

Ad hoc 

 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 
 
 

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 

Quarterly 

 Mid Term Treasury Report Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy, reporting 
requirements 

Half Yearly 

 Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 2015/16 

Section 151 Officer Mandatory requirement. 
To review Treasury Management 
Strategy and approve Prudential 
Indicators. 

Annual 

 Business Continuity Update Report 
(report by exception)  
 

Riana Rudland Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 

To each 
meeting 

 Risk Management Update Report (report 
by exception) 
Quarter 2 Risk Report 

Christopher Dean Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 

To each 
meeting 

 Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment 

Finance Manager For confirmation. Self Assessment 
undertaken by Committee in 
September 
 

 

P
age 183



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

10 March 2015 Audit Plan 
 

External Audit External Audit Plan – Mandatory 
Approval 

Annual 

 Grant Claims 2013/14 
 

External Audit External Audit Certification of Grant 
Claims – Mandatory Approval 

Annual 

 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 
 
 

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 

Quarterly 

 Internal Audit Plan (plan for the year 
ahead) 

Internal Audit Annual Internal Audit Workplan – 
Mandatory Approval 

Annual 

 2013/14 Accounts – Accounting Code of 
Practice update, accounting policies, 
significant estimates and critical 
judgements to be used in the preparation 
of the Council’s 2013/14 Statement of 
Accounts 

Section 151 Officer Approval of accounting policies prior 
to preparation of financial statements 
– Good Practice 

Annual 

 Business Continuity Update Report 
(report by exception)  

Riana Rudland Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 

To each 
meeting 

 Risk Management Update Report (report 
by exception) 

Christopher Dean Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 

To each 
meeting 

At the end of each municipal year, liaise with S151 Officer to programme regular items in the Work Programme for the next year 
 

 

P
age 184


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	3. Business Continuity Update Report
	4. Quarter 2 Risk Report
	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	5. Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Draft 2015-16 estimates
	Enc. 1 for Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Draft 2015-16
	Appendix B1
	Appendix B2
	App C HRA report

	6. SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2013/14
	Annual Audit Letter 2013/14
	Contents
	Section one�Headlines
	Appendices�Appendix 1: Summary of reports issued
	Appendices�Appendix 2: Audit fees
	Slide Number 6

	7. External Audit Progress Report and Technical Update
	External audit progress report and technical update
	External audit progress report and technical update – November 2014
	External audit progress report and technical update – October 2014
	Slide Number 4
	External audit progress report – October 2014
	Slide Number 6
	�KPMG resources
	Slide Number 8
	�Technical update
	�Technical update
	�Technical update
	�Technical update
	Technical update
	Technical update
	Technical update
	Technical update
	Technical update
	Technical update
	Slide Number 19
	�Appendix 1 – 2014/15 Audit deliverables
	Slide Number 21

	8. Internal Audit Update Report
	9. Mid Term Treasury Report 2014/15
	10. Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 2015/16
	Appendix A for Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 2015/16

	11. Governance and Audit Committee Self-Assessment
	Appendix A

	12. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme
	Appendix A


